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“Fresh Thinking Quality Living’
‘AP REER

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (“SPG Land” or the “Group”): Hong Kong Stock Code: 337) is a reputable property developer that is
principally engaged in the development of quality residential and hotel properties, headquartered in Shanghai. Since its incorporation, the
Group has successfully developed three exemplar large-scale trophy projects in Shanghai: namely Cambridge Forest Newtown,
Cambridge Waters and Cambridge Watertown (Oriental Garden), and established its reputable brand name. Since its listing in October
2006, SPG Land has strategically achieved in expanding its business to the cities in Yangtze River Delta; including Wuxi, Changshu, and
Suzhou, as well as some emerging and developing cities, such as Huangshan, Kunming and Haikou. With our unique residential design,
exquisite living environment and innovative architectural style and outstanding sales performance, we were awarded “Shanghai Top Ten
Foreign Property Developers in 18 years”. Since our listing in the Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange, our profile in the
international capital market has gradually enhanced. The Group was selected as a constituent stock of the 200-Stock Hang Seng
Composite Index Series and Hang Seng Freefloat Index Series in March 2007, and obtained the renowned status as the “Top 100
Property Developers in China” in the same year.

The sustained rapid growth of the PRC economy has accelerated its urbanization progress. With the increase in the disposal income of
the urban population, in particular the middle-to-high income sector, the Group is committed to providing high quality products and
distinctive services. Hence, the Group works with world renowned design teams for the development of its projects. Moreover, we adopt
a prudent and selective approach in enlarging the scale of our quality land bank. Our management firmly believes that our focus on quality
of products and selecting sites with growing potential are conductive to the healthy and sustainable development of the Gro|.|p in the long
run.

To facilitate our business diversification and to enhance recurring income, besides the excellent track record in property development, the
Group has also actively co-operated with leading hotel management groups and has achieved promising outcome. Currently, the hotel
projects of the Group include the investment and international development of Peninsula Hotel on the Bund in Shanghai; Shanghai
Cambridge Holiday Inn; and the Crowne Plaza Resort Hotel in the world-renowned scenic area of Huangshan. With regard to the
development of the hotel business of the Group, all the above projects will benefit from the rapid development of tourism industry and
2010 World Expo in Shanghai. With the increase in recurrent income from hotel operations and investment properties, it will strengthen
the business foundation of the development of SPG Land in the long run.

“Fresh Thinking, Quality Living” is the corporate vision of SPG Land. With our international and professional background, SPG Land
stands out itself from the China’s real estate market. We believe that, with our professional management, superb product quality and
prudent financial operation, we will be able to devote ourselves fully to building up the better future for cities in China, creating a
harmonized and humane society whole-heartedly, and at the same time will maximise the returns to our stockholders and investors!
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Financial Highlights
55 2

Results Highlights ¥ & &
For the year ended 31 December & Z+ - A=+—HIFE

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
AR¥BEERT ARBBEETR %
(Restated)
(£273)
Revenue Uz 1,715 -19%
Gross Profit & | 642 -16%
Profit from Operating Activities 2R B 4% & & &) )& 7 618 -23%
Net Profit /% F 542 -65%
Attributable to: LA T A LA :
— Equity Holders of the Company — &K A Bl % #E3 A A 517 -71%
— Minority Interests — 2> B I& R # %5 25 48%
Earnings per Share (RMB) & & | (AR %)
— Basic —& A& 0.499 71%
— Diluted — # & 0.462 -68%
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2008 Revenue Analysis —ZEZ N\ FE W= 5
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
RMB Million RMB Million Change
AREBEER ARBBEETT e
Sales of Property ) 3 $5 & 1,606.7 -21%
Lease of Property ) £ & 29.6 -9%
Property Management & Others ¥ % & 12 & H b 78.2 27%
Total & &f 1,714.5 -19%
Asat31December R+ —A=+—H
2008 2007
—EEN\FE  -TTLE
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBEEET ARBEETT 2
(Restated)
(E73))
Total Assets & = 48 %8 7,548.8 22%
Total Liabilities & & 42 %8 3,916.5 37%
Total Equity # %5 42 58 3,632.3 6%
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Key Events of the Year
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Acquired a project company in Haikou, Hainan Province with
GFA of approximately 252,759 sg.m. in January

Further acquired development land in Huangshan, Taiping Lake
in June, project’s overall site area reached 2,280,000 sg.m.,
aggregate planned GFA increased to 1,140,000 sg.m.

Signed MOU with Frasers Hospitality for the management of its
Fraser Suites in Suzhou project in November
Commenced the construction of “Wuxi Xishuidong” in

December, making the renowned world-class city project brand
name

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008
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2008
° SPG Land was awarded the “Most Influential Brand Enterprise”
by SouFun.com

° Tiffany (Cambridge Waters Phase lll) was awarded the “Landmark
Property Project” by SouFun.com

° Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) was awarded the
“Distinguished Villas in Yangtze River Delta” by SouFun.com

° Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) was awarded the
“Heroic Villas” by ‘Shanghai Loushi’ of Shanghai Real Estate

Trading Center

2007

° Recognised as one of the “Top 100 Property Developers in
Chinaiin 2007”

° SPG Land (Holdings) Limited was recognized as “China’s Brand
Real Estate Enterprise”

° Cambridge Watertown was recognized as a “Top Twenty Classic
Real Estate Developments in China”

° SPG Land was recognized as one of the “Top Ten Real Estate
Developers in Shanghai in 2007”

o Oriental Garden (Cambridge Watertown) was recognized as one
of the “Top Ten Best Living Property of China Municipal Classic
Property Index System Sample Project”

° Kunming SPG Land Grand City won “Residential Housing
Classic Award 2007 China Real Estate Golden Brick Award”

° Kunming SPG Land Grand City won “Show Flat Award” at “the
90 m” Housing Unit Creative Design Competition in Kunming”

Awards and Accolades
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Awards and Accolades
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2006

2005
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“National Trustworthy Property Developer in 2006” by the China
Property Trustworthiness Research Centre

“2006 Star Property Developer” by four major Chinese media
(Xinmin Wanbao, Wen Wei Pao, Beijing Wanbao, Dongfang
Zaobao)

Cambridge Watertown accredited “BusinessWeek Architectural
Record China Award” and “Tsingpu Region Model Project” and
“The Best Community for the White Collar in Shanghai” awards,
by four major Chinese media (Xinmin Wanbao, Wen Wei Pao,
Beijing Wanbao, Dongfang Zaobao)

Shanghai New Independence House Property Management
Co., Ltd. was given “Shanghai Best Estate Property
Management Award”

Shanghai New Independence House Property Management
Co., Ltd. was awarded as the First Class Property Management
Enterprise Award

Shanghai New Independence House Property Management

Co., Ltd. passed the ISO14001:2004, OHSAS18001:1999
Three-In-One Management System

SPG Land was recognized as one of the “Top 10 Foreign
Property Developers in Shanghai in 18 Years”

Accredited the Top Bank Credit Rating Enterprise in Shanghai:
AAA

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008
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2004
o Cambridge Watertown was recognized as “Innovative
Demonstration Project as Champion of New Chinese Resident”

° Cambridge Forest Newtown was recognized as First Class
Honour of Real Estate Developer

2003
o Cambridge Forest Newtown received “Shanghai Top Grade Villa
Development Model” and “Best Potential Residence Award”

o Cambridge Waters awarded “China Residence Innovation
Award”

° Shanghai New Independence House Property Management
Co., Ltd. passed the ISO9001:2000 Management System

2002
° Cambridge Forest Newtown received Gold Awards in “National
Landscape” and “Environment Design Match”

2001

° Cambridge Forest Newtown received “Most Stylish Residence
of New Century Award”, “Shanghai’s 10 Most Classic Urban

Residence Award”, and “China’s 10 Most Classic Residence

Award”

2000

° Cambridge Forest Newtown received “2000 China House
Design Award” and “Shanghai House Design Award” by the
Ministry of Construction

Awards and Accolades
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHRE

Mr. WANG Weixian
Chairman
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2008 was a year of historical significance. The global financial system
underwent drastic changes and almost all countries in the world faced
tough economic challenges. China was no exception, and the
country’s property sector was fraught with difficulties. The
sluggishness facing the sector is also a major challenge to SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited Company (“SPG Land” or “the Group”). Fortunately,
as it has been proved, the Group managed to maintain steady
development and achieve satisfactory results through a range of
effective measures which has been using all along, including focusing
on developing and selling high quality properties, refraining from
snapping up land sites at unreasonably high prices, adhering to a
prudent financial approach, and maintaining a financial foundation
with healthy cash flow.

The trembling macro-economic environment and the numerous
market challenges were among a variety of external factors that led to
sales slowdown of the Group as compared with the previous year.
During the year under review, we made an effort to seize opportunities
brought about by market changes through adjusting selling prices of
some projects reasonably, optimizing product structure and design,
and adopting flexible sales strategies. With our experience in
developing large-scale projects in Shanghai over the last decade, the
Group continues to keep pace with market trends and accurately
grasp consumer demand with a global vision. In addition, we have
emphasized operational strategy to strengthen cost control measures,
enhance operation efficiency and safeguard our unique competitive
strengths.

Apart from adjustment of project development and sales plans, SPG
Land also upheld the development strategy of “Headquartered in
Shanghai, Establishing ourselves in Yangtze River Delta, Embarking
on core cities in various economic zones” and successfully expanded
our business operations from Shanghai to the economically developed
regions in the Yangtze Delta region, provincial cities, and the economic
hubs in the southwest. These areas cover Huangshan, Wuxi,
Changshu, Suzhou, Kunming and Haikou. During the year, SPG Land
focused on developing high-quality and well-designed property

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEWE

projects. We also chose with care a broad range of cities with high
growth potential to develop our business so as to diversify business
risks, stabilize income and solidify the Group’s financial position.

During the year under review, SPG Land successfully transformed
itself from purely residential property developer to comprehensive
urban developer. For example, we have developed the Peninsula on
the Bund, Wuxi Xishuidong and Suzhou Global 188. To keep with the
growing demand for high quality properties in emerging areas, we
have tied up with top-notched design teams to develop international
comprehensive projects comprising hotels, office buildings,
entertainment and shopping centers, and high-end serviced
apartments. In the meantime, people’s income level is constantly on
the rise thanks to China’s 30 years of economic reform, SPG Land has
also started developing travel and leisure resorts, including the
Huangshan Taiping Lake project and the Haikou project, which will
effectively broaden the Group’s sources of income.

To promote business diversification and to generate more recurrent
income, the Group has collaborated with internationally renowned
hotel management groups in recent years and has achieved
remarkable results in hotel development and management. At present,
the Group’s hotel portfolio under development includes the Peninsula
Hotel on the Bund, Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn, Crowne Plaza in
Huangshan, a world-famous sight-seeing destination, which is now
under planning. We expect the hotel projects to be benefited from
China’s rapidly growing tourism sector as well as the Shanghai Expo in
2010. SPG Land can build a stronger revenue base from the recurrent
income generated by the upcoming hotels and investment properties
to grow on a healthier and more stable track.

In 2009, with the global economy outlook remains uncertain, China’s
property market is anticipated to be volatile. Nonetheless, the Group
firmly believes that government’s various measures to stimulate the
economy will continue to insert positive impacts on the sector. As a
pillar industry supporting the national economy, the property industry
is set to gradually rebound from the bottom. To promote steady,
healthy and reasonable development of the property market, the
central government adopted a series of measures to support the
property sector in the fourth quarter last year. It also relaxed
restrictions on financial loans and removed some constraints on
certain type of property investment, including relaxing the mortgage
policy for the second-home. All such measures have helped to
mitigate the negative impact of the financial tsunami on the industry
and also drive up demand for real estates.

12 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

B YIREEBRARERE SRMAEETH
DREABBERFERSR  TEESENY
AR

ERBMRFARIEEEEAYERAESE
AERMEEGENELHE  lN/NEYS
BHEH - \HEKRIEE R&IMNIEK188IEE -
BFEE-RRAERITERERE - A
BMES REBDF L FEULKRRASE
ZEEREHMEREER  DEaFEENS
BEMERZEENT K B BERF
BN ERB=1TF ARMEEZR  HMNK
BT B 4 A [ B O R K BB R
WERE BEELAFEHER  FHIEE
UREOEESE  HASERZERIR -

RTEIEBEZTLEREISEETRE
HEEMRRA > BB NMEREFMER
ERAEER MFETREERZZEEEES
BEFAE EEEENRBEERLRET
BAMMKE - BRI SEHEANEEEREE
BLBNEFEBEE FEBERAEE UK
NRElLZ2RAERRRENEILEERAEE
EeBEBBEERRME MARBHAKX
ERFESRERNREXN _T—FF L
BHEG  BBRERSAREERREVEN
WARR BREMKHALEEEASER
ERERE BENER-

—TEAF REKEBANSKETIHAN B’
BHBEEMEMSDARSNE - AMASK
BRE - PEBNE NS IE RS BB R
HEEREER FREARKEXEEEN
FHETE BEERLRH/ERTT - Bfef
FHEDSRERENELER  PRABF
REOFRMZEBBESRA RN RREDE
e XBEEBREERRX  BMERBIHHE
REFHMEMES BEEREE _EFNE
BHRE ELUBRRIEPENcBEWET
FEXRNEE UTHEMENFTR -



Experiencing a year of drastic changes, SPG has become more
sophisticated and weathered in identifying market trends, grasping
the development pace, managing financial resources and
implementing development strategies. At present, SPG Land has a
land bank measuring approximately 3.47 million sq. m. and about 10
projects under development. We believe this excellent asset portfolio
will enable us to seize market opportunities effectively and further
enhance the Group’s core competitive strengths.

As the living standard is improving, an increasing number of people
are pursuing high quality properties and better lifestyle. This has
opened up a huge potential for our business growth and we remain
cautiously optimistic about the long-term prospect of China’s property
market. The Group has strategically and successfully diversified into
some sophisticated and emerging markets. Three hotels under
development are set to open one by one from late 2009 to early 2010,
thus helping the Group to gradually diversify its business scope.

“Fresh Thinking, Quality Living” has always been SPG Land’s
corporate vision. The Group’s international background and
professional attitude make us stand out. Leveraging on our
professional development visions, excellent product quality and stable
financial operation, SPG Land will fully devote to the urbanization
process in China. We will also make continuous efforts to help create
a more pleasant and harmonious society.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all
shareholders, investors and business partners for their trust and
support for the Group. We will continue to endeavor to build an even
more solid business foundation for SPG Land and strive to create
maximum returns for our shareholders.

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
Chairman
Wang Weixian

Hong Kong, 23 April 2009
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Chief Executive’s Review
THBERBRE

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones

Group Managing Director & CEO
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It is my pleasure to report to shareholders on the efforts and progress
the Group made during the 2008 financial year. In an operating
environment that has become more challenging as the onset of credit
crunch has thrown global economies into turmoil, the Group managed
to deliver a solid result for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The management has been working diligently and prudently to plan
and execute our projects to accommodate the rapidly changing and
highly competitive environment, while still leveraging opportunities for
growth. During the year under review, SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”) and together with its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) achieved a total revenue of approximately RMB1,395 million.
Net profit of the Group for the year was approximately RMB188
million, declined by about 65% mainly because of the weaker macro
environment, the sales slow-down, decrease in price levels and the
absence of a one-off revaluation gain as recorded in the previous year.
In return for our shareholders’ long-running support and trust, the
Board of Directors recommends payment of final dividend of RMB4.97
cents per share.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

2008 was a year that posed a real test on the overall property industry
in China as well as the Group’s capability to tailor its strategies in
response to the drastically changing operational landscape. The
Central Government made a U-turn in policy directions toward the
industry in 4Q2008, from a series of heavy-handed austerity measures
to one-by-one supporting policy measures and aggressive rate cuts.
Potential home buyers generally adopt a “wait-and-see” attitude as a
result of gloomy economic outlook and high uncertainties. The credit
and investment sentiment experienced a serious downturn, which will
likely have repercussions for the next couple of years.
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Chief Executive’s Review
THRHBE

Maintaining a firm ground for the Group’s financial and operational
soundness is emerged as an overriding priority in light of the
challenges. To this end, the Group streamlined our operation to
increase the cost effectiveness and organizational efficiencies. We
have been able to keep our property sales at a reasonable pace, albeit
slower than that in the previous euphoric periods. This was in turn
translated into an ongoing steady stream of positive cash flow for the
Group, enabling us stay well afloat in a consolidating environment.

Sales Performance

The Group focuses on developing high-quality and well-designed
projects to target right customer segments, which has been
materialized into a resilient sales performance despite the rugged
industry environment. In Shanghai, the Group’s home city, our well-
known “Cambridge” series of suburban, large-scale and multi-phase
projects achieved steady contracted sales as a result of our sensible
pricing strategies and innovative promotional programs. In addition,
Cambridge Waters and Cambridge Watertown gained notable market
popularity — Cambridge Waters was awarded as the “Flagship
Project” and Cambridge Watertown as the “Featured Villa in Yangtze
River Delta”/“Heroic villa” by publications and media; Cambridge
Watertown was among Top 3 best-selling villa projects in Shanghai.

Sales of Cambridge Waters, Cambridge Forest Newtown and
Cambridge Watertown remained the major revenue contributors in
2008. The Group’s cross-district investments in other upcoming cities
also began to yield harvests. Metropolitan in Kunming and Florea in
Haikou started to contribute to the Group’s revenues in 2008, laying a
solid foundation for the Group’s future expansion into other regions in
China.
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Specifically, the Group’s total contracted sales in 2008 amounted to
RMB1,830 million, or GFA of approximately 187,099 sqg.m. The
Group’s product quality and established brand name allow our
projects to continue to enjoy pricing premiums over other projects in
the same league.

Project Development Progress

During the period under view, the Group made a number of landmark
achievements that boasted well with our highly flexible strategies in
the challenging environment. We actively pursue transformation of our
businesses from pure residential properties to mixed-use projects
covering a wider geographic reach. During the year, the Group
completed and delivered 115,134 sg.m. to our customers.

Projects in Yangzhi River Delta Area:

o Peninsula on the Bund, Shanghai
The crown-jewel project is a combination of high-end luxury
residences, top-of-the-line hotel and an upscale shopping
arcade, strategically located at the riverfront of the historic Bund,
Shanghai. It occupies a site area of 13,898 sq.m. with total GFA
of 92,520 sg.m.

This signature development is expected to be completed by the
end of 2009, with the anticipated soft opening of Peninsula
Hotel and shopping arcade in 4Q09. The Peninsula Residences
will also be available for sales upon project completion.
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Three “Cambridge” projects in Shanghai

Thanks to its well-established reputation and strong track
record, 3 residential projects under “Cambridge” brand are
progressing well with a total GFA of 84,077 sg.m. completed
and delivered to customers in 2008. These include Cambridge
Forest Newtown with a GFA of about 9,149 sq.m., Cambridge
Waters with a GFA of about 25,102 sq.m., and Cambridge
Watertown with a GFA of about 49,826 sg.m.

The development of Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn was on
track during FY2008 but with the target completion date
extended to suit market environment. The apartment portion of
the project is expected to start presale in 4Q09.

Xishuidong, Wuxi

Located at the heart of Wuxi downtown and next to the ancient
canal, Xishuidong project has a site area of approximately
248,800 sg.m. and a total planned GFA of approximately
695,400 sqg.m. The project is currently the largest city-core
development of Wuxi, and will be designed as an integrated
development comprising residential and commercial
components. The architecture of the project will blend the flairs
of east and west, providing the project at the industrial origin of
China with a modern sense. The construction commenced last
December and the presale will be launched in late 2009.

Global 188, Suzhou

Suzhou Global 188 is a complex of high-graded office building,
commercial spaces and serviced apartments. The project
occupies a total site area of approximately 14,896 sg.m., with a
total planned GFA of approximately 149,308 sg.m. The
development is regarded as a hallmark project in Suzhou
Industrial Park for its unmatched height and superior quality and
design. The Group has also cooperated with Frasers Group of
Singapore for the management of the serviced apartments of
Suzhou project. The construction proceeded smoothly in 2008,
and the presale will be launched in 2009.

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008
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Yushan La-Casa, Changshu

Consisting of town houses, duplexes and low-rise apartments,
the La-Casa has a site area of about 119,769 sgq.m. and a total
GFA of about 86,728 sq.m. The first phase of the project is well
under construction in 2008 and will be ready for presale in mid-
2009.

Huangshan Taiping Lake Resort

In June 2008, the Group further acquired through listing-for-sale
a site of approximately 468,901 sg.m. in the northern part of
Huangshan, close to the legendary scenic Taiping Lake, as a
fourth successive addition to the Group’s multi-phase resort
project. After acquisition, the total site area of the entire resort
project is about 2,283,733 sg.m. and has a buildable GFA of
about 1,141,867 sg.m. While the construction progress of
Crowne Plaza Hotel has been adjusted to suite market
environment, the ancillary recreational facilities have been
progressing well. A golf practicing facility designed by world-
renowned Gary Player is scheduled to trial run by the end of
2009.

Projects in Other Geographic Areas:

The Metropolitan, Kunming

As one of the landmark developments in local market, the
Metropolitan occupies a site area of about 170,806 sq.m., and
will be developed into a high quality multi-phase residential and
commercial project with a total GFA of about 604,994 sg.m.
During the year under review, the first two phases of the project,
comprising about 168,226 sq.m. GFA, were under construction.
The pre-sale of the project was also commenced in March
2008.

The Florea, Haikou

In January 2008, the Group acquired the entire equity interest of
Haikou project. The acquired project has a site area of
approximately 292,174 sq.m. and a GFA of approximately
252,759 sg.m., comprising Spanish-style residential and hotel
developments. When acquired, phase | and Il of the project was
already under construction. In 2008, Florea was one of the best
selling residential projects in Haikou. The acquisition has
provided incoming cash flow and with a valid proof of the
Group’s capability of successfully taking over projects-in-
progress. The first phase with GFA of 100,021 sq.m. was
completed and delivered in June 2008.
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Strategic Alliance with Partners

In line with the Group’s strategic alliances with international well-
known investors, we continue to cooperate with property funds to
enhance our project profile and cash flow position. In May 2008, the
Group reached an agreement with HCP Suzhou Newton Co. Ltd
(“HCP”), a fund managed by Harvest Capital Partners, selling 40% of
the total issued share capital of a subsidiary of the Group for an
approximate consideration of RMB283.5 million, making HCP a co-
investor of the Group’s Suzhou project.

PROSPECTS

Despite temporary market uncertainties, the Group’s strategy is to
deliver a long-term sustainable business growth and to maintain the
soundness of our operational and financial management. The Group
managed to maintain a positive cash flow with a firm momentum
during a challenging year. This constitutes one of the fundamental
building blocks for the Group’s way to capture and take advantage of
the opportunities from forthcoming recoveries in China’s property
industry.

The creation of shareholder value is the underlying driver of every
decision made by the Group. Group’s management team is
committed to improving shareholder value. With this in mind, the
Group has adopted a very prudent approach in land bank
replenishment under uncertain market condition. However, we
will continue our monitoring efforts for any promising acquisition
opportunities that might arise.

While we are currently experiencing a difficult market environment and
unclear direction for macro-economy in the next couple of years, the
Group is exhibiting strong fundamentals with healthy financial position
and revenue outlook. Our prudent acquisition and operation since IPO
will start to bear fruits in 2009 and beyond, as Group’s pipeline of
projects entering into active phases of development. Among which,
we will be excited about and anxious of seeing the Group’s trophy
project — Peninsula on the Bund in Shanghai — to be completed and
opened by end 2009. We are glad to see noticeable recovery in
volumes over 1Q09 and plans to launch projects in various cities with
a total of approximately 800,000 sg.m. available for sale and will
deliver about 380,000 sg.m. to our customers, both of which will be
records in the Group’s development history.
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Looking ahead, we are determined to reprioritize the developments to BEAL  BPEHNELEEEENEE
adapt the market environments, deliver high-quality products to our LNBEEMESERE  AERMNRFREREsE=2
customers, and maintain active yet prudent financial management. Em UERHFEGEZEENTBEERE - &
With these implementations in hand, we are confident to navigate our MAEGLEIEFEBLERENEEAE

way smoothly out of the temporary correction in the operating EBEARLFSAEBEBRE PO

environment and capture further growth opportunities in the coming =i

years.

Stones Tse it R

Group Managing Director and CEO FEEFHLIEFITHALH

23 April 2009 —ETAFEOAZ+=H
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Shanghai Projects Lt i&1EH

Residential Projects ¥ £& H
1. Cambridge Forest Newtown FE#§¥ 8

Site area (sq.m) HEEFE (F5K) © 1,584,334
GFA (sq.m) #8zEsEmiE (FAH2K) ¢ 1,150,697

Brief Introduction EEEEN# :

— One of the largest low-density residential
developments in Shanghai
AP -EAZANEEEEEER

— Within 25 minutes’ driving distance to
the city center
BT OEFEIEAE257EA

— Phase |-V have been completed
FE—HEFEFRHREEK
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2. Cambridge Watertown (Oriental Garden) EE48 7k 48 (3R /5 &Pz )

Site area (sq.m) HBEE (FHK) : 304,011
GFA (sg.m) #B32EEEBE (FHK) 202,629

Brief Introduction B B BN #4 :

— The project has 700 houses; Located in
Qingpu District, west of Shanghai; 25km
from Honggiao Airport
ZEAEMR EEABHERE - A%4F700
BRERE - EpIIE#E25 8

— Adjacent to ancient water town
“Zhujigjiao” ; 1700-year history and
a famous tourist site; excellent
ecological area
AR G1700FE L AKBHE [ KR
Al  NEEMERIRERES

— Lot I-VIlI have been completed; Lot VIII is
under planning and development
FE—ZLHHMMRETI 0 SRR IEER
ZIE R ER

3. Cambridge Waters (Tiffany) EEfE/K & (Fi& &)

Site area (sq.m) 2 EFE (FHK) : 439,667
GFA (sq.m) B3E%EMEBE (F7K) 579,696

Brief Introduction 1 B i & 48 :

— Alarge-scale property development comprising mainly residential properties
targeted at middle class customers
A—EARAEHMEZERER NUNPERERIZEERF,PNEEME
BEH

— Within 5 minutes to the near Metro station and within 20 minutes to the city
center through the subway
MBI Bk D EKIR - BB B AT E TR OMEREE200 &
A

— Phase | &l have been completed; Tiffany (Phase Ill) is under construction and
started pre-sale in 2008
E—HNFE_HREENK  EERE(NE=4)NHERIH TN
20084 fi i B &

BmEN (ER)BRAR/ ZBENEFHR 25



Property Projects Portfolio
2 ESERERL M

Hotel Projects & JE 18 B
1. The Shanghai Peninsula on the Bund Li&5M# ¥ BB E

Site area (sq.m) b 2hiEFE (FHK) : 13,898

GFA (sq.m) #25emiE (F7oK) 92,520

(Peninsula Residence occupied 13,800 sq.m)

(¥ 8HEXQT1513,800F 75 K)

Including B23E :

Peninsula Hotel, Peninsula

Residence, and the

Peninsula Arcade

FEBE  FEEEXABR

FEBES

Brief Introduction BB B EN 4 :

— Peninsula Hotel has a total of 235 rooms; Peninsula Residences has a total of
39 units
FEEEREE235EER  FSBEXAEEGIEEN

— The Peninsula Hotel will have five F & B facilities, including the signature
Peninsula lobby lounge, jazz bar, heli-lounge, Chinese restaurant and rooftop
restaurant
FBIRERE AERYMAR R - BEZEFEAEREE
BT8R MERIKEE  FEERIAEER

— The signature development is expected to be completed by the end of 2009,
with the anticipated soft opening of Peninsula Hotel and Arcade in 4Q 2009;
The Peninsula Residences will be available for sale upon project completion.
E AR R IETE B AT P20090F KL T - +5H/E R+ SESTE R
2009F BAFERE  FREEABENER TR HEE

5. Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn Ei#EE /&R BEE

Site area (sq.m) HBAETE (F72K) : 42,750
GFA (sq.m) #2312 %mEE (FHK) ¢ 59,630
Brief Introduction BB I E N4 :

— The project is strategically located inside
Cambridge Forest Newtown, close to the
airport and the 2010 World Expo Site
ZHEBUREBFESEE A - #aEN
2010t RGBS

— Has atotal of 400 hotel rooms, apartments,
restaurants, conference facilities and clubhouse
BHE40EHEERR - A% - B - 2R
&3

— The project development is generally on track
but with target completion date extended to suit
market environment; The apartment portion is
expected to start presale in 4Q 2009
HEZRREAEETH  BHEREEIRN
MLABRTISIRIE - AEMBHIEF 2009
FEIFTERIRAE
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Yangtze River Delta Projects RI=AMER

1. Suzhou Residential and Commercial Project — Suzhou Global 188

FMNEEIRE — & MIRBR188

Site area (sq.m) HEEE (FHK) 14,896
GFA (sq.m) #2875 mEE (FH2K)  : 149,308

Brief Introduction 18 B & N 48 :

— Located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park, next to Jinji Lake, underground
connected to the subway
AR & ZER A BN TR E R ORI E - 8 5 A0 i 8k

— Alandmark project consisting of serviced apartments and Grade A office Service Apartment /
towers with retail podium; probably the tallest building in the proximity BEADE
EHAEAABETPABFTEREEFBEKNMZIER - ATeEE
& A R = A

— The project is currently under development and will start pre-sale in mid-
2009; Overall project will be completed by 2011
EHEAMEERS - WHEHR2009F FHHAE  EEIEA HR2011
FRITERK

i
W

’_,
e
Bz
-
22
-
=z
=
-
-
-

i

0

¥

1

¥

¥

L}

#

’
:‘-
o

L]
P
B
=
-
B
o
e
-
Lt
Lt
=
i

W

LR

PR

BEEM(ER)BRAR/ ZEENEER 27



Property Projects Portfolio
2 ESERERL M

2. Wuxi Residential and Commercial Project — Wuxi Xishuidong
B|iGEEEE —EBAKR

Site area (sq.m) HHEFE (FF5K) 248,800
GFA (sq.m) #23E%miE (FH2K) 695,400

Brief Introduction B B B &N 4 :

— Currently the largest city-core development project in Wuxi, and will be
designed as an integrated development comprising residential and
commercial components
EHANEANBETROEREE  UHRAKREEEREE—
BMEEIRE

— Located in the heart of Wuxi, and in close proximity to the central commercial
and business district
LRSS T L - B O

— About two hours driving distance to Shanghai
PRk BB/ NRER

— The first phase of the project is well under construction; And will start pre-sale
in 4Q 2009
E—HHERFEIHR - WiR2009F ENEEMBTES

3. Changshu Residential Projects & Z1¥ & 18 B

i. YuShanLa-Casa E |15
Site area (sq.m) #b2hEFE (FHK) © 119,769
GFA (sq.m) #R3E%£mEE (FH5K) 86,728

Brief Introduction BB B &N 4 :
— Situated at the fringe of Yu Mountain, facing the national park and with
completed amenities and infrastructures
URRILES  BHRERAE  BE TSN XEHEREERE
— To be developed into a prestigious project in the area consisting of
townhouses, duplexes and low-rise apartment
BRAR/EHRNE SNIREEABEMNEZEEXEA
— Thefirst phase of the project is well under construction in 2008 and will be
ready for presale in mid-2009
THE —HIR2008F NRFELIH - WAEHR2009F FHhHRKBTESE

ii. Emerald Bay i4 i 35 2 &
Site area (sq.m) Hb2hEFE (FAK) : 107,391
GFA (sq.m) #83Z&£MEE (FHK) 121,325

Brief Introduction B & E N4 :
— Situated in the unique location and is adjoining the scenic Shang Lake
to the north along with impressive mountain views

FZHEMPEAREENMTILA - WHEES AERBULAILS

— The project is currently under planning and design
I8 B DIEET BIF 2% ET
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Kunming Residential Project EB{X=E1EB _

The Metropolitan EBHERE X
Site area (sq.m) th2hEFE (FAHXK) @ 170,806
GFA (sq.m) #8E5EmE (FAK) @ 604,994

Brief Introduction BB &N 4 :

— To be one of the landmark developments in local market
BAEMMEERIAR 2 —

— To be developed into a high quality multi-phase residential and commercial
project
RERKA—HEEBEHBERATKREESZSE

— Phase | &lll are currently under construction and Iaunched presale in March
2008. The overall project will be completed in phases by the end of 2011
—HAE = A B AT M TREER I 2R 2008F3 AR & + BABIA B #2011
FIEATEZHATER

wBOE=EIEHE

Haikou Residential Project

The Florea i O 84 15}
Site area (sq.m) HuBAETE (FH2K) 292,174
GFA (sq.m) #8Z&miE (FHK) 252,759

Brief Introduction & B &/ 13
Located at the first-tier waterfront in the northern part of Haikou, the Florea
enjoys an unobstructed ocean view, comprising Spanish-style residential and
hotel/retail development
RBEEEEWMEOLBH—FER - RiGLHE—EEERER
= %E%ﬁiﬂi%ﬁ&%&i@)ﬁ/z%ﬁéﬁ =

— In 2008, the Florea was one of the best selling residential projects in Haikou
LAk B2008EE B N RIGIHIETEE 2 —

— InJanuary 2008, SPG Land acquired the entire equity interest of Haikou
project. When acquired, phase | and Il of the project were already under

construction
BEBMMN2008F1 AT/ BRIBAEMNMARE - R —HE_HERE
i

Huangshan Resort Project L EREHEE 3

Huangshan Taiping Lake Resort & Il A ¥ HE R E
Site area (sq.m) 24 EFE (FHK) : 2,283,733
GFA (sq.m) #Z2ZEmia (F5oK) 1,141,867

Brief Introduction 18 B & / &

— Located in the northern part of Huangshan, close to the legendary scenic
Taiping Lake
LR E LA ED - AR 2 2 10 B R B 3t K 8

— While the construction progress of Huangshan Crowne Plaza Hotel has been
adjusted to suit market environment, the ancillary recreational facilities has
been progressing well
FLATHEBRAAENEEEREZTSERNE  KHPHH
MIRR IR P R

— A golf practicing facility designed by world-renowned Gary Player is
scheduled to trial run by the end of 2009
ittt RER A SRR Gary Playeri& st M9 B A BRI SR BB E
R2009F FEHE &

— Chedi hotelis under planning
ChediF & 1E7E 47 &
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W Lo AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results and Dividends

During the year under review, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately RMB1,394,993,000 (2007: RMB1,714,507,000),
representing a decrease of 18.6%. Net profit dropped 65.3% to
approximately RMB188,005,000 (2007 (restated): RMB542,270,000)
and the portion attributable to equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB151,499,000 (2007 (restated): RMB517,614,000),
representing a decline of 70.7%. Basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to RMBO0.146
and RMBO0.146 (2007 (restated): RMB0.499 and RMBO0.462)
respectively for the twelve months ended 31 December 2008. The
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMB4.97
cents per share.

Revenue booked from property sales dropped 21% to
RMB1,269,102,000 (2007: RMB1,606,718,000). The decline was
mainly attributable to the dramatically shrinking transaction volume
during the second half year given the difficult macro market condition.
Net profit was further battered by the absence of an one-off revaluation
gain asin 2007.

32 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

2 7% [0l B8
XERKRE

Bé@%ﬁir;' AEBHBSBEEHNAR
#1,304,903000 T( Z E T+ F: AR
1,714,507,000 7T ) * % 218.6% o 4 % T f&
65.3% %2 # A K ¥188,005000 T( = & &
+tF(&EH ) AR ¥542,270,000 7T ) -
mARFRERE ARSI *Z’J%)\Efﬁ%
151,499,000 T (ZEF L F (K &F) :

¥ 517,614,000 7T ) * & 2 70.7% ° Eﬂz?t:zc
ENF+_A=+—BL+=@A  AR7A
REFBEABGCEREAREERFN DA A
ARBO146 T R ARKO146T(ZZTE £

F(EEH): ARB0.4997T & A R #0.462
) EECEEEINKRIEBREERARE
4977

MEHEEHRSB KT TEBABE AR
1,269,102,000 T( = T T £ F: AR #
1,606,7180007T ) > NN EEH R A E™
BHRABAREMER T L FERGERES
MW MABERBE_STLFH—RBEMR
WammE— S ZHEHE -



Property Development

During the year, while the Group generally adhered to its completion
and delivery schedule as originally planned, it adjusted the
development progress of some hotel projects to suit the market
environment. Details of completed and delivered projects, aggregating
a total GFA of 115,134 sgq.m. (2007: 147,925 sqg.m.) are highlighted in
the following table:
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VIEBR

FR AEBABEFAERTTENET
ERfNEHEK ERTAESETEEEEN
BEREZTUINEMSERE BRIRERH
HEMBREEAMBEISIHUTAR(ZEE
HF 147,925 F FOK) MFH B TRAAR

Projects Completed and
Delivered in 2008

—ZEEN\FERIR
XM BREER
Approximate
Approximate GFA Sold
GFA Completed Delivered
Item ERIHN EEHERM
5B EEMEE BREXEES
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase IV i 5 — FHIVH — 223
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VC BEfg £ & — $VCHA — 1,394
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VD B ¥ & — FVDH - 1,586
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VE FEf& ¥ & — S VEH — 2,583
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VF EEf& £ & — SEVFH - 3,363
Cambridge Forest Newtown — The Hampton g ¥ & — + L& 4,805 —
Cambridge Waters — Phase | FEig K &8 — 153 - 126
Cambridge Waters — Phase || EE4& K #8 — 251187 17,740 24,976
Cambridge Watertown — Villas FE & K #8 — 7l 2 49,850 13,884
Cambridge Watertown — Townhouses F 15 7K 48 — & 5 5l 22 19,751 35,942
Haikou Florea — Phase I-A /8 A 88138y — Z51-AHf 7,547 15,143
Haikou Florea — Phase I-B /8 O 4813, — 5 1-BHf 5,935 15,914
Total #8 &t 105,628 115,134
Property Sales Performance VIEEERR
With regard to the property sales results, the Group’s sales was lower MYEHEEEMS ARMHERBEEL

than that in the same period of 2007 as a result of deteriorating market
environment. Amid uncertainties surrounding stock markets and the
overall China economy in wake of the outbreak of the global financial
tsunami originated from the US sub-prime mortgage crisis, Group’s
sales activities subdued greatly in the second half of the year. In
particular, transaction volume reached a trough in the third quarter. For
the year under review, the total contracted sales area of the Group
amounted to approximately 187,099 sg.m. (2007: 169,043 sq.m.),
while total contracted sales value amounted to RMB1,829,771,000
(2007: RMB2,079,330,000). Among the Group’s projects available for
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sale during the year, the “Cambridge” series of suburban, large-scale
and multi-phase projects achieved steady contracted sales. The
projects of Metropolitan in Kunming and Florea in Haikou were
successfully launched during the year under review. Whereas sales of
Cambridge Waters, Cambridge Forest Newtown and Cambridge
Watertown remained the major revenue contributors of the Group,
contracted sales of projects from districts outside Shanghai
contributed 33% of the total contracted sales.

B URBBOARSZHERER RS
RIBMERENEGNHERE - ERABRT AR
NEgOREERRBNEESFEIEMNELT
% BRKM  ERFERERKBOHHE
DRAEENTIERDZERE - LB
BEHENGNHEEREAHEERENII °

Approximate area

sold and delivered

in 2008  Approximate sales
—Z2Z\E recognized in 2008 Average
Project BERRMAH “ZEZ\EER selling price
BHE BHEE MBAHER THUER
(sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB/sq.m.)
(FH*K) (AR®TR) (AR%®/FHX)
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase IV BB ¥ & — £IVH] 223 3,170 5,991
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VC BB ¥ 5 — EVCH 1,394 10,983 7,879
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VD 1§+ 8 — £VDH 1,586 31,180 19,660
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VE 1§+ & — FVEH 2,583 56,929 22,040
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VF B ¥ & — FVFH 3,363 119,350 35,489
Cambridge Waters — Phase | BEB/K# — 515 126 765 6,065
Cambridge Waters — Phase Il FE1& 7K # — F 1148 24,976 244,923 9,806
Cambridge Watertown — Villas Bk 4 — 7|2 13,884 230,094 16,573
Cambridge Watertown — Townhouses F &7k 45 — &Rl 2 35,942 395,391 11,001
Haikou Florea — Phase I-A /B 0 &1 — F1-AH) 15,143 81,459 5,379
Haikou Florea — Phase I-B /§ 0 415, — %1-BH 15,914 94,858 5,961
Total #5f 115,134 1,269,102 11,023

Strategic Cooperation KEEE1E

In May 2008, the Group reached an agreement to cooperate with
HCP Suzhou Newton Co. Ltd (“HCP”), a fund managed by Harvest
Capital Partners Limited, by selling 40% of the entire issued share
capital of a subsidiary of the Group for a consideration of RMB283.5
million, making HCP a co-investor of the Group’s Suzhou project. The
transaction contributed approximately a RMB61.1 million profit to the
Group during the period under review and also strengthened the cash
position of the Group.
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Hotel Development

With a view to generating long-term recurrent income, the Group has
invested in hotel properties and cooperated with reputable names in
the industry, such as the Peninsula Group and the InterContinental
Hotel Group.

Following topping-out in March 2008, construction of ultra-luxurious
Peninsula Hotel on the Bund in Shanghai progressed smoothly. The
hotel portion is tentatively scheduled for a soft opening in September
2009. Meanwhile, the serviced apartment portion is also ready for
launching into the market in late 2009/early 2010.

As for the Holiday Inn Hotel complex in Pudong/Nanhui area, the
project will proceed in strict adherence to the original blueprint but
with the target completion date extended to suit market environment.
The serviced apartment phase of this project will be available for pre-
sale in 4Q2009.

In light of the rapidly changing market conditions, the development
priority of the Huangshan project had been modified to the
construction of ancillary recreational facilities and ultimately
development of the hotel and residential apartments as the original
blueprint prescribed.

In November the Group signed a memorandum of understanding to
appoint Frasers Hospitality to manage its 49-storey upscale serviced
apartments located in the premium CBD area in the Suzhou Industrial
Park.

Investment Properties and Ancillary Services

To generate stable and recurrent income, the Group also holds some
of its properties for lease. As of 31 December 2008, the Group leased
an aggregate GFA of approximately 92,035 sg.m. (2007: 91,420
sg.m.). The Group operates a post-secondary college (Shanghai Sipo
Polytechnic) and a training centre (Shanghai Sipo Vocational Technical
Training Centre). The Group also operates one of the most prestigious
kindergartens in Shanghai (The China Welfare Institute Kindergarten),
supplementing the Group’s developments with quality educational
business. Such investment properties and ancillary educational
business constitutes a minor but stable operation income of the
Group, representing approximately 6% of the Group’s total revenue for
the year under review.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Land Bank Replenishment

It is the Group’s strategy to maintain a portfolio of land bank that is
sufficient to support the Group’s development pipeline for the next
four to five years. The Group continues to develop large-scale and
multi-phase residential projects in the Yangtze River Delta and in
provincial capital cities with regional economic importance, targeting
middle to upper-income customers.

Up to the date of this announcement, the Group had a quality land
bank with a total GFA of approximately 3.47 million sg.m., of which
approximately 88% of the land bank will be used for the development
of mid to high end residential projects, approximately 5% for
commercial property development, and the remaining 7% for hotel
and recreational development. During the year under review, the
Group has acquired approximately 487,000 sg.m. of GFA in new
development projects, adding its land bank portfolio by 8% from 3.2
million sg.m. as at 31 December 2007 excluding those constructed
and sold areas. Capital expenditures on land acquisitions amounted
to approximately RMB560 million for the year under review.

The Group has strategically and prudently expanded its land bank
through a couple of acquisitions during the first half of the year under
review:

o Haikou City, Hainan Province
In January 2008, the Group acquired the entire equity interest of
a project company in Haikou at a consideration of RMB417
million. The acquired project has a site area of approximately
292,174 sg.m. and a GFA of approximately 252,759 sg.m.,
comprising residential and hotel developments. The acquisition
has provided a great opportunity to the Group in Hainan’s
property market, one of the most popular resort destinations in
China. This is also in line with the Group’s strategy to develop
projects in provincial capitals.

. Huangshan City, Anhui Province

In June 2008, the Group acquired a site in the northern part of
Huangshan District, close to the legendary scenic Tai Ping Lake,
through listing-for-sale. The acquired land, a fourth successive
addition to the Group’s multi-phase Huangshan project, has
increased the aggregate site area of the project to approximately
2.28 million sg.m. with an aggregate floor area reaching 1.14
million sg.m.
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Given the uncertain market environment, the Group adopted a
cautious and prudent approach in land bank replenishment
during the second half of 2008.

In light of the unclear market outlook, the Group will continue
exercise with extreme caution in regard to future land
acquisitions and conduct more thorough research and analysis
before pulling any trigger.

Property Management and Related Services

During the year under review, Shanghai New Independence House, a
subsidiary of the Group providing property management services,
generated property management and related services income, after
intra-group elimination, amounted to approximately RMB23,528,000,
representing an increase of 19% when compared to the previous year.
As of 31 December 2008, the total floor area under Group’s
management was around 1.22 million sg.m.

Outlook

Looking ahead, while we are still sanguine about the long-term growth
prospect of the property industry, we will adopt a more cautious
stance in the near term in the light of the uncertainties surrounding the
global economy, effectiveness of various government supportive
measures and regain of confidence on consumption and investments.

We expect the market activities will return to the stabilized levels in the
second half of 2009, as government policies in rescue of the sector
and country’s economy as a whole start to materialize. Until then we
can introduce incremental increases in our sales programs to
orchestrate a recovery path for the overall pricing trend.

Despite the weak market sentiment, sales of Tiffany (Cambridge
Waters Phase Ill) was encouraging in the fourth quarter of 2008 . Such
strong momentum continued in the first four months of our financial
year 2009, which laid a solid foundation for more upbeat sales
performance for 2009.

While the overall real estate market environment in China remains
challenging throughout 2009, as the central government ploughs in an
unprecedented amount of resources to avert the country from a
recession, we continue to maintain a cautiously yet optimistic attitude
toward the medium-to-long term prospects of the property market.
With the Group’s prudent land acquisition strategy, proven execution
capabilities and professional management team, we will strive to
generate satisfactory returns for our shareholders and develop more
quality properties for our customers.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Revenue

The total revenue for the Group for the year 2008 was
RMB1,394,993,000. In terms of the overall unit selling price and
volume of transactions, a table of analysis on the sales of properties is
provided as follows:

Br %% o
Wy 3
ARER-FENFHBREAARKE

1,394,993,0007C - RERBELEBELRFHE
mE - BEMEHEEENDTERFINOT -

2008 2007
—EENE —EELE
Average

GFA sold Average selling price GFA sold Average
& delivered selling price change % & delivered selling price

BERRN THEE BERXM
MEEER THER 29 MEEERE FHEE
(sq.m) (RMB/sq.m) (sq.m) (RMB/sq.m)
(AR%/ (AR®/
Type E Al (7 K) FHXK) (FHAK) FHAK)

T

Villas 5| & 20,282 20,283 19% 49,613 17,033
Apartments and townhouses 2 & [ i# # 5| 22 94,852 9,043 17% 98,312 7,748
Total # &t 115,134 11,023 1% 147,925 10,862

In 2008, the Group completed the development and delivered
residential units in Phase IV and V of Cambridge Forest Newtown,
Phase | and Il of Cambridge Waters, Lots 2-6 of Cambridge
Watertown and Phase | of Haikou Florea. Therefore, the total GFA
delivered reached 115,134 sg.m. (2007: 147,925 sg.m.).
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Segmental Information

The Group’s business is currently categorized into four operating
segments — sales of property, lease of property, property
management and other related services, and education. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

7 EPE R
ZNESEI0E 3SR AW TR
XHE MEHEE YWEEET
BREHBE  AKENRBEASNOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

KENE — W
nHE

JrMBF'&%HE

2008 2007 Change
Revenue Stream U # i —EENE —ETLF BB
RMB '000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AR® T ARB T T ARBF T
Sales of property 47 % 5 & 1,269,102 1,606,718 (337,616)
Rental income & W A 26,920 29,585 (2,665)
Property management income & other related service
V03B I R R A R AR st 27,245 11:299
Education # & 60,472 50,961 9,511
Total 42 51 1,394,993 1,714,507
Sales of property remains the Group’s core business activity MEHEEDAAEBNZLER H-2ZZT
representing 91% of the total revenue in 2008 while the growths in NEFEBWZFENN1% > MPESEMEMBAR

both the property management and related services and education (up
27% yoy) segments were improved over 2007. Rental income
decreased by 9% from approximately RMB29.6 million to
approximately RMB26.9 million.

Cost of Sales

Total cost of sales in 2008 decreased significantly by 20% from
RMB1,072 million to RMB853 million, in line with the decrease in
revenue.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit decreased by 15.6% from RMB642 million in 2007 to
RMB542 million in 2008. Gross profit margin for the full year improved
from 37% in 2007 to 38.8% in 2008, as a result of unit selling price
increase over the year.

Other Operating Income
In 2008, other operating income decreased by 64% to RMB3.3
million.
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Operating Expenses

In 2008, the selling and marketing costs increased to RMB69 million
from RMB66 million in 2007. In order to improve the sales, substantial
marketing campaigns were launched and professional property
agents were appointed in 2008.

Administrative expenses increased from RMB152 million to RMB158
million, representing a rise of 4% over the year 2007, mainly because
of more development projects were undertaken by the Group in 2008.

Other operating expenses decreased to RMB7.1 million from RMB9.1
million in 2007.

Net Finance Expenses

The net finance expenses of RMB130 million in 2008 compared to net
finance expenses of RMB86 million in 2007 (restated). This significant
increase over the previous year was mainly attributable to revaluation
loss of convertible bonds.

Share of Loss of Associates

The Group continued to suffer a net loss from share of operating
results of associates in 2008 that amounted to RMB12.7 million as
compared to a net loss of RMB8.2 million in 2007 from the associates.
This loss was mainly attributable to the loss arose from the Peninsula
Waitan project which is currently under development.

Revaluation Gain on Investment Properties

The Group recorded a revaluation gain of RMB25 million for 2008,
which was mainly due to the general appreciation of market value of
the Group’s investment properties such as Tian Runfa Hypermarket
and British School during the year under review.

Income Tax

Income tax decreased by 32% from RMB252 million in 2007 to
RMB172 million in 2008, while the effective income tax rate increased
from 17% in 2007 to 25% in 2008. In 2008, most of the group
subsidiaries such as Shanghai Cambridge, Shanghai Oriental and
Shanghai Zhuijia adopted the income tax rate of 25%. The reduction in
tax amount was mainly attributable to lower sales volume.
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Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company
The Group achieved a profit attributable to equity holders of RMB151
million (2007 (restated): RMB518 million), down RMB367 million over
the previous year. Earnings per share declined by 71% to RMB0.146
from RMBO0.499 in 2007 (restated).

Net profit margin for the year under review narrowed from 32% in
2007 (restated) to 13% in 2008, which was mainly attributable to the
fact that in 2007, the Company obtained a gain on the disposal of
equity interest in subsidiaries and investment revaluation.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group derived its sources of fund primarily from income generated
from business operations, bank borrowings and cash proceeds raised
from the issuance of the convertible bonds in late April 2007, which
were used to finance its business operations and investment in
development projects. Net gearing (total borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents including restricted cash over total equity) stood at a
level of 47% as at 31 December 2008. The Group had total cash and
cash equivalents of RMB943 million, total borrowings of RMB2,751
million and the stronger equity base of RMB3,848 million as at 31
December 2008 (2007 (restated): RMB3,632 million).

Of the total, RMB580 million was repayable within one year while
RMB2,171 million was repayable after more than one year. The
effective interest rate for 2008 was 6.93% (2007: 6.93%).

Credit Policy

Trade receivables mainly arose from sales and lease of properties.
Receivables in respect of sales and lease of properties are settled in
accordance with the terms stipulated in the sales and purchase
agreements or lease agreements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2008, the Group pledged properties and land use
rights with carrying amount of RMB2,941,693,000 to secure bank
facilities granted to the Group. The total outstanding secured loan
balance as at 31 December 2008 amounted to RMB1,516,860,000.
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Financial Guarantees
As at 31 December 2008, the Group provided guarantees to banks
for:

o R
R-BENF+-A=+—0 KEEHMN
TEEMBTREER :

As at
31 December 2008
R-ZBENF+=

As at
31 December 2007
RoBBHE+=

A=+-—H A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Mortgage facilities granted to purchasers MYEBNERIZIBER
of property units RHEAER 298,117 266,038
Capital Commitment B AR R E
2008 2007
—BEN\F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREEFTT
Property development activities: VIEBERET
— Contracted but not provided for — BRIOEREE 3,281,935 3,872,228
— Authorized but not contracted for — BEREERETY 4,369,492 3,618,948
Total Bt 7,651,427 7,491,176

Management of Proceeds from the 2007 Convertible
Bond Issuance

On 27 April 2007, the Company issued USD Settled Zero Coupon
Convertible Bonds due in 2012 in the aggregate principal amount of
RMB1,158,000,000. The Company had applied the proceeds in the
existing as well as new development projects, land acquisitions as well
as repayment of borrowings. The Convertible Bonds will mature and
due for redemption in 2012.

On 29 December 2008, the Company repurchased 1,000 units of
Convertible Bonds with total nominal value of RMB100,000,000.
These bonds were cancelled upon repurchase. The bonds were
repurchased at a total consideration of US$5,858,946, which is
equivalent to RMB40,000,000. This transaction helped the Group to
reduce its debt in favorable terms and brought a gain of approximately
RMB58,252,000 to the Group’s consolidated income statement of
2008.
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SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in notes 3 and 4 of the consolidated financial
statements, in 2008 the Group had not entered into other transactions
involving substantial acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or
associated companies.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed a total of 868
employees (2007: 731 employees). The Group has adopted a
performance-based rewarding system to motivate its staff. In addition
to a basic salary, year-end bonuses are offered to those staff with
outstanding performance. Share option schemes were adopted to
attract and retain talents to contribute to the Group. In relation to staff
training, the Group also provides different types of programs for its
staff to improve their skills and develop their respective expertise.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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EXRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company treasure the
shareholders’ confidence and trust in the ability and vision of the
management team and have pledged to maintain an open and
responsive attitude in shareholders’ communications that are on par
with other leading coporations in the industry. The Board has been
adamant in upholding best practice in corporate governance to
ensure the timeliness, transparency and fairness of disclosure to
maximize the Group’s corporate values and will continue to enhance
its disclosure practices to display an exemplary corporate governance
practice.

It is the Board’s belief that a sound corporate governance system has
been and will remain as an instrumental element to the healthy growth
of the Group.

Compliance with the CG Code

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) and the rules on the Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Rules”) as set out respectively in Appendices 14 and
23 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
for the year ended 31 December 2008, except for code provision A.4.2
with respect to the re-election by shareholders of all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy at the first general meeting after their
appointment, as explained in paragraph A.4.2 below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEEARER &)
(Continued)
Compliance with the CG Code (Continued) BIMESEERSE (&)

The following outlines how the Company has adopted and complied TEHMMAATMAHEARETLES A
with the CG Code and the CG Rules to achieve good corporate HTHRMESTAREFANUNERR T

governance. EBRIFEIE °

A DIRECTORS A ES

A.1 The board A1 EEE
Principle of Good Governance: The board should assume RIFEARRE - EEoEAREEE L
responsibility for leadership and control of the company and be HIATIHETE TEEZ2aE(EELFTE
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the BRI - BEEELFESAAIFEZNRTIE
company. The directors should take decisions objectively in the TEERERTE -

interests of the company.

Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2008

SFRIMR S REETF? ARBAR-BENFHETFHE

A1A

Board meetings should be v The Board held nine meetings in 2008. Individual

held at least four times a year. attendance of each director on a named basis is set out
EXRSRREELEFE below:

TR ° EEER_ZEENFETAREGRZ BUESR

RETARENBEALSERAINAT ¢

Executive directors: 71 TEF

Mr. WANG Weixian 6/9
TRERE

Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones 9/9
AR

Ms. WANG Xuling 4/9
FRELL

Mr. TAM Lai Ling (Note 1) 2/8

migwm s (f5ET)

Non-executive director: FF#7TEE -

Mr. LAI Kin, Jerome (Note 2) 8/9
RiEsxTE (Hit2)
BEEMWGER)ERAR/ ZEBN\EERK 47
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A DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.1 The board (Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<F RIS =REETF?

A1.1 (Continued)
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A EE(g)
Al EESE (&)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATR_BENEWETHE

Al (&)

Independent non-executive directors: B JEHTTEE :

Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 4/9
9RO &

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 4/9
FREE(KFHL)

Mr. JIANG Simon X. 4/9
B EE

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 4/9
BRELE

Notes:

et

1.

Mr. Tam Lai Ling resigned on 30 November 2008
and 8 meetings were held by the Board prior to his
resignation.
BEBRER-_FTENFL—A=Z+ARH
£ -REBER  EF2AFTNAREE -

Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome was re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director on 1
January 2009.
REEFEFR-_ZBZNEF-A-—AHBTES
AERIFERITES -



DIRECTORS (Continued)

The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRSC

A1.2

All directors should be given
opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for regular board
meetings.
MEEEREHAKSIRED
B FRIATREES

&y 3£ 22X
= AR *i °

A1.3

Notice of at least 14 days
should be given of a regular
board meeting.
ROIEHEEFEERAR
AIRATI4AREEH @A -

NS

A14

All directors should have
access to the advice and
services of the Company
Secretary.
FIEEZRYAIER QA
MEHNERRRD -

A1.5

Minutes of board meetings
and meetings of board
committees should be kept by
a duly appointed secretary of
the meeting and such minutes
should be open for inspection.
EEggaRNEEFREE
TERNLEEHEEE
AEENWERT B
TeRLBEAHRLARESE
B o

Compliance ?
=REF?

Corporate Governance Report
rERERBE

A EE(g)
Al EESE (&)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATR_BENEWEFHE

All directors are invited to include matters in the agenda
for regular Board meetings.

MTBEEHRBFROIBANEFRIIATRESES

Sy 22 2
T %ﬂ': °

The Company generally gives 14 days prior written
notice of a regular Board meeting and reasonable prior
notice for aII other Board meetings.
ARARBITEREFSSZ —REEMI4REL
iﬁLﬂ MBITHEEMESTESRTSEA
EEBRHEZHBA -

All directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with.
FFIBESEHUAESAANENERRERS - XU
MREESEFRABEERAB LA EET

The minutes are kept by the Company’s legal advisers
and they are open for inspection by the directors and the
members of the Board committees.
BERALHALRREEERRE  BEZEFgRL
HAHEERESTELZEGNNESH -

i (ER%) BIR AR/ —EENFEFH 49
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The board (Continued)

Code Provisions
SFRIRC

Compliance ?

REETF?

A1.6

Minutes should record in v
sufficient detail the matters
considered by the board and
decisions reached. Draft and
final versions of minutes
should be sent to all directors
for their comment and records
within a reasonable time after
the meeting.
SRLBEFACHETE
ZEEMEBRFHENMMER
RERFE - EF LN
MeREREEEHRER
BRHEERBEANTE T
FEF UHRFERXRE
REREHE -

A1.7

There should be a procedure v
agreed by the board to enable
the directors to seek
independent professional
advice, at the company’s
expense, to assist them to
discharge their duties.
RAAGEGEE-BRES
EEEMIEF BEFH
SKEYEEXEER  UH
BREBTHRBRE  BR
BARIXN -

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

A EE(g)
Al EESE (&)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking the
minutes and all the matters considered and the decisions
reached in the Board meeting are recorded in sufficient
detail. The draft minutes are sent to the directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final versions are sent to all directors for their
records.

AREWEBRFHERRLE  SRLHFALE
THEEFEER LMEREENMEBRTENF
B @RLCHENTREEREBRAGZERED
EEFEATETHAEES  UHESFREEER
K IFHE o

All the directors have recourse to independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.
MEEZEVASKBYERER  EAAARA
St



DIRECTORS (Continued)

The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

SPRIRSC

A1.8

If a substantial shareholder
or a director has a conflict
of interest in a matter which
the board has determined
to be material, a board
meeting should be held (and
not by way of circulation

or by a committee).
Independent non-executive
directors who, and whose
associates, have no material
interest in the transaction
should be present at such
board meeting.
WMEERRERIEENRES
CSEETEBERNFESF
FHEMN@ER - BIERT
Exgga(MTERERE
BXHhARENZHE
EgRE) AERHEBKE
ATERRZ SR EAREM
BEANGWBILIENTE
EHRELEFHEES S
E
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A EE(g)
Al EESE (&)

Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2008
=REETF? EARR=BEN\FNETFHE
v The voting and quorum requirements specified in

the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”)
conform with the Code’s requirements.
AARERMB(THE]D FAHEINRERERETE
ABREHFETRIBHRE o

B
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a clear division
of responsibilities at the board level — the management of the
board and the day-to-day management of the business — to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

Code Provisions

PRI

A2.1

The roles of chairman

and chief executive officer
should be separate and
should not be performed
by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities
between them should be
clearly established and set
out in writing.
FRETHREZN AEE
FEo TEa—ARK
RE-REZHEBENZ
DEBREREIL S E
o

A2.2

The Chairman should
ensure all directors are
properly briefed on issues
arising at board meetings.
FTREEERMEESEY T
EPMERESEGR LM
REMER -

A2.3

The Chairman should
ensure that the directors
receive adequate
information, which must be
complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.
FTREERRESE KKK
FEEH FHEEHART
BRAE -

Compliance ?
=EREF?
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A EFE(p)

A2 ETFERITHAR
RIEARA: CEEENEE WA
AMEF(NEEENEEREKMNE
BEB)EERESHK  LUHERESN
IR AR M1 o

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATAR-BENFNETFHSE

Mr. Wang Weixian is the Chairman who is
responsible for the overall investment and business
development strategies of the Group. Mr. Tse Sai
Tung, Stones is the Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for the Group’s business operations
and execution of the Group’s long term business
development policies.

TRELEEREIR BEASENERBEBRKRE
RERER HETREERITHER BELXE
EEXBLE VTAENTASENRPERER
R e

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to

provide the whole Board with all the information
that is required for the discharge of the Board'’s
responsibilities.
FTRNARBEREANESTE2RBNERMTA
HETEFEBRAEAENER -

The Chairman has been continually improving

the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of
information to directors.

IR BENBAEMNESFNEHTEEHNRHEER -



A4

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition

Principle of Good Governance: The board should have a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the company. The board should include a
balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) so that it can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

Code Provisions

P RUR S

Compliance ?
=REF?

The independent non- v
executive directors should

be expressly identified

as such in all corporate

communications.
PTBERGBAS - FERM®
HABIERITEEN S

{/\ °

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new directors. There should be plans in place for orderly
succession for appointments to the board. All directors should

A
A3

A4

Corporate Governance Report
rERERBE

ETE(#)

EEEMAm
REEARE : EFREAMED AN
EBREIERNYERORER - 8
FRTRTEERENTEF (BB
SIHATEE) BN BUE B O R
e EREES AL LB
11 -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AARN=BENFHNEFFE

The composition of the Board, by category of the
directors, including names of Chairman, executive
directors and independent non-executive directors,
is disclosed in all corporate communications.
RES(BEETRE BTESRBIUINTES
WHE) D ENESSHEKRAMERRAMPE
THE -

ZE -EBKER

RERRA : ARIEHTER - F
EZEEREEHENHESZERFRF -
EXgRYENE  URBHFEREZE
BEEF -FAEFHEREHHEEE

be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

Code Provisions Compliance ?

SFRIERC =REBT?
A.4.1
Non-executive directors v

should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-
election.
FBMTEFEARTEE
H - WRABEXEER -

BEZEHEES -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATR_BENEWETFHE

The term of appointment of the independent non-
executive directors is one year renewable by
mutual agreement on an annual basis.
BYERATESNERAE —F  AIBFREFWH
BEITRELD -

Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

BEBEARGMAE  2BESEHN =902 —(THEA
BITESERRFATES) ERNEERRAF
AEFHESRIEXENER KEEREEE
LDEB=ZFHRESR IR -
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A DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.4 Appointment, Re-election and Removal (Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<F RIS =REETF?
A4.2

All directors appointed to Deviation explained

fill a causal vacancy should 2 {E 5% FH A IR & = 18

be subject to election by
shareholders at the first
general meeting after their
appointment.

FT B /5 4E # BRI 2= 1R i &
ZENEFEERTEZR
ETENEERRAE® F#&
EREH)ER o

Every director, including
those appointed for a
specific term, should be
subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every
three years.
BEEF(BEZEERERE
THNER)EELEF=F
WESTR—R -
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A EE(#)
Ad ZEEF -EERER (£)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The Company’s Articles provide that any director
S0 appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election
at that meeting.

ARRAARE  REMEREEZRMEESTSR
ETHEMNEEHEEBRETERRBFRAEHERR
I EREEFERRAS LEIEMESR -

Such arrangement is considered appropriate in light
of the requirement of paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3
to the Listing Rules which requires that any person
appointed by the directors to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

EREMRAMEE=ZF4QRBE - REHER=
RMEEEZINEMALIHECRETERR
BEREHRRLE  ERSETFERERIEME
B BZBALRHEEREE

Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at least once

every three years.

BEARFMAA  2BEFHN=Z22—(THAE
MITEFERRIVTESF) ERNBERREF
AE THESRIBESENER HEREEE
VEG=—FHAESR Ko



DIRECTORS (Continued)

(Continued)

Code Provisions

SPRIRSC

A5

Every newly appointed
director should receive

a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction,

on the first occasion

of his appointment,

and subsequently such
briefing and professional
development as is
necessary, to ensure that he
has a proper understanding
of the operations and
business of the company
and that he is fully aware
of his responsibilities under
statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable
legal requirements and other
regulatory requirements

and the business and
governance policies of the
company.
BEHZENEETHE
EERERZERER
2 ERXREREM S
EHRRMEAEA  EREITE
ESHFINTAREE
gall o AMEREEQAH
BEREBHEEE IR
B UARRDHMBEERSY
BREBEERREB®EE . £W
MA - BEAEORERE
MEERTEUARRAED
B Ve IR P 2B A HE ) B

= ©

Compliance ?

REETF?
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A EE(#)
A5 (4)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

On appointment, new directors will be briefed by
the Chairman and senior executives on the Group’s
corporate goals and objectives, activities and
business, strategic plans and financial situations.
They will also be provided with orientation materials
package including induction of the duties and

responsibilities of directors of a listed company.
ITREEERTERAEERAEZENEEFREZER
MREHEBFLAEENCEXBEEIRAN  ED
RER - KRB S RHBMAR - K E G ERE
H—ENHBER(BRELTAAEENBENRSE
EAH) ©

The Company aims at keeping all directors updated
on the Listing Rules, statutory and regulatory
requirements.

ARREEBMBEEFTHNERFOLMAA - 0K

EREERE -

B3
I D)—
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

(Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?

PRI =REF?
A.5.2
The functions of non- v

executive directors should
at least include:
FPITEENHEEE D
BiE

(@  tobring anindependent
judgement at board
meetings;
REEFEZE LRRM
B HI

(b)  totake the lead where
potential conflicts of

interests arise;
RHEBEENFR
MEHEEERESSG
ER

(c) toserveonboard
committees, if invited;

and
ERETEESEE
EHWKE Rk

(d) toscrutinise the
Company’s performance
in achieving agreed
corporate goals and
objectives, and
monitoring the reporting
of performance.
FHRBERHARBNKRR

EERERRERESR
BRE® WERR
IR H) B R IB M o
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A EE(g)
A5 (4)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATAR-BENFNETFHSE

All independent non-executive directors serve on

the audit and remuneration committees of the

Company.

%ﬁﬁ4#ﬁﬂ§$ﬂﬁ&$@?%ﬁ§AE
YMEBEgKE -

All independent non-executive directors are

invited to participate in Board meetings so that
independent judgement can be brought at such
meetings.
EBUATESFHREEZNETFS S A
ERREEZES S LAMRHENB I HE -
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DIRECTORS (continued) A EFE(p)

(Continued) A5 (&)

Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2008

<F RIS =BREBF? EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

A5.3

Every director should ensure v All the directors have given prompt attention to the
that he can give sufficient affairs of the Company.

time and attention to the FFIEESEHEAKEITRARRINER -

affairs of the company.
BEEEERREEAR
WEERYETIARNSE

% o

A5.4

All directors must comply v The Company has adopted the Model Code set
with their obligations out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding
under the Model Code for directors’ dealing in securities.

Securities Transactions by XA BERMETARBNESE TS EHEESTES
Directors of Listed Issuers BHHIZAESFR o

(the “Model Code”) set

out in Appendix 10 to the All the directors complied with the required
Listing Rules. standard set out in the Model Code.
FMBEEERAETRERE MBEFHET TRETRMENMFTLER -

EARRK &+ AT ELE) £
MBETABEFETESFR
7 1R %t A (] 18 & 57
A ) FTERERNET -

B
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B (1K) BRAR/ —BENEFHR 57



Corporate Governance Report
rERERBE

58

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Supply of and Access to Information

Principle of Good Governance: The directors should be provided
in a timely manner with appropriate information in such form and
of such quality as will enable them to make an informed decision

and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

Code Provisions
Szl

A.6.1

An agenda and
accompanying board
papers should be sent to
all directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of

a meeting.
SRARELERNESZS
XHEREIESHRBER

THBMA=XFEHTHA
B

A6.2

Each director should have
separate and independent
access to the senior
management of the
company to make further
enquiries or to obtain more
information in order to fulfil
his duties properly.
BEEFSEAEBRET
EBEARA e REEREA
B -UARBEERBRTABE
il /E H 3 — 2P & sk
EZER -

A.6.3

All directors are entitled

to have access to board
papers and related
materials. Where queries
are raised by the directors,
steps must be taken to
respond as promptly and
fully as possible.
MEEEHAEREHES
EXHREBREN - ME
EFREME KAKR
TRABERELZELE
) [E & o

Compliance ?
=EREF?
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A EFE(p)

A6 EXMIRMHKREH
BIFEARE  BEERERBERERY
MER BEEROFARE =SSR
e D S R I B BT IR S B
EREME-

Compliance by the Company in 2008
ARABRR=BENFHWEFFHE

An agenda and the relevant paper and materials
are usually sent to the directors at least 3 days
before the meeting.

CEEREREEAXHEEMH —REDEGHEET
HEA=XEETES -

The directors have access to the senior
management of the Company whenever they feel
necessary.
EENRERRETERAUEBARTNRR
BIEEBAER -

Board minutes and the related materials are
available for inspection by the directors whenever
requested. All efforts are made to ensure that
queries of the directors are responded to promptly
and fully.

EXEgeR LR ERENTIEESTERHA
B  ARABRNIBERESRENFAEZTRERE
DEFEE -



B.1

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and
Disclosure

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a formal and
transparent procedure for setting policy on executive directors’
remuneration and for fixing the remuneration packages for all
directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own

remuneration.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
RIS =REF?
B.1.1

The company should v

establish a remuneration
committee with specific
written terms of reference.
A majority of the members
should be independent
non-executive directors.
NAIERIUFMEES
VAR TEERES
c REBAKEEAE L
FEMITES -

B.1.2

The committee should v
consult the Chairman and/
or the Chief Executive
Officer about their proposals
relating to the remuneration
of other executive directors
and have access to
professional advice if
considered necessary.
ZESRABHEEMANIT
EENFMERERERS
FITHEHNER  HR
RUVE  NNAEREXRE
=
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B. E=EkeREEEAEN
A

B.1 %A & BE AV K F R AR

RiFERRA : ARERLEABES
FAENRRF - AHFTATEETNF MR
RLBRMBESNHFHES - EFT
B2EBTEATHME

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AABRR=BENFHWEFFHE

The remuneration committee was established on

19 September 2006 with specific written terms

of reference which deal clearly with its authority
and responsibilities. The remuneration committee
comprises the Chairman and all independent non-
executive directors.
FMEEGR_ZETNFAATNLBREY - Wi
ANTEmBRESRE  FEIAEERLBEE -
YFNZEEeRRIFELREBBYUIFNTES -

Pursuant to the terms of the remuneration
committee, the committee should consult with the
Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about
their proposals relating to the remuneration of other
executive directors. The committee is authorised

to obtain such professional advice as it considers
necessary.

BEFHNEESNRESE ZEeRMAABAA
MATEENFTMHERAEE R STHARNHE
H o LZEGEBRENERRLERENZXER -
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B.1

60

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuea)

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and

Disclosure (Continued)

Code Provisions

SFRIRSC

B.1.3

The terms of reference

of the committee should
include the minimum
prescribed duties.
ZEgEHNRBESEEZ DR
BRERATAEIANEE -

B.1.4

The committee should
make available its terms of
reference, explaining its role
and authority delegated to
it by the board.

ZEgR AHEBRESR
B - ZFHRHEAERESFS
BRYHEZHEN -

B.1.5

The committee should be
provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its
duties.
ZEERERHEARER
NEITEBE -

Compliance ?
=REBF?
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B. ESKkaREEEA
FHN oz

B.1 BN R B A KT KA (47)

fy

il

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATR_BENEWETFHE

The terms of reference of the committee include
the minimum prescribed responsibilities.

ZEENBEREZEIEEERRTAIANBE -

The terms of reference including, among other
things, its role and authority of the committee
delegated to it by the Board are made available on
request.
BESE(2ER(EPERRB)ZEENABRES
GRTHEZEN) REERETFLARHRA -

The committee can seek independent professional
advice to complement its own resources to
discharge its duties.

ZEQUSKBIEXER  UARELAFER
RmMETHRE -



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Principle of Good Governance: The board should present a
balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the

company’s performance, position and prospects.

Code Provisions

FRIR

C.1.1

Management should provide
such explanation and
information to enable the
board to make an informed
assessment of the matters
put before the board for
approval.
ERERNESFSRMHEA
HiE2EFSHENEE
WEREREN  UNEES
SN ZSFRELNE
BT e

C1.2

The directors should
acknowledge in the
Corporate Governance
Report their responsibilities
for preparing the accounts,
and there should be a
statement by the auditors
about their reporting
responsibilities in the
auditors’ report on the
financial statements.
BEFEEELCEERRET
R EREEENEE
% BRD IT e 1 B A BT RS iR
RORBAREPHRE
RERETEDER -

Compliance ?

=RET?
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C. BERZH

C.1 B %5 H 3R
RIFERRR  ERRETE B K
PETRAAMNKR  KRRANE -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AREAR-BENFNETFHE

The directors are regularly provided with updates
on the Company’s business and the management’s
strategic plans, financial objectives and other
actions.
EETHEEEEHAARAINEBRREERENR
BRIEETE  MBERREMITHNEFTER -

A statement of directors’ responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements is set out in this
Corporate Governance Report.

EEREMBRINECBATRNALXERR

=

The report of the auditors states the auditors’
reporting responsibilities.

REEHBRE TN BN RS AEHRA -

B
I D)—
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continueq)

Financial Reporting (Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?

F B =BREBF?
CA1.3
The board’s responsibility v

to present a balanced,
clear and understandable
assessment extends to
annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive
announcements and other
financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well
as to information required
to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
EEgNEERELY
i~ JFHT R EI A YR
FERATS RFR LS H
HhE - HABRESR
BHOQMERE EHR
AR ER TR E Bt
BEK MEEEBRER
B R A N R AR 18K
METFTURBEHNER -

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

C. BERZE (&)
C1 BBk &)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
palanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects in all
shareholder communications.
EXZSEAERAEENRR  HRARIKRERA
PREREHPIEL T E - BW RABRRHE -



safeguard shareholders’ investment and the company’s assets.

Code Provisions

SPRIRSC

c.2.1

The directors should at
least annually conduct a
review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal
control of the company and
its subsidiaries.
EEREVEFHRAFR
HFRAIA G 8 R K
BRI ETRE -

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cContinueq)

C.2 Internal Controls
Principle of Good Governance: The board should ensure that
the company maintains sound and effective internal controls to

Compliance ?

REETF?
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C. BERZE (&)

C.2 MEBI=H
RFEARE : EEQEBR DA
@2 KA RM PRI H] - AR FE AR R &
BERRANEE -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The Board has overall responsibility for the

system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness.
EEgRAMEHBREAMBSEERMEEBEER
R

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer reports to the audit committee on key
findings regarding internal controls. The audit
committee, in turn, communicates any material
issues to the Board.
THRARNEFRVBEEFRAEXRZESERW
REBABEHNFTEZRELER TEREZES
AlREEGEREMEKNEIE -

il

7l

N

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in
2008 at which the audit committee was apprised of
the Group’s internal control systems.
BEREZEEGR_TETEN\FETTMAER M
REEGERNEZ R T BEAAEEN AN EET 8
Z o

B

The Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries and is satisfied with
the adequacy of the Group’s system of internal
control.
EEGDHARAREFARINABEHERE
TR THAEBAHEFNRBRANTEERD

mE e

B
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cContinueq)

C.3 Audit Committee

64

Principle of Good Governance: The board should establish
formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it
applies the financial reporting and internal control principles and
for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the company’s
auditors. The audit committee should have clear terms of

reference.

Code Provisions

SPRIRSC

Compliance ?

REETF?

C.3.1

Minutes of audit committee v
meetings should be kept
by a duly appointed
secretary of the meeting.
Draft and final versions of
minutes should be sent to
all committee members for
their comment and records
within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
ERZESNSALEE

g A EZENWMER
- @M BEmN MR RE&
MELSHRERZNEE
KEANTETZESMA
KB NEREBEXRER
Ko 40 8% o

C.3.2

A former partner of the v
existing audit firm should

not be a member of the

committee for a period of

one year commencing on

the date of his ceasing to

be a partner of the firm.
ARANMEEETEZEE
MEBE-—FARBRMER
BEEBAONERARK

g o
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C. BERZE (&)

C3 EXEZESE
RFERRA - EXGEHME B FE
PR B 75 B 3R K% 19 B0 42 ) IR R K% 4 ] 4 45
HENBRBONEEBAERELERLA
BRAENZH - BEREZBQEABEW
MR ERE

Compliance by the Company in 2008
ABARRA=BEN\FNETFHE

The minutes are kept by the Company’s legal
advisers. The draft minutes are sent to the
committee members for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
versions are sent to all members for their records.
BRELBHARFEZERART @2 LHENY
MREBAGHEERENGERAANTRETEES
RE UHEFEXRER M@ THENZRKA
BETHAKE  UWHKSIERTEH -

None of the committee members is or was a
partner of the existing audit firm.

WMEZEE g K B IR Rk D & E IR E % B0 P ey
AUA -



C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cContinueq)

C.3 Audit Committee (Continued)

Code Provisions

SPRIRSC

C.3.3

The terms of reference

of the committee should
include the minimum
prescribed duties.
ZEgHBREGEZDE
BRERATEAIANBRE -

C.3.4

The committee should
make available its terms of
reference, explaining its role
and authority delegated to
it by the board.

ZEEeR AHEBRES
AR ABRESFE
BRTHEZHEN -

Compliance ?

REETF?
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C. BERZE #)
CI3ERZREZEEE (£)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The terms of reference of the committee include,
among other things, the minimum prescribed
responsibilities.

ZEENBREGSEZELRE (AT BRE)READ
BHEVEE -

The terms of reference of the committee which,
among other things, explain the role and authority
delegated to it by the Board, are made available on
request.

ZEgHNBESE (A AREAERE
FERTHZEN AEERKTURH -

B
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C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (cContinueq)

C.3 Audit Committee (Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<F RIS =REETF?
C.35

Where the board disagrees v

with the audit committee’s
view on the selection,
appointment, resignation

or dismissal of the external
auditors, the company
should include in the
Corporate Governance
Report a statement from the
audit committee explaining
its recommendation and
also the reason(s) why the
board has taken a different
view.
WMEEETRAEEREZE
THEmE HE BEX
BRINBZBMHEENE
RARRAIEEMGEE
AR ETINHEEZEES
[ i HCHE R R A0 B BRI
NEEFERHTRAZRNR
o

C.3.6

The committee should be v
provided with sufficient

resources to discharge its

duties.

ZESRERHEARER
LNEITERE -
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C. BERZE #)
CI3ERZREZEEE (£)

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The committee recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors for
2009.
ZEgNEFSRR (EEQCREEEBR)EM
ZEEFHETMEEMR_SZTAFENIIB
EAD - HRBERENERERFBFARS LHE -

The committee can seek independent professional
advice to complement its own resources to
discharge its duties.

ZEQUSRKBIEXEER  UARELAFER
WMEITHBRE -



DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management Functions

Principle of Good Governance: The company should have a
formal schedule of matters specifically reserved to the board for
its decision. The board should give clear directions to
management as to the matters that must be approved by the
board before decisions are made on behalf of the company.

Code Provisions

PRI

D.11andD.1.2
D.1.1KD.1.2

The board should give
clear directions as to the
powers of management,

in particular, with respect
to the circumstances

where management should
obtain prior approval from
the board before making
decisions or entering into
any commitments on behalf
of the company.
EEZCRMNEBERENES
BTYEWETR  FiER
AEBEATEREBERSE
N )R] AL AE fA] A G BT JE =
EESEEFSOHE -

The company should
formalise the functions
reserved to the board

and those delegated to
management.
REAEEABEESERE
REONBELRZEERT
EEERRAE -

Compliance ?
=REBF?
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EETRINER

D.1 & &
RIFERRA : RAIEE—EERD
HEEEEE  JRERNEAEESER
TWEE BESAERKRDFELR
THT ERAEEESRANTEL
FTEBEBWIET -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AATR_BENEWETFHE

Important matters are reserved for the Board'’s decision,
including:
UNTEEEFYHESSREAERE - B85

° long-term objectives and strategies

KB R NORER

° extension of the Group’s activities into new
business areas

HAKBO X BT B X R

° appointments to the Board and the Board
committees

EXENEFEREENERE

o annual internal controls assessment and annual
budgets
FEANIIESIFT G R FERS

° material acquisitions and disposals

BEAMERHESR

° material connected transactions

EAERS

° material banking facilities
BEARITERREE

° announcements of interim and final results

REINR R ERE R

° payment of dividends
AR
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board Committees

Principle of Good Governance: board committees should be
formed with specific written terms of reference that deal clearly

with the committees’ authority and duties.

Code Provisions

SPRIRSC

D.2.1

The board should prescribe
sufficiently clear terms of
reference to enable such
committees to discharge
their functions properly.
EEQRADIFRMATA
ZELZEENRESE
NSEHREZEESREE
BITEBAE -

D22

The committees should be
required to report back to
the board on their decisions
or recommendations.
ZERHANESEEERE
RENEREEZ -

Compliance ?

REETF?
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EEERINER®)

D2 EEXEZEE
REEARE  EEQEEQREITHE
TEEAREGE ERYBAEEENE
HEBE -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
EARR=BEN\FNETFHE

The Board has established two board committees
each with specific terms of reference, namely the
audit committee and remuneration committee.
EEgCORUIRMEZE S EREEQERFME
g YRIARELEeNRERE -

The minutes of the committee meetings containing
the committee’s decisions and/or recommendations
are circulated to all members of the Board unless
a conflict of interest arises. The committees are
required to report back to the Board on key
findings during the year.

HEZEERTER /AHBRENZESERL
BHORNEFEMEXNEERN  HEBENZERD
BERANRIN - ZEEGEARAFREAMEEGER
FEREHER -



E.1

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

Principle of Good Governance: The board should endeavour to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and, in
particular, use annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage

their participation.

Code Provisions Compliance ?

SF AR 3L =REF?
E.1.1

In respect of each v
substantially separate issue

at a general meeting, a

separate resolution should

be proposed by the

chairman of that meeting.
REBEAIRANEFEM
EOBREIFEEREETH

BRZEER o

E.1.2

The Chairman of the board v

should attend the annual
general meeting and
arrange, for the chairmen of
the audit, nomination and
remuneration committees
(as appropriate) to be
available to answer
questions at the annual
general meeting.
EEETIRERELEERRE
FRG WLHEREZE
g RREZEENFHMZE
Bg(mER) T FERR
RBERG FEIZREM -

m o

’

B
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E. ERRENBE

E1 BREB
RIFEARY BRI N@FER
RETHEYSE  LHEHEERERBFLA
ERAMBREASEBRRETERLS
BRE2mMEs -

Compliance by the Company in 2008
AARNR=BENFHNEFFE

A separate resolution is proposed for each
substantially separate issue.

REREATANFEAGREZFIAMNRER -

The Company’s annual general meeting will be held
on 5 June 2009. The Chairman of the Board who
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
will attend such forthcoming annual general meeting
and be available to answer questions thereat

and will arrange for the chairman of the audit
committee on his representative to be available to
answer questions at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

AR RBFREER_ZZTNAFAALBE
T-BFEXIR(TAFMNEESEIF) SHFEZX
EEBRRBFREL NG LOERM - ALK LH
ERZEGIRIERRNREERREFAE L
B &R o

B
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2008.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises three executive directors, one non-
executive director and four independent non-executive directors
(Note):

Executive directors:
WANG Weixian (Chairman)
TSE Sai Tung, Stones
(Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
WANG Xuling

Non-executive director:
LAl Kin, Jerome

Independent non-executive directors:
CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

FONG Wo, Felix, JP

JIANG Simon X.

KWAN Kai Cheong

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Board has
extensive management experience in the property market in the PRC.
The Board has the required knowledge, experience and capabilities to
operate and develop the Group’s business and implement the
Company’s business strategies. The biographical details and
experience of the directors and senior management are set out on
pages 76 to 81.

Note: Mr. Tam Lai Ling resigned as an executive director of the Company on
30 November 2008.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company. The directors, individually and collectively, are aware of their
responsibilities and accountability to shareholders and for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company are managed and operated.

Directors have timely access to relevant information prior to each
board meeting to enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities. Directors can attend board
meetings either in person or by electronic means of communication.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors. The Company
is of the view that all the independent non-executive directors meet
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationship among members of the
Board or between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company provides directors with directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage to protect them from loss as a result of any legal
proceeding against the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Wang Weixian is the Chairman and Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones
serves as the Chief Executive Officer. The role of the Chairman is
separate from that of the Chief Executive Officer so as to delineate
their respective areas of responsibility. They receive significant support
from the directors and the senior management team.

Corporate Governance Report
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (Continued)

The Chairman is responsible for the overall business and investment
strategies of the Group. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functioning of the Board and application of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for managing the Group’s overall operations and
execution of the Group’s long term business development policies.
The Board, led by the Chairman, sets the overall directions, strategies
and policies of the Group. Under the leadership of the Chief Executive
Officer, the management is responsible for executing the Board’s
strategy and implementing its policies through the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company.

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management and
administrative functions to the management who shall report to the
Board. The Board reviews on a periodic basis such delegations to
ensure that they remain appropriate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As Mr. Lai Kin has reached the retirement age, he was re-designated
from an executive director to a non-executive director effective 1
January 2009.

The non-executive directors of the Company have diversified
backgrounds and industry skills and one of the independent non-
executive directors has an appropriate accounting qualification as
required by the Listing Rules. With their expertise, they offer
experience, independent judgement and advice on the overall
management of the Company. Their responsibilities include
maintaining a balance between the interests of all shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

All the independent non-executive directors are members of the audit
and remuneration committees.

With the exception of Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome, who is appointed for a term
of three years, all the independent non-executive directors are
appointed for a term of one year renewable by mutual agreement on
an annual basis. Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting provided
that every director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the remuneration committee on 19 September
2006 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and responsibilities. The committee is responsible for
formulating and reviewing the remuneration policy and specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors. In formulating the
remuneration policy, the committee takes into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, employment
conditions and responsibilities, and individual performance of the
directors, senior management, and the general staff. The committee
can seek independent professional advice to complement its own
resources to discharge its duties.

The remuneration committee comprises Mr. Wang Weixian, who is the
chairman of the committee and all the independent non-executive
directors.

One meeting was held by the remuneration committee in 2008 to
discuss remuneration related matters. All members attended the
meeting.

Details of the emoluments and options of each director, on a named
basis, are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board
selects and recommends candidates for directorship having regard to
the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s
business.
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DEEARSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the audit committee on 19 September 2006
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and responsibilities. The committee is responsible for
formulating and reviewing the financial and internal control principles
of the Company. The committee is also responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditors, approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors and considering any
questions of resignation or dismissal of such auditors. The committee
can seek independent professional advice to complement its own
resources to discharge its duties.

The committee comprises all the independent non-executive
directors. Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong is the chairman of the committee.

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in 2008. All members
attended the meetings. The committee reviewed, together with the
senior management and the external auditors, the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2008, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company, statutory compliance, other
financial reporting matters and the internal control system.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects. Management provides such explanation and information
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the matters
put before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements for the Group.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company regarding their

responsibilities for the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the report of the auditors on page 80.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls on financial, operational,
compliance and risk management, to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets.

The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal
control of the Company.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, is primarily responsible
for providing audit services in connection with annual financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the total remuneration in
respect of statutory audit services provided by KPMG for the Group
amounted to RMB2,450,000.

The audit committee recommended to the Board (which endorsed the
view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors for
the Company for 2009.

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2008:

Authorised share capital: HK$1,000,000,000, comprising
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Issued and fully paid-up capital: HK$103,011,500 comprising
1,030,115,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Class of shares: one class of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each with
equal voting rights.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EENEREEEAEBN

David WANG, 44, is the Chairman and the founder of the Group. He
founded the Starwaly Properties Group Ltd, the holding company for
various property projects of the Group, in Australia in Feb1999. Mr.
Wang has over 16 years’ experience in finance, construction, property
investment and development. He is also a councilor of Shanghai Song
Ching Ling Foundation. He graduated from South China University of
Technology with a Bachelor degree in Building Materials and University
of Technology, Sydney (Australia) with a Bachelor degree of
Commerce.

Stones TSE, 50, is the Group Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Tse has over 27 years’ experience in property investment
and development, project management, sales and marketing in the
mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Tse was the Executive Director and Managing Director of two HK-
listed real estate development companies. Mr. Tse is a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Engineers and Chartered Institute of Building,
United Kingdom and holds a Bachelor degree of Science in
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong, a Master degree of
Business Administration from the University of Warwick of the United
Kingdom and a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
Macquarie University of Australia.

Rosanna WANG, 47, is the Group Executive Director. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Wang was the Deputy General Manager and Executive
Director of Mission Hills Group (Mission Hills Golf Club), responsible for
property development. Before joining Mission Hills Group (Mission
Hills Golf Club), Ms. Wang had about 12 years’ experience in the news
and media business. She graduated from Ji’nan University
(Guangzhou).

LAI Kin, Jerome, 60, is the Group Non-Executive Director. Mr. Lai,
who graduated from the University of Toronto with a Bachelor degree
of Commerce, is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a chartered accountant of The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in
accounting, management, strategic planning, auditing and taxation.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Lai was the Senior Vice-President of the
finance, treasury and administration functional unit of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Executive Director of the finance
and management services division of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited overseeing finance matters. Mr. Lai had also served as
the Financial Controller at China Light & Power Company Limited.
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CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, 61, an independent non-executive
Director, has over 30 year experience in the securities industry. He has
been a director of the Worldsec Group of Companies which he
founded in 1991. Mr. Cheong currently serves as the Deputy Chairman
of Worldsec Limited, a company listed on the London Stock
Exchange.

FONG Wo, Felix, JP, 58, an independent non-executive Director, is a
practicing solicitor in Hong Kong and qualified in Canada and England.
He is also appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the
China-Appointed Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a
founder of Arculli Fong & Ng, a law firm in Hong Kong who has
practiced law for over 29 years, including 8 years in Toronto. Mr. Fong
is a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, a director of China Overseas
Friendship Association, a director of Shanghai Chinese Overseas
Friendship Association and an executive director of Guangdong
Overseas Friendship Association. He is also the chairman of the Hong
Kong Liquor Licensing Board, the chairman of the Advisory Council on
Food and Environmental Hygiene of the Government of the Hong
Kong SAR, a member of the Hong Kong Film Development Council, a
member of the Hong Kong Betting and Lotteries Commission, a
member of the Town Planning Board and a director of the Hong Kong
Basic Law Institute. Mr. Fong is a member of the first Selection
Committee for the purposes of electing the Chief Executive for Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region, a founding member of Canadian
International School of Hong Kong, a member of the Board of Advisers
for the Faculty of Business of the University of Victoria, British
Columbia, Canada and a visiting professor of the School of Law of
Sun Yat-sen University, PRC.

JIANG Simon X., 55, an independent non-executive Director, is the
founder and Chairman of CyberCity International Limited as well as
Chairman of some of its subsidiaries. For the past five years, Dr. Jiang
has mainly been involved in private equity investment activities in Hong
Kong and mainland China. At the same time, he is currently an INED
for COSL (2883.HK) and COSCO International (517.HK). He is also a
member of the National Committee of CPPCC and of the United
Nations Investments Committee.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EENARERBEABEBN

KWAN Kai Cheong, 59, an independent non-executive Director,
holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree from the University
of Singapore and is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Australia. He is also a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Kwan is presently President of Morrison &
Company Limited, which is a business consultancy firm.

Yee Har Susan LO, 50, is the joint company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Lo is a director of Corporate Services Department of
Tricor Services Limited and a fellow member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lo has over 20 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial area and is currently the company secretary
of five companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mei Yi LEE, 41, is the joint company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Lee is a senior manager of Corporate Services Department of Tricor
Services Limited and an associate member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience in
the corporate secretarial area.

Yongmin MAO, 55, is the Vice President of the Group. He is also the
Director of New Independent House Property Management, one of
the Group’s subsidiaries. Mr. Mao, who has over 26 years’ experience
in sales, property investment and development in the PRC, is now a
member of the Political Consultative Conference of Huangshan
Municipality and a Standing Committee Member of the Political
Consultative Conference of the Huangshan Municipality.

Huiren WANG, 66, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Wang is
also the General Manager of Shanghai Oriental Cambridge Property
Development Co., Ltd which is one of the Group’s subsidiaries. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked in Shanghai Government for
years. He graduated from East China University of Politics and Law
with a Bachelor of Laws.
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Mingzhi ZHANG, 54, is the Vice President of the Group. Ms. Zhang is
also the General Manager of Investment and Finance Department of
the Group. Ms. Zhang has over 15 years’ experience in financial
industry and project investment. Prior to joining the Group, She was
the Director for one of first approved funds management corporations,
Director and Chairman appointed by several project companies and
the General Manager of Assets Department of a Trust & Investment
Company. Ms. Zhang graduated from East China Normal University in
Mathematics and obtained a Master degree of Business
Administration (MBA) from AIOU-Asia International Open University
(MACAU).

Haibo ZHANG, 41, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Zhang is
also the General Manager of some project companies of the Group.
Mr. Zhang has over 17 years’ experience in property development,
engineering and corporate management. He was the Deputy General
Manager, Executive Deputy General Manager and General Manager
of some operating subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Tong Ji University with a Bachelor degree in Architectural
Engineering and is a Qualified Engineer.

Yong ZHU, 39, is the Regional General Manager of the Group. Mr.
Zhu has over 10 years’ experience in property development and
management. Mr. Zhu is a Registered Property Assessor, a Qualified
Engineer in Architectural Engineering and a Class | Builder. Mr. Zhu
holds a Bachelor degree of Engineering in Industrial and Civil
Construction Engineering and a Master degree of Engineering in
Construction and Civil Engineering.

Ruixia REN, 40, is the Regional General Manager of the Group. Ms.
Ren has over 15 years’ experience in property development and
management. Ms. Ren was the Assistant to General Manager,
Executive Deputy General Manager and Regional Executive Deputy
General Manager of major operating subsidiaries of the Group. She
holds a Bachelor degree in Architectural Structure from Tianjin
University and a Master degree in Business Administration from Tsing
Hua University.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EEAREREABEBN

Yudi GAO, 56, is the Executive Director and Education Director of
Sipo Polytechnic, one of Group’s subsidiaries. Ms. Gao has over 20
years’ experience in education and held positions from teacher to
Vice-Principal of one of the famous high schools in Shanghai. She was
nominated a title of “Shanghai Top-Level Teacher”. Ms. Gao graduated
from East China Normal University, majoring in Chinese.

Frank QU, 47, is the General Manager of Hotel Investment of the
Group. Mr. Qu has over 20 years’ experience in hotel investment and
development, pre-opening and operation with Starwood, Inter-
Continental and Four Seasons hotel groups. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Qu was a Deputy General Manager of Four Seasons Hotel,
Shanghai. Mr. Qu graduated from Shanghai Institute of Tourism,
attended Hotel Executive Education Program in Cornell University
(U.S.A).

Yu LEI, 36, is the Legal Director of the Group. Mr. Lei has over 10
years’ legal management experience and is a Qualified Lawyer in the
PRC. Mr. Lei graduated from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree
in Law and Master degree in Public Administration.

John LEUNG, 49, is the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. Leung
has over 15 years’ experience in Finance in China and Hong Kong.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the General Manager of
Finance, Eastern China Region of a HK-listed construction materials
company, a Director and CFO of a state-owned company and Director
and Country Finance Head of a Fortune 500 company. Mr. Leung is a
CPA member of CPA Australia, a member of Hong Kong Institute of
CPAs, and fellow member of Association of Taxation & Management
Accountants, Australia. He holds a Master degree in Accounting
Studies from University of New England, Australia, and a Master
degree in Business Administration from University of East Asia.

Francis FAN, 61, is the General Manager of Cost Control of the
Group. Mr. Fan has over 30 years’ experience in reputable property
developers and surveying firms, both in China and overseas. He is
now a professional member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, a member of Institution of Civil Engineering Surveyors,
Association of Cost Engineers and Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
Mr. Fan graduated from Hong Kong College of Taiwan with Bachelor
of Science in Civil Engineering.
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Xinrong LIU, 37, is the General Manager of Human Resources and
Internal Audit Director of the Group. Ms. Liu has over 10 years’
experience in financial management and corporate management in
property industry. Ms. Liu was the Group Financial Controller,
Executive Deputy General Manager of major operating subsidiaries of
the Group. Ms. Liu graduated from Wuhan University of Technology,
major in industrial enterprise management and is a qualified
accountant in the PRC.

YOU Defeng, 33, is the Assistant Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. You
graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, major in
business administration. He is a member of Institute of Financial Accountants,
UK. Mr. You is a qualified accountant of the PRC. Mr. You was the Finance
Manager, Deputy Finance Manager of the major operating subsidiaries of the
Company.

Directors and Senior Management Profiles
EELRAREREABEGN

B 3TH TEBMANERBEERRA
ZRE - HLLERBENBEE  BE .
AAERFEAE+SFNEREH - AKX
TREENNHEE SEETEEL AR
EHEREE BT EENRETEAE
TELEQETOEE  URARERHED
BT -

HREE VB TEELAFAMBEAEE-
BAEERERLBYRARBIBEREEXAR
B RARBEMEe JrEﬁi"AAf'\'ﬁ*ﬁ_EP
BHestmBE BRLtEREARTITELET
NEIM KR - MR -

F+ﬁ+

ER)BRAR /) BB \FER 81

B2
1] D)—
it



Report of the Board of Directors
EEERS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual
report together with the audited consolidated accounts of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in property development, property and hotel
investment, property management and education.

An analysis of the Group’s sales and operating results for the year by
principal activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 5.6% of the Group’s sales in the year while the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for about 20.4% of the
Group’s purchases in the year.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in
Note 45 to the consolidated accounts, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set
out on page 107.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB4.97 cents per share, totalling approximately RMB51,185,000.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on 5 June
2009. A notice convening the annual general meeting will be published
and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(Continued)

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3 June 2009 to Friday, 5 June 2009, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend and to
attend the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 5
June 2009, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2009.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated accounts.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are classified
under current liabilities. Details of the long-term borrowings are set out
in note 33 to the consolidated accounts. Interest and other borrowing
costs capitalised by the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated accounts.

MOVEMENTS OF SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the year are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated acccounts.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated accounts.

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB2,343,355,000 (2007: RMB2,308,587,000 (restated)).

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
RMB4,560,000 (2007: RMB3,664,000).
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on pages 222 to
224,

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Weixian (Chairman)

Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones
(Group Managing director
and CEQ)

Ms. WANG Xuling

Mr. TAM Lai Ling
(Deputy Managing Director

(resigned on 30 November 2008)
and Head of Corporate Finance)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome (Note)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. JIJANG Simon X.

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one third of
the Directors retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years.

Mr. Wang Weixian, Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones and Mr. Fong Wo, Felix,
JP are due to retire from the Board at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Being eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

None of the refiring Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Note: Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome was re-designated from an executive director to a

non-executive director on 1 January 2009. He also resigned from alll
other executive positions within the Group on 1 January 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In order to eliminate Directors’ interests in business competing with
the Group, on 19 September 2006, Mr. Wang Weixian entered into a
deed of non-competition with the Company (the “Deed”).

In accordance with the terms of the Deed, Mr. Wang Weixian has
provided the Company with an annual confirmation that he and his
associates (other than the Group) have complied with the terms of the
Deed.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the matters relating to the compliance and enforcement of
the Deed by Mr. Wang Weixian and his associates (other than the
Group) and confirmed that Mr. Wang Weixian and his associates (other
than the Group) have complied with the Deed.

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors of the Company is
considered to have interests in businesses which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.
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Report of the Board of Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following connected
transaction requires disclosure in the annual report of the Company.
The connected transactions which also constitute related party
transactions are set out in note 45 to the consolidated accounts.

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction subject
to reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements

Purchases from Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang Co. Ltd.
(“Sendao”)

Sendao supplied doors and windows to the Group and provided the
installation services in respect thereof for the development and
construction of the property projects of the Group.

Sendao, a company established in the PRC, is an indirect subsidiary
of a company which is owned as to 90% by the brother-in-law of Mr.
Wang Weixian. Mr. Wang, being a Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, is a connected person of the Company.
The brother-in-law of Mr. Wang is an associate of Mr. Wang. Sendao,
being a company in the equity capital of which the brother-in-law of
Mr. Wang is directly or indirectly interested so as to exercise or control
the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at general meetings,
is regarded as an associate of Mr. Wang. Accordingly, transactions
between the Group and Sendao constitute connected transactions of
the Company upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange.

On 12 September 2006, the Group entered into a framework
agreement with Sendao pursuant to which the Group agrees that, for
a term commencing from 10 October 2006 (the “Listing Date”) and
ending on 31 December 2008, it may, from time to time, award
individual supply contracts to Sendao for the supply of doors and
windows and provision of installation services to the Group (“Sendao
Transaction”) provided that the terms and conditions offered by
Sendao through a tender process are on normal commercial terms
and not less favourable than those offered by independent third
parties.

Under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules, the Sendao Transaction
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the Company and
is subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction subject
to reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements (Continued)

Purchases from Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang Co. Ltd.
(“Sendao”) (Continued)

The Sendao Transaction for the year ended 31 December 2008
amounted to RMB11,994,000 (2007: RMB23,602,000) which has not
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual purchases payable to
Sendao in respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 as disclosed
in the prospectus issued by the Company on 26 September 2006 (the
“Prospectus”).

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for a waiver from
strict compliance with Rule 14A.42(3) of the Listing Rules and the
Stock Exchange has agreed to grant such waiver to the Company
from compliance with the announcement and the independent
shareholders approval requirement in relation to the Sendao
Transaction.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the Sendao Transaction and were of the opinion that:

(@  the Sendao Transaction had been:

(i) carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

(i)  conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms
no less favourable to the Company than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

(i) entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole; and

(b) the aggregate amount of the Sendao Transaction for the
financial year ended 31 December 2008 did not exceed the
annual cap of RMB32,020,000.
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Report of the Board of Directors
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction subject
to reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements (Continued)

Purchases from Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang Co. Ltd.
(“Sendao”) (Continued)

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company have
confirmed that the Sendao Transaction (a) has been approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company; (b) has been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement governing the
transaction; and (c) has not exceeded the cap disclosed in the
Prospectus.

In respect of the continuing connected transaction, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
force from time to time.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
OF THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

No specific performance obligations of the controlling shareholder are
required to be disclosed under paragraph 13.18 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 19 September 2006, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge the contributions of the participants to the growth
of the Group by granting options to them as incentives or
rewards.

2. Participants of the Share Option Scheme:
The Board may, in its discretion, offer to grant options to
subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine to the following participants:

(i) any executive and employee of the Group; or

(i)  any director (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Group; or
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

2.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme: (Continued)
(i)  any consultant, adviser and/or agent of the Group.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme and % of issued share
capital at 23 April 2009:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 103,750,000 shares (approximately 10.07%
of issued share capital).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Share Option Scheme:

The maximum entitlement for each participant is that the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-
month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue. Any grant of further options above this
limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the
rules of the Share Option Scheme.

The period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, options may
be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at any time
during the period commencing from the date of grant and
expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the business day (i) preceding the fifth
anniversary of the date of grant or (i) preceding the expiry of the
Share Option Scheme, whichever is the earlier.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months after
the date of grant. A grantee may be required to achieve such
performance targets as determined by the Board before any
options granted under the Share Option Scheme can be
exercised.
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7.

90

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which
payments or calls must or may be made, or loans
for such purposes must be paid:

Nil

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price shall at least be the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities (“Business
Day”); and

(i)  the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
Business Days immediately preceding the date of offer.

or (where applicable) such price as from time to time adjusted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

The remaining life of the Share Option scheme:

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 19 September 2006 and will expire at
5:00 p.m. on the Business Day preceding the tenth anniversary
thereof.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued) ,Eﬁ X *E (4&)
Details of the share options granted pursuant to the Share HiEEREEEEMRN _ZEZENE+
Option Scheme which remained outstanding as at 31 December AT BRMARITENEREFSN
2008 are as follows: ™~
Options lapsed
Options  during the year ended Options
outstanding as at 31 December 2008 outstanding as at
1 January 2008 BZ-ZZ/\F 31 December 2008
Exercise price R-EZENE +ZA=t+—H R-BENE
Director & employees Date of grant per share —-B—H LFEERE +ZA=t+-H
EEZkES BHAH BRITEE HRTENERE RUNBRE HRTENERE
Mr. Tam Lai Ling 3 December 2007 HK$6.526 /& 7T 10,000,000 10,000,0007 —
BERELE —ET+F+H=H
Employees
(other than Directors) 10 October 2007 HK$6.3007%8 7T 640,000° - 640,000
EE(EEKBIN) ZEELF+ATHE
10,640,000 10,000,000 640,000
Notes B 5
1 (@  The options shall vest in tranches in the following manner 1. (8 HBEREHSNRTIEBABHUTY
on the following dates of vesting: XN FB -
0] 25% of the options shall vest on 3 December 2007 (i) BUHEREHR T
(the “First Tranche”); and +t&#+-_A=BHB(=E
#1)
(i) 25% of the Option shall vest on 3 December 2008, (i) 25%MEERESE D BN
3 December 2009 and 3 December 2010, ZZNEFEFT+_A=ZH"
respectively (the “Subsequent Tranches”). TENFF+ZRAR=ZAKRZ
—EF+-_A=HEEB
(TE®/EH]) -
(b) The options may be exercised during the period b)) EREITEB_ZETELFT-_A=
commencing from 3 December 2007 and expiring at 5:00 HREAEEE T ——F+=-A
p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding 3 “HAWEXEB TTAKERER
December 2012 except that no option vested in the First ZEREAITE - EFBER AR
Tranche or the Subsequent Tranches can be exercised FEBSHOERETIEREZA
until the expiry of 12 months after the respective dates of SEEHBIMI2EAR T
vesting. E
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

92

2.

Mr. Tam Lai Ling resigned as a Director on 30 November 2008
and his unexercised options therefore lapsed upon his
resignation.

(@  The options shall vest in tranches in the following manner
on the following dates of vesting:

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2007 (the
“First Option Tranche”);

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2008 (the
“Second Option Tranche”); and

(i) 40% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2009 (the
“Third Option Tranche” and, together with the
“Second Option Tranche”, the “Succeeding
Tranches”).

(b)  The Board may at its absolute discretion adjust the
percentage of the options to be vested in the Succeeding
Tranches either upwards or downwards based on the
option holder’s performance in the year immediately
preceding the vesting of the options in the relevant
Succeeding Tranches as determined by the Board except
that such adjustment shall not affect the vesting of the
options in the First Option Tranche.

(c) The options may be exercised during the period
commencing from 10 October 2007 and expiring at 5:00
p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding 10
October 2012 except that no option shall be exercised
until the expiry of 12 months after the respective dates of
vesting.

Save as disclosed above, no option granted under the Share

Option Scheme was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, no option has been
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

On 19 September 2006, the Company also approved and adopted a
share option scheme entitling the Board of Directors to grant share
options at its discretion before the listing of the shares (“Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). A summary of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
set out below:

1. Purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme:
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions of the participants
to the growth of the Group and/or the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange by granting options to them
as incentives or rewards.

2. Participants of the Pre-IPO Scheme:

The Board may, in its discretion, offer to grant options to
subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine to any executive, director and/or employee of the
Group who is in full-time employment of the Group at the time
when an option is granted.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and % of
issued shared capital at 23 April 2009:

18,540,000 shares being the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme have been fully granted. Such shares
represented approximately 1.80% of the issued share capital.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
There is no restriction on the number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant in any 12-month period.
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The period within which the shares must be taken
up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, an
option may be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at
any time during the period commencing from the date of grant
and ending on such date as the Board may determine in
granting the option but in any event not exceeding 5 years from
19 September 2006 being the date of grant of the option.

The minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months after
the date of vesting (provided that 25% of the options which was
vested on the date of grant shall not be exercisable within 12
months from the Listing Date. A grantee may be required to
achieve such performance targets as determined by the Board
before any options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or acceptance
of the option and the period within which
payments or calls must or may be made, or loans
for such purposes must be paid:

Nil

The basis of determining the exercise price:

(i) 25% of the options shall vest on the date of grant at a
price of HK$3.824 representing 80% of HK$4.78 being
the price of the Company’s shares offered under the
Prospectus (“Offer Price”); and

(i)  25% of the options shall vest on each of the first, second

and third anniversary of the date of grant at a price of
HK$4.302 representing 90% of the Offer Price.
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9. The remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option 9. B X B8R AT IR A =+ 21 i 84
Scheme T F 8
The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for BRXARABRAIERER S E B S
—ETRFAATLARHEKE E-ZTT
NETAABRER -

the period commencing on 19 September 2006 and expired on
9 October 2006.

BHREERAFABIRAERESTER
—EEXRFAA+AAEL MR ZE
ZENFFTZA=ZFT—BHERTENER

Details of the share options granted on 19 September 2006
pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme which remained
outstanding as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

BN

Options Options exercised Options Options

outstanding during the lapsed during the outstanding

asat year ended year ended asat

Date of grant 1 January 2008 31 December 2008 31 December 2008 31 December 2008

REBE-ZZNF RHEE-ZENF

R-BENE +t=A=+-8 +t=ZA=+-8 R-ZZBENF

—RA—BHEX LFE tF¥E +=ZA=t-H

REBH THENBRE BAENBRE EAMMWEBRE HRTENBRE

Director BF 19 September 2006 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000
Mr.LaiKin, Jerome  BEXE  —TTRFAATNLAE

Employees E& 19 September 2006 11,040,000 80,000 4,040,000 6,920,000
—ZEERFAATAR

18,540,000 80,000 4,040,000 14,420,000

Notes: B 3E

1. Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 25%

1. RIBEEIRA R R R AR ES B &

%M RSN IR L E BIRER
EERERIs4AF TEBE([HH]) -

25%H) fE AR M RN B H B B R E W —
BFE MEFR=-AFEADAIKLE
BIEBERTRIETLREE ([HiEE
) ZEEFUREREREARA

of the options shall vest on the date of grant (“First Tranche”) at an
option price of HK$3.824 per share. 25% of the options shall vest
on each of the first, second and third anniversary of the date of
grant (“Subsequent Tranches”) at an option price of HK$4.302
per share. The Board may at its absolute discretion adjust the
percentage of the options to be vested in the Subsequent

Tranches either upwards or downwards based on the MEGEHERESESHEN—FRA
performance of the option holder in the year immediately WEB(RESSRT) 2EMNER
preceding the vesting of the options in the relevant Subsequent EmT EFJ B® E% BRZEEZSHE

BB D
B AR R

CERBABRTSEYE
mﬁ%"

Tranches as determined by the Board except that such
adjustment shall not affect the vesting of options in the First
Tranche.
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Notes: (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
options may be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at
any time during the period commencing from the date of grant
and ending on such date as the Board may determine in granting
the option but in any event not exceeding 5 years from 19
September 2006 being the date of grant of the options. No option
may be exercised until after the expiry of 12 months after the
vesting date (provided that an option vested in the First Tranche
shall not be exercisable within 12 months from the Listing Date).

The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the 80,000 share options were
exercised was HK$6.21.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, two employees
resigned from the Group and therefore ceased to be entitled to
the share options granted by the Company on 19 September
2006. The number of shares involved in the above lapsed share
options amounted to 4,040,000.

Save as disclosed above, no option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests of each Director and chief
executive of the Company in the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) which (a) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:

Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

EENESFNER

RZZEZENF+TZA=Z+—HB ARAEE
ERITRAZR AR A LA EEEZE(E
EABLSMBMEGRMN(TEFRBEGRL &
B EFTHEE@QAREESFRHE KD
EXVEBRTRESD B G AR f B X AT EY
R (BRRERZ LHE KA R GK
EEREFIRERENEDZRER)  K()
R 75 KB B 6B 35362 {5 78 &C 8 0 7% 1%
fIpmt &R MA s - SHE)RRE LT T
ABFETEFRXSNELETRIMANE X
NA LB ST

() Long position in shares of the Company: () REXTARBIRE :

Approximate

Capacity and Number of percentage of

Name of Director nature of interest shares shareholding

BEREMY

B£8R B REEMNE R HE Bk

Mr. Wang Weixian Interest of controlled 624,980,622 60.67
FTEELXE corporation (Note 1)
RPN E s (KMEE1)

Beneficiary of discretionary 107,817,067 10.47
trust (Note 2)
rHREEEZEA (HE2)

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones Interest of controlled 11,249,873 1.09
Mt R E corporation (Note 3)
Rfrhl R E s (M EE3)

Ms. Wang Xuling Interest of controlled 10,000,438 0.97
TFHRzELZLT corporation (Note 4)
F )2 A ()

Beneficiary of discretionary 107,817,067 10.47

trust (Note 2)
2REFEZ=A (HE2)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(Continued)

EENEBSFNER &)

() Long position in shares of the Company: (Continued) (i)

RARTARODHERR : (#)

98

Note 1:  Mr. Wang Weixian is deemed to be interested in an aggregate fz¥1: T EBETEH B AT HEA &

of 732,797,689 shares which are held by SPG Investment 732,797,689 IR 1 z # 5 o ZF K

Holdings Ltd., Brilliant Bright Investment Limited and Prestige 5 4 B BSPG Investment Holdings

Glory Enterprises Limited, respectively. Ltd. » Brilliant Bright Investment

Limited } Prestige Glory Enterprises
Limited FT 5 ©

(@) 494,382,087 shares are held by SPG Investment () A& $0494,382,087 % B% 1% T3
Holdings Ltd. which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of B SPG Investment Holdings
SPG Asset Management Limited. The entire issued Ltd# B & 2 7 BSPG
share capital of SPG Asset Management Limited is in Asset Management Limited
turn beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Weixian. ZEEHANF AT - SPG

Asset Management LimitedZ
FMBEEHITRAHIEE L
EmER -

(b) 130,598,535 shares are held by Prestige Glory (b) A& 27130,598,535 f% A% 10 T3
Enterprises Limited which is entirely beneficially owned i Prestige Glory Enterprises
by Mr. Wang Weixian. Limited#¥ B - ZAGIHTRE

EETEERESR -
Note 2:  Each of Mr. Wang Weixian and Ms. Wang Xuling is deemed to ffzko - BEBAEENTRELTHER A

be interested in 107,817,067 shares, which are held by ng 107,817,067 B B% 15 B #E %5 3%

Brilliant Bright Investment Limited which is a wholly-owned % B 5 A Briliant Bright Investment

subsidiary of HSBC International Trustee Limited as trustee of Limited$§ & - H /AHSBC International

a discretionary trust of which family members of Mr. Wang Trustee Limited2 & # A A7 1M

Weixian including Mr. Wang Weixian and Ms. Wang Xuling are HSBC International Trustee Limited 4

discretionary objects. LNERERERKKE (BELTEE

FERIMELZLT) ANBERZER
WERETLZETA
Note 3:  Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones is deemed to be interested in MizF3 : i R e A4 w2 A % A 11,249,873

11,249,873 shares, which are held by Easternflair Investment i 2R ZERMD A ST

Limited which is in turn entirely beneficially owned by Mr. Tse B4 4 T2 E % B B B Easternflair

Sai Tung, Stones. Investment leltedﬁﬂvﬁ °

Note 4:  Ms. Wang Xuling is deemed to be interested in 10,000,438 Mizra : T MZE &+ w8 A% A 10,000,438

shares, which are held by Boom Rich Investments Limited
which is in turn entirely beneficially owned by Ms. Wang
Xuling.

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

Bl mEED FlRBEHHAER
Z X T2 E &% A HBoom Rich
Investments Limited#5 & -



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(Continued)

(i) Long position in underlying shares of the
Company:

Report of the Board of Directors
EEERE

EENBTSIER &)

(i) RAEBHEROVERE :

Capacity and Description of Number of
Name of Director nature of interest equity derivatives underlying shares
EEER SR RERMEE RAESTE T BAMA HEROEE
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome Beneficial owner Share option (Note) 7,500,000
Rk EnEE A BB (MEE)
Note: These share options were granted under the Pre-IPO Share Mz : ZEEREZIZEXIAHEBIRAE

Option Scheme. A summary of the terms of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and details of the share options granted
thereunder are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate, and no Directors or
chief executives or their respective spouses or children under 18 years
of age had been granted any right to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

PRt IR E - BRDHABIAE
B 4 =t B0 B9 15 30 R0 L 22 M0 4 ot P R
HEBBRBONFE  ERARE
[k — & -

BREXBEEEN R_TENFT A=
T—B AQAEE THRARLEEESEA
MR ARARBRETAEREE(ER
REFLBE GO EXVER) D - HEEK
MREFTHRBEEEAREE S MG KD
EXVEBRTRESD B E AR A f B X AT EY
B (BERZEFREZFLHEGRINEH
BRREERRIEREORZILRE) > HE
R 75 K #5165 362 {5 & 8% 10 7% 15 Bl
Ptz EMeEs  HARBRETRM
MEARRE LB L o

BrLatES  RERNEMMER > KRB HEHE
ERFRARYEITLERMEZE - LASEFHL
BENEMNEBHL T NARATHFLAEBR
BEAQRREMEMEABEBNRNDKE
FMESNGE  UAREFHITREHIESE
EENEBI T/ \BA T FRHEES R
ARBARRBENAEFNTMER - I E
TTEERABER -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ BEXEEREENER | OB ENRE
Interests in Securities” above, as at 31 December 2008, according to @i RZEENF+ A= Jr —H B
the register of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the RAGIEBEZALBAEKGEI6KRELRE
SFO, the following entities had interests or short positions in the HMESELTMAEsE THEENAQR K
shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company HIEBREBEZESMNBEKIEXVIEE2 X
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: EZ3DMERMARREENERIXE

Approximate

Capacity and percentage of

Name of shareholder nature of interest Number of shares shareholding

REEMH BOREEME RO HE FRESNBEI L

SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner (Note 1) 494,382,087 47.99
BEHEERA (M)

SPG Asset Management Limited Interest of controlled 494,382,087 47.99

corporation (Note 1)

el I VNCIE: 5

(BF5E1)

Brilliant Bright Investment Limited Beneficial owner 107,817,067 10.47
EmER A

Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 130,598,535 12.68
EmEAA (M)

HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee (Note 2) 107,817,067 10.47

ZFEA (FEE2)

Note 1:  These shares are held by SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. which is a MIsE1: 5% % M 1D FASPG Investment Holdings Ltd.

wholly-owned subsidiary of SPG Asset Management Limited. SPG FT ¥ & ' SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. A
Asset Management Limited is deemed to be interested in SPG Asset Management Limited Z & & #
494,382,087 shares under the SFO. Mr. Wang Weixian is a director EWF AT BREBZELHEER  SPG
of SPG Investment Holdings Ltd., SPG Asset Management Limited Asset Management Limited#% 18 & # & M
and Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited. SPG Investment Holdings Ltd.fT ¥ & 2

494,382,087 i fp < ez - TEEXRAETD
SPG Investment Holdings Ltd, SPG Asset
Management Limited & Prestige Glory
Enterprises Limited 2 &% o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Note 2 : These shares are held by Brilliant Bright Investment Limited which is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International Trustee Limited as
a trustee of a discretionary trust of which family members of Mr.
Wang Weixian including himself are discretionary objects.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated
by the Remuneration Committee which takes into account individual
performance, qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors
(including the Independent Non-executive Directors) of the Company
are recommended by the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to the directors and
eligible employees of the Group, details of the said schemes are set
out in the paragraph headed “Share Options” above.
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WeE2 - it % B 19 ABrilliant Bright Investment
LimitedFT # & ° Brilliant Bright Investment
Limited & HSBC International Trustee
Limited® & # B # + & @ + MHSBC
International Trustee Limited & — T8 & # {2
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

BE HEIBELAQFZE

THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES i
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company repurchased NEE2—_ZEZENF+_A=+—HLEFE -
7,465,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on A A BN EE T B BE B AN R B A% AN FB AR A R
the Stock Exchange, details of which are as follows : 0.107T 2 7,465,000 % & 17 » 1B T :
Aggregate
consideration
Number of shares Highest price Lowest price (excluding
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
BRE
BE A5 BERGEHE BERESE BERBEE (FEERX)
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(BT (BT (&)
October + A 2,173,000 0.50 0.42 1,083,603.22
November +— A 5,292,000 0.80 0.62 3,685,529.89

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The
premium paid for the repurchase of the shares totaling
HK$3,872,633.11 was charged to the share premium account.

The Directors believe that the repurchases were made for the benefit
of the shareholders as a whole as they enhanced the earnings per
share of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company repurchased
part of the US dollar settled zero coupon convertible bonds due 2012

NAZERHTRAERKAMERK®HB
(EEH)2EHE - BOlRHhN2z2EE
3,872,633. 11 B LB I m B bk o

HREBEBRMDAIREAR
EEHERBRNE FEREN

RBE_ZTNF+_A=1T—HLFE"
ARRABEMPARAR-F 7t¢@)ﬁ_

issued by the Company on 27 April 2007, details of which are as THtHBETZUELBENR I T —ZF 55
follows: TEAERES RO

Principal Aggregate

amount of consideration

bonds Method of Highest price Lowest price (excluding

Date of repurchase repurchased purchase paid per bond paid per bond expenses)

FrigE & % BHESFXM BHES XM BRE

BE A ZESHBE BESZE ZBEafE ZHREE (FEFEHAX)

(RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
(AR®) (AR®) (AR®)

29 December 2008 100,000,000 Off market exempt 40,000 40,000 US$5,858,946.42
share (equivalent to
repurchase RMB40,000,000)

—TENF BN 5 E R 5,858,946.42 3% T

+=A=-+hH B 10 B 88 (BERARK
40,000,0007T )
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

(Continued)

The bonds were issued at face value of RMB100,000 each and are
listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate principal amount of the
convertible bonds outstanding was RMB1,058,000,000. Save as
disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Subsequent to 31 December 2008, the Company repurchased
through over-the-counter market and cancelled the convertible bonds
in the principal amount of RMB54,000,000 at an aggregate
consideration (excluding expenses) of US$4,079,507.55 (equivalent
to RMB27,864,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist in the Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group conducts its business almost exclusively in Renminbi and
does not have any direct exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. In
the event that the value of Renminbi appreciates, the Group would be
indirectly affected.

For the time being, Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency. The
PRC government may adopt measures which could result in a material
difference between the exchange rate of Renminbi in future and that
prevailing or in the past. Appreciation in Renminbi would have a
positive effect on the value of any dividend to be declared by the
Group in Renminbi, when translating into Hong Kong dollars.
However, the Group may expose to exchange loss when converting
any remaining portion of IPO proceeds from Hong Kong dollars into
Renminbi.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by Directors. Based on specific enquiry by the Company, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code throughout the year of
2008.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee is composed of all the four
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The audit
committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the
audited consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December
2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained throughout the year of 2008 the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated accounts for the year have been audited by KPMG.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company’s
auditors for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
WANG Weixian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 April 2009
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Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SPG Land
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 107 to 221,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet of the Group and the
balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2008, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

Report of the Auditors
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Report of the Auditors
% B &

Auditors’ responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2008, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 April 2009

106  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

PEEHEE )

BERERRAITIEF AR Wﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ
THEREBEERNEZRE METHREF
BUR A 12 BURD B9 ) B - @%%HEF Rk
ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%fﬁ%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂmﬂ

R B ERFRERE  RBMEEEZR
T%%&E,ﬁﬂﬁﬁ ERVBRRABH
P BB +m.ET§VkV’1HI#

%ﬂgﬂ%ﬁﬂhﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁ%%5i°%
ERERIBEEETMRANGTRENEES

MERAEEM G AN EEE  URFE
MBEBRROBEE2RTA -
BAEE RAMESHEZERESTEM

EENARMNEZE RIEHER -

=R

BARR ZE GEVBERRCEENMAAR
WRBR - ZEENF+_A=1t—HBEEL
BREQAFAFBERR UREEBEEHEZA
FTFEMEMNERERE  YERBEKRY
BREZEMNNBBRAKINREREEE
b 4 1)

\

EEREHMEEA
RSN

BEERIR

T E1098

RNFKRE8E
—ETAFOA=Z+=H



Consolidated Income Statement

e MEX

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE_FTENFF+_H=1+—HIFE
2008 2007
—EENF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE ARET T ARETTT
(Restated)
(s &%)
Revenue &= 10 1,394,993 1,714,507
Cost of sales SHERAR (853,196) (1,072,298)
Gross profit ER 541,797 642,209
Other income EAUA ‘ 11 3,289 9,237
Selling and marketing costs THE R TG HEER A (69,484) (65,592)
Administrative expenses T E A (157,982) (151,743)
Other operating expenses H AL &R B 12 (7,129) (9,115)
Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries 1%+ &) A5 F 58 8 48,216 -
Net gain on disposal of equity interest & F BIAHEH)
in subsidiaries &N 9 61,140 193,112
Net gain on repurchase of BErEnEs s
convertible bonds W5 55 36 58,252 —
Results from operating activities RELETERER 478,099 618,108
Finance income BEHA 14,199 46,359
Finance expenses BhE AR (102,056) (152,729)
Fair value changes on financial PTELRMIT AR
derivatives AREEED 36 (42,495) 20,725
Net finance expenses BMERAFEE 15 (130,352) (85,645)
Share of loss of associates FEAL B & N B EE (12,717) (8,239)
Profit before revaluation gains on KRetiREYE
investment properties and BEhlaEK
income tax FR8BAEF 335,030 524,224
Revaluation gains on investment KEYE
properties E g 23 25,000 269,626
Profit before income tax BT B HANEF 360,030 793,850
Income tax expense FriSHif X 16 (172,025) (251,580)
Profit for the year FEER 188,005 542,270
Attributable to: AT AL FEMG -
Equity holders of the Company RARIREREA 151,499 517,614
Minority interests VYRR ER 36,506 24,656
Profit for the year FERF 188,005 542,270
Dividends payable to equity holders ~ FE{J 7 A B B4
of the Company BEARE 19
Dividends declared during the year FATIRAE 149,549 —
Dividends proposed after the BEEBEXRRAE
balance sheet date BRAZE 51,185 149,549
Earnings per share FREF
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREXRZFN (ARET) 20 0.146 0.499
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) SREEET (ARET) 20 0.146 0.462
I

The notes on pages 113 to 221 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet and Company Balance Sheet
FEEERERNMARIEERESR

As at 31 December 2008
RZZFEFENF+ZA=+—H

Group Company
AEE KAFE]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENEF —ETEF —EENE e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M5t AR®T AREFIT AR®T T ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(i&E7) (E7)
Assets BE
Property, plant and WE - R
equipment P 21 252,756 246,039 —
Land use rights T A AE 22 79,500 64,173 —
Properties under BREAPYE
development 24 2,558,728 2,356,458 —
Investment properties B YE 23 723,000 698,000 —
Interests in associates i/l = T 26 923,177 982,507 —
Investment in subsidiaries TN 27 — — 3,670,755 3,164,184
Financial derivatives PTESRMTA 36 3,382 46,171 3,382 46,171
Deferred tax assets RERIAE = 32(ii) 88,149 73,728 - —
Total non-current assets JFERENEELZE 4,628,692 4,467,076 3,674,137 3,210,355
Properties under BRPWE
development 24 1,800,902 642,593 —
Completed properties held 2 ERIFEY %
for sale 25 509,861 253,976 —
Other investments Hibigg 28 856 730 —
Trade, other receivables and FEUSBRE R - E {th pE i
advance deposits RETEM RS 29 1,340,466 1,079,564 671,229 656,238
Restricted cash IR HIR® 30 539,771 241,593 — 68,357
Cash and cash equivalents R4 RIREZEY 31 403,531 863,237 10,852 137,138
Total current assets MENEERLE 4,595,387 3,081,693 682,081 861,733
Total assets EEHAR 9,224,079 7,548,769 4,356,218 4,072,088
Equity fER
Share capital N 39 104,818 105,571 104,818 105,571
Share premium R mIE 40 2,081,584 2,084,437 2,081,584 2,084,437
Reserves B 689,460 685,931 453,536 454,980
Retained earnings/ RBEHN
(accumulated losses) (RFHEE) 447,989 451,772 (47,428) (84,289)
Total equity attributable to 22 B REZFE A
equity holders of EihERAE
the Company 3,323,851 3,327,711 2,592,510 2,560,699
Minority interests DERRER 524,409 304,577 - —
Total equity ERER 3,848,260 3,632,288 2,592,510 2,560,699

The notes on pages 113 to 221 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet and Company Balance Sheet (continued)
HEEERBBRNRAAEEAER (H)

As at 31 December 2008
R-ZFEENF+ZA=4+—H

Group Company
AEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE TEELF —EENE —ETLF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FMI5E AR®T R AREFIT ARBET T AREFIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(1 E3) (E7)
Liabilities =L
Interest bearing loans SEER 33 580,000 372,400 —
Trade, other payablesand ~ FEfTBRFR « HAth
advance receipts FENTRIBWZITE 34 1,895,128 1,238,662 734,481 431,200
Tax payable FERTIE 32(i) 323,556 332,421 - —
Long-term payable within ~ —F R E|HIR) K B
one year EARES 35 6,000 —
Total current liabilities REEEEHE 2,804,684 1,943,483 734,481 431,200
Interest bearing loans TEER 33 1,141,860 678,810 - —
Long-term payable RHEER K 35 49,013 — - —
Convertible bonds Al HAE S 36 1,029,227 1,080,189 1,029,227 1,080,189
Deferred tax liabilities EIETRIBEAE 32(iii) 351,035 213,999 — —
Total non-current liabilities FEREN & &5 2,571,135 1,972,998 1,029,227 1,080,189
Total liabilities EEHE 1,511,389
Total equity and liabilities ##% R BEH%E 9,224,079 7,548,769 4,356,218 4,072,088
Net current assets/ FEEE,
(liabilities) (BfE) F8 1,790,703 1,138,210 (52,400) 430,533
Total assets less current  BEER
liabilities REBEE 6,419,395 5,605,286 3,621,737 3,640,388

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23~ R-ZZEAFHA -+ = AR EE S E R IEE

April 2009. Fiz -

Wang Weixian Tse Sai Tung, Stones

TEE i tth R

Chairman of the Board of Directors Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

EFETE FEEFREIEFITIAEH

The notes on pages 113 to 221 form part of these financial statements. FIBERNBZWFEDNZETHEREDAKILD -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equ

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meRemMER

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-_TZENF+-H=1T—HIFE

2008 2007

—EENF It & A

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARBTT AREBFT
(Restated)

(#&E5))

| I

Operating activities R
Profit for the year REEE M 188,005 542,270
Adjustments for: FEIEE
Depreciation e 21 25,898 23,254
Reversal for bad and doubtful debts i [0] REEAR 14 (3,046) (200)
Amortisation of land use rights —+ S {55 P R B 22 1,713 1,440
Change in fair value of investment KEY

properties N EERE 23 (25,000) (269,626)
Net finance expenses RbE B AN ER 15 130,352 85,645
Share of loss of associates FEEEE & R RIEE 12,717 8,239
Gain on disposal of property, plantand  EEW% - HER

equipment RGN (205) (110)
Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries Ul A 7] 2 Uezd 558 8 (48,216) —
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEFARLZ KR F5E 9 (61,140) (193,112)
Gains on acquisition of interests in Al D BAE 2SR B U B

subsidiaries from minority interests FREIRER 2 WS 11 (1,131)
Equity-settled share-based payment FS A 4 E RIS 1) S 1~F

expenses B 13 (568) 25,002
Net gain on repurchase of convertible 8 8] ] & #a (& 25 2 W25

bonds HER 36 (58,252) —
Income tax expense PSS 16 172,025 251,580
Operating profit before changesin  &EZE B EATN

working capital e ERR 334,283 473,251
(Increase)/decrease inrestricted cash R [RHIIRE (&) w4 (298,178) 600,124
Increase in trade and other receivables  Ji& Y BR 7 N E b FE UG ZRIEE AN (262,146) (809,705)
Increase in properties under BRAPYERBEK

development and completed RFEYIEIE N

properties held for sale (679,522) (401,681)
Increase in trade and other payables FEAHBR FX N LA B A~ SR T3 501,324 145,227
Income tax paid SASFTIS R (183,836) (34,559)
Net cash outflow from operating T ERET A

activities ReBE (27,343)

The notes on pages 113 to 221 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

meaBenEgx(B)

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-FENF+-A=+—ALFE

2008 2007
—EEN\EF LT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET T ARETT
(Restated)
(geE51)
Investing activities REEE
Proceeds from sale of property, plant HEME BEM
and equipment BT HIE 820 388
Proceeds from sale of investments HEREMSHIAE — 11,274
Proceeds from disposal of equity HETRa
interests in subsidiaries FriS50a 9 349,068 347,238
Interest received EFE 14,199 37,674
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of WHEFAR] -
cash acquired HBREARS 8 (447,403) (329,115)
Acaquisition of property, plant and WEEME - BRE &
equipment By (21,111) (45,518)
Investments in associates REEE QAR E = (46,612)
Purchase of land use rights BB (P - (19,540)
Payment for purchase of investments B Z 1% &5 (954) -
Additions to investment properties oI gEas)
under development A = (26,310)
Net cash outflow from RETEFA
investing activities HEBE (105,381) (70,521)
Financing activities mMEEE
Proceeds from shares issuance BITIRMD PT1SF0E 38 286 —
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT EIRME S TS A
bonds 36 — 1,158,000
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITEEFTSHKRIA 1,839,220 1,014,290
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (1,290,570) (1,878,940)
Payment of transaction costs onissue 3z {13577 Al E#A(E 5
of convertible bonds IR SR 36 = (23,187)
Payment for shares repurchased SAS A% B 39(b) (4,069) —
Interest paid BEAFE (121,288) (103,826)
Dividends paid B E (149,472) (10,000)
Payment to minority interest TR HAR R E R (32,209) -
Net cash inflow from financing RETBEENES
activities RN FRE 241,898 156,337
Net (decrease)/increaseincashand RERBELZEY
cash equivalents CR2) /HinFaE (451,558) 58,473
Cash and cash equivalents at R—BA—HWELR
1 January HEEEY 863,237 818,974
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [& & & &) 1) 22 (8,148) (14,210)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—8HK
31 December RERBELEEY 403,531 863,237
I

The notes on pages 113 to 221 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information and group
reorganisation

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 13
April 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Century Yard, Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, George Town, Grand
Cayman, British West Indies. The companies comprising the
Group underwent a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to
rationalise the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). On 30 June 2006, the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group.
Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus of the
Company dated 26 September 2006.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on 10 October 2006.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated results of the Group for the years ended 31
December 2007 and 2008 include the results of the Company
and its subsidiaries from 1 January 2007, or their respective
dates of incorporation. The consolidated balance sheets at 31
December 2007 and 2008 are a consolidation of the balance
sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries at the respective
balance sheet dates. All material intra-group transactions and
balances have been eliminated on consolidation. In the opinion
of the directors, the consolidated financial statements prepared
on this basis present fairly the results of operations and the state
of affairs of the Group as a whole.
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GT, George Town, Grand Cayman, British
West Indies © R EBE AR ARG R E S
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WEM  BREEASEANRRETT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

2. Basis of Preparation (continued)

(@)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”). These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except that derivative financial
instruments, investment properties and investments are
measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed
further in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Group’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in RMB has
been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
and in any future periods affected.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Basis of Preparation (continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)
In particular, information about significant areas of

estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying

accounting policies that have the most significant effect

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements are described in the following notes:

Note 8 — acquisition of subsidiaries

Note 16 — income tax expenses

Note 23 — valuation of investment properties

Note 32 — deferred taxation

Note 36 — valuation of liability component,
equity component and financial derivative
of convertible bonds

Note 38 — measurement of share-based payments

Note 41 — financial guarantees

Note 42 — valuation of financial instruments

Note 43 — lease classification.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied

consistently to all years presented in these consolidated financial

statements, and have been applied consistently by Group

entities.

(@) Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
or convertible are taken into account. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control
ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed when necessary to align them with
the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Acquisitions from entities under common control
Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are accounted
for as if the acquisition had occurred at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period
presented or, if later, at the date that common
control was established. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised previously in the Group’s controlling
shareholder’s consolidated financial statements.
The components of equity of the acquired entities
are added to the same components within Group
equity except that any share capital of the acquired
entities is recognised as part of merger reserves.
Any cash paid for the acquisition is recognised
directly in equity.

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control, over the
financial and operating policies. Significant influence
is presumed to exist when the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.
Associates are accounted for using the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost. The
consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of the gains and losses and equity
movements of associates, after adjustments to align
the accounting policies with those of the Group,
from the date that significant influence commences
until the date that significant influence ceases. When
the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an
associate, the carrying amount of the interest is
reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has an obligation or has made payments on behalf
of the investee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iv)

)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an
associate over the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is not amortised but is tested
annually for impairment (see note 3(m)). In respect of
associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interests in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an associate
or a joint venture during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains
arising from transactions with associates are
eliminated against the investment to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(8E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(vi)

Investment in subsidiaries

In the Company'’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 3(m)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).

(b) Foreign currency

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to
the respective functional currencies of Group entities
at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
dominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date
are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency
gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between the amortised cost in the functional
currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for
effective interest and payments during the period,
and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated
at the exchange rate at the end of the period. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Foreign currency (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations
outside the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”),
including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on consolidation, are translated to RMB at the
foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to RMB at exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising on retranslation
are recognised directly in the foreign currency
translation reserve (“FCTR”). When a foreign
operation is disposed of, in part or in full, the relevant
amount in the FCTR is transferred to profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from a
monetary item receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation, the settlement of which is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, are
considered to form part of a net investment in a
foreign operation and are recognised directly in
equity in the FCTR.

(¢) Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise
investments in equity, trade, other receivables and
advance deposits, cash and cash equivalents, loans
and borrowings, long-term payable and trade, other
payables and advance receipts.

Non-derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair
value through profit or loss, any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
non-derivative financial instruments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment loss (see note 3(m)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial instruments (Continued)

A financial instrument is recognised if the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are derecognised if the
Group’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire or if the Group transfers the
financial asset to another party without retaining
control or substantially all risks and rewards of the
asset. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date
that the Group commits itself to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
Group’s obligations specified in the contract expire
or are discharged or cancelled.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances
and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows.

Accounting for finance income and expense is
discussed in note 3(u).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that
contain liability, conversion option and redemption
option components are classified separately into
liability component, equity component and
embedded derivative component consisting of the
redemption option of the Company respectively. A
derivative embedded in a non-derivative host
contract is treated as a separate derivative when its
risks and characteristics are not closely related to
those of the host contract. On initial recognition, the
fair value of the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible bonds. The derivative component is
carried at fair value on the balance sheet with any
changes in fair value being charged or credited to
the income statement in the period in which the
change occurs. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and
the fair values of the liability component and
embedded derivative related to the redemption
option of the Company is included in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The difference between the interest so calculated
and the interest paid is added to the carrying
amount of the liability component. The embedded
derivative is remeasured to fair value through profit
or loss at subsequent reporting dates. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, remains in capital reserve until the
embedded option is exercised (at which time the
convertible bonds equity component will be
transferred to share capital and share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance remaining in capital reserve is
released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
component, embedded derivative and equity
component of the convertible bonds in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds
using the effective interest method. The portion
relating to the embedded derivative is charged
directly to the income statement. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to capital reserve.

122  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

3. FEFFTHE#®)

c) €I A (#)

(i) WHKRES (F)
REVERE  AIBBRES
MEBERDTDAERMN XA
MO BEKAT R - Tt &
HE M BB HMFEZ
EEMABBERSOEE
B - BRARATETARER
BREHHKLEEENEAA
BEFE BuHo (KA
EMo @R ASARRAEBERK
M) BEERELNRFR
N BEE2RNEHREETE (L
B A BRESREDS DK
REBRERARBROEE) -
WX ERBDREDT
8 BB RS ERAS R
ERBEAN - HENHERK
BRI g R B R A ER
Ef#Ea -

HBETAEBRESFHEBHR
S BN TIPS 3R IR B 9 BL
WO EEAEBRESNE
BEESD BRARITETAR
DhEmESs - RAEIHD
HMENZXZRATIGFARE
MoOWEEER XX AE
BRESHEANEERMNE LS
He BRMAAITETAEM
MR HEATIEZ B MEBEXR
OB - EEE SO AN
RHERATEZBRARE
R o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

If the convertible bonds are redeemed by the
Company before maturity, the Company will allocate
the consideration paid and any transaction costs for
the repurchase or redemption to the liability and
equity components of the instrument at the date of
the transaction. The method used in allocating the
consideration paid and transaction costs to the
separate components is consistent with that used in
the original allocation to the separate components
of the proceeds received by the Company when the
convertible instrument was issued. Once the
consideration is allocated, any resulting gain or loss
relating to the liability component is recognised in
profit or loss and the amount of consideration
relating to the equity component is recognised in
equity.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company’s equity share capital, the amount of the
consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs, is net of any tax effects, and is
recognised as a deduction from equity.

(d) Property, plant and equipment

(U]

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation (see (iv) below)
and impairment losses (see note 3(m)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant
and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and are
recognised net within “other income” in profit or
loss.

Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-
occupied to investment property, the property is
remeasured to fair value and reclassified as
investment property. Any gain arising on
remeasurement is recognised directly in equity. Any
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold 20 years
land

Motor vehicles 5 years

Fixtures, fittings and 3-5years
equipment

Leasehold improvements Shorter of leasehold

period and 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at each reporting date.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring
rights to use land in PRC with periods ranging from 40 to
70 years. Land use rights granted with consideration are
recognised initially at acquisition cost. Land use rights are
classified and accounted for in accordance with the
intended use of the properties erected on the related land.

For properties that are held for own use and investment
properties under development, the corresponding lease
prepayments are separately stated as land use rights in
the balance sheet. Land use rights for properties held for
own use are stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses (see note 3(m)). Amortisation is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the land use rights. Land use rights for
investment properties under development are stated at
cost less any impairment losses (see note 3(m)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

Land use rights (Continued)

For investment properties, the corresponding land use
rights are classified and accounted for as part of the
investment properties, which are carried at fair value as
described in note 3(f).

For properties that are developed for sale, the
corresponding land use rights are classified and
accounted for as part of the properties.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sales in the ordinary course of business, use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Investment properties are
measured at fair value with any change therein recognised
in profit or loss.

The fair values are based on market values, being the
estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 3(r).

When the use of an investment property changes such
that it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for subsequent accounting. When the Group begins to
redevelop an existing investment property for continued
future use as investment property, the property remains an
investment property measured based on the fair value
model, and is not reclassified as property, plant and
equipment during the redevelopment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

Investment property under development
Property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as investment
property under development and stated at cost until
construction or development is complete, at which time it
is reclassified together with the relevant land use right cost
(see note 3(e)) and subsequently accounted for as
investment property. At the date of transfer, any gain or
loss arising on remeasurement is recognised in profit or
loss.

All costs directly associated with the construction of an
investment property, and all subsequent capital
expenditures for the development qualifying as
development costs are capitalised.

Properties under development

Properties under development comprise property
developed for own use or for sale. The development cost
of property comprises costs of land use rights for
properties under development for sale (see note 3(g)),
construction costs, borrowing costs (see note 3(s)) and
professional fees incurred during the development period.
Properties under development are carried at cost, less any
impairment loss (see note 3(m)).

Properties under development which are intended to be
held for sale and expected to be completed within 12
months from the balance sheet date are shown as current
assets.

Properties under development which are intended to be
held for own use, or for sale and expected to be
completed beyond 12 months from the balance sheet
date are shown as non-current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end of each
period are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
development costs attributable to the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses, or by
management estimates based on prevailing marketing
conditions.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments represent equity securities held for trading. A
financial instrument is classified as at fair value through
profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated as such
upon initial recognition. Financial instruments are
designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group
manages such investments and makes purchase and sale
decisions based on their fair value. Upon initial recognition,
attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Trade, other receivables and advance
deposits

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
(see notes 3(m)), except where the receivables are
interest-free advances and repayable on demand or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see notes 3(m)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is calculated using
the weighted average cost formula, and includes
expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to
be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one
or more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Individually significant financial assets are tested for
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining
financial assets are assessed collectively in groups
that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Allimpairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial
assets, other than investment properties, inventories
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. For goodwill, recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”).

130  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

3. TE=

TSR (&)

(m) BAE (&)

U

(i)

TREE (&)

BRI EAXNEEEERREH
EEETREANDR HEfd
MEEARZABHEREE
F2 B o B JE B AT R A o

%ﬁﬂ@%%ﬂ 18 & R

2o i A B 7 O 2 o SRR (B
BEREEENSFHARER
£ HABEORERSSE -

FEMEE

AEEFEREE(LNBR
BREME HFEREZRRA
BE)MNEEERNSHREAH
ETEN UBRERSFE
EARET R © W FEEMA
BMERSR - BIAMGGTZEE

ENTKRESRE  tEEm
B TW@%%FX&%E
HETTfA At o

—EHEEXRESELBUN
Al E R EEREER
NABERBEEKANHR
SEEE- - EFXBERAEE
5@ RARRER MG
MHNEBREEERZEE
MBARRZTARER X
BEFRKRERETRS
BE - RETRERANHA &
EREARKNEEMLS
ZEEHMEBBTHERE
ERER EABIBILR
HWEEXNEEHAZRE
m(IREELEM]) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Impairment (Continued)

(i)  Non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting date for any indications that the
losses have decreased or no longer exist. An
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Trade, other payables and advance receipts

Trade, other payables and advance receipts are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption value being recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings on an
effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss when they
are due, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of properties under development or
completed properties held for sale not yet
recognised as cost of sales.

Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee expense,
with a corresponding increase in capital reserve
within equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the options. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest.

The fair value is measured at grant date using the
binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the share options, the total estimated fair value of
the share options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, in which case the adjustment is made
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits). Share-
based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of investment
in subsidiary in the Company’s balance sheet which
is eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(U]

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably
estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 3(qg)(ii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can

be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised
when a Group entity has delivered the relevant
properties to the customers and collectibility of the
related receivables is reasonably assured. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are recorded as
advances from customers and presented as trade
and other payables under current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Revenue (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payment receivable.
Contingent rents are recorded as income in the
periods in which they are earned.

Sales of goods and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer. No revenue is
recognised if there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due,
associated costs or the possible return of goods, or
where there is continuing management involvement
with the goods.

Revenue from property management services
rendered is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised in
proportion to the stage of completion of the projects
at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion
is assessed by reference to work performed. An
expected loss on a contract is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Tuition fee

Revenue from provision of education services is
recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
straight-line method. Tuition fee received prior to the
date of revenue recognition is included in non-trade
payables and presented under current liabilities.

Government grants
Unconditional government grants are recognised as
other operating income on a cash receipt basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in
progress and expenditures and borrowing costs are being
incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs may continue
until the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use. If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds
its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
The capitalisation rate is arrived at by reference to the
actual rate payable on borrowings for development
purposes or, with regard to that part of the development
cost financed out of general funds, to the average rate.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Expenses

(i) Service costs and property operating expenses
Service costs for service contracts entered into and
property operating expenses are expensed as
incurred.

(i)  Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in the income statement as an
integral part of the total lease expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on cash
deposits in bank, changes in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, and foreign currency
gains that are recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest
method.

Finance expenses comprise interest expenses on
borrowings, net of interest capitalised, changes in fair
value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
and foreign currency losses that are recognised in profit or
loss. All borrowing costs are calculated using the effective
interest rate method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net
basis.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity,
in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v)

Income tax expense (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary
differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will
probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be
applied to the temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in
which they are declared.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise convertible bonds and share options
granted to employees.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ReBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(y)

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals,
and post-employment benefit plans which are for the
benefits of employees of the Group or of any entity that is
arelated party of the Group.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing related products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or
services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the reporting format for the purposes of
these consolidated financial statements. No geographical
segment information is separately presented as the
Group’s business segments are mainly managed and
operated in the PRC. The major market of the Group’s
business segments is the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can
be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Segment results, assets, and liabilities are determined
before intra-group balances, and intra-group transactions
are eliminated as part of the consolidation process. Inter-
segment pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible
and intangible) that are expected to be used for more than
one period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Significant accounting policies (continuead)

(@aa) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations were not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2008, and have not been applied in
preparing these consolidated financial statements:

RAMBERERWE (E)
SITHE (#)
(@aa) B KRB 2 FER R E
ZHEBE_TEEN\F+_A=+—
BIEFEMARER ZFER - £EH|

BRI RBBERAEILEA H MR
REIWREA

Effective for accounting period
beginning on or after

(unless specified)

SAAT B RABA s 2 1 B B o
METHEIEEN (BB BB

IFRIC 13, Customer loyalty programmes RO BRERABZEEF 13N 1 July 2008
P RHETE T \Ft+tH—H
IFRIC 16, Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation BIIR B3R &E 2B Z 8 & 5 16% 1 October 2008
HEINEBIRE AL —ETNFE+A-H
IFRIC 15, Agresments for the construction of real estate R BERERARZECE15% 1 Januargj 2009
BHERE =)
IFRIC 17, Distributions on non-cash RO BREREREECE1TH 1Jul 2009
assets to owners MEGADRHEEEE —EEAFLA—H
IFRIC 18, Transfers of assets from customers REBREARZEEF 18N Applies to transfers of assets
BEXFNEE from customers received
on or after 1 July 2009
HRAZEKEFE ﬁé‘ ? E
—ETNEL
} R g A @: i ﬁA
IFRS 8, Operating segments RO BRELANEST  LL€5H i:*}l Jgua% QOOE?
Revised IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements R e LA E15ER 1Ja nua% 2009
ﬂ‘ﬁf/}?%%ﬁ/ﬁﬂ —ZTNFE—-A—H
Revised IAS 23, Borrowing costs BB e el ERRET  #EAL . }1 Jal nua%2ooa9
Amendments to IFRS 1, First-time adoption of International - B FX &1 75 3R &5 £ B 88157 2 (& 5] - g 1 January 2009
Financial Standards, and IAS 27, Consolidated and TR AN [ BX B 7 27 e B 5// KB @st &g —EENE - % —H
separate financial statements — Cost of an investment Bor%  EAREBHK &
in a subsidiary, jointly-controlled entity or associate —RWBRA - RAZHEE
BERAZREMA
Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based payment B RS ERIE 2 2 BE] - K17 1 January 2009
— Vesting conditions and cancellations T — BEEMERTE “EENF- r)% —H
Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: BHEeEAERFE BT 2HTA - 1 January 2009
Presentation of financial statements — Puttable financial ~— 81X 25 — afElol & g T A =y r)% —H
instruments and obligations arising on liquidation REEELMEL
Amendments to IFRIC 9, Reassessment of embedded BB REREZE@E9% 285 ¢ The amendments are effective
derivatives and IAS 39, Financial instruments: AFBHEATETA  REE S5 EF) for annual periods ending or
Recognition and measurement — Embeddled derivatives % 3957:? A 2 BT A RS after 30 June 2009
—BMAXITETA ZEBTEMERYRERE
ABZTZTENFEAA=TH
} &M&ﬁ#
Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures Bl B Bf 76 35 &5 S B 575518 2T - 1 Janua 2009
— Improving disclosures about financial instruments THTR RE - NE2BTARE —EZNE-
Improvements to IFRSs R KR EER 1 January 2009 or 1 July 2009
e e el = =11
\ ) “ETNFLA-H
Revised IFRS 1, First-time adoption of International TETRRE RS ERE1% 5L 1 July 2009
Financial Reporting Standards RN B B 75 8 & £ B —ZTNF+A—H
Revised IFRS 3, Business combinations BT BB B 75 3R 45 22 Bl B 35 - Applied to business combinations
EEAH for which the acquisition date is
on or after the beginning of the
first annual reporting period
beginning or after 1 July 2009
EREBaENERSA
EEVBEEHE_SETASF
] Tt A—HIAERR
Amended IAS 27, Consolidated and separate BRaERE7TR 2B HEK 1 July 2009
financial statements BB A —EEAE+LA—H
Amendment to IAS 39, Financial instruments: BetERFE30% 5] £ TA 1 July 2009
Recognition and measurement— Eligible hedged items BARE — RERYEPIER —EENFLA-A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ReBmERmE(E)

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(aa) New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Up to the date of the issuance of these
financial statements, the Group believes that their
adoption is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

4. Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following new interpretations and an
amendment to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company:

° IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions

o IFRIC 12, Service concession arrangements

. IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and their interaction

° Amendment to IAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement, and IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of financial assets

These IFRSs developments have had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as either they were consistent with
accounting policies already adopted by the Group or they were
not relevant to the Group’s and the Company’s operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation

that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 3(aa)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Determination of fair values

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures
require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the
following methods. Where applicable, further information about
the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in
the notes specific to that asset or liability.

() Properties under development

The fair values of properties under development
recognised as a result of a business combination are
based on market values. The market value of property is
the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. The
market value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and
fittings is based on the quoted market prices for similar
items.

(i) Investment properties

An external, independent valuation company, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience in the location and category of property
being valued, values the Group’s investment property
portfolio every six months. The fair values are based on
market values, being the estimated amount for which a
property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-
length transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

In the absence of current prices in an active market, the
valuations are prepared by considering the aggregate of
the estimated cash flows expected to be received from
renting out the property. A yield that reflects the specific
risks inherent in the net cash flows then is applied to the
net annual cash flows to arrive at the property valuation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

ReBmERmE(E)

5. Determination of fair values (continueq)

(i

(i)

(iv)

Investment properties (Continued)

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type of tenants
actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease
commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting
vacant accommodation, and the market’s general
perception of their creditworthiness; the allocation of
maintenance and insurance responsibilities between the
Group and the lessee; and the remaining economic life of
the property. When rent renewals or lease renewals are
pending with anticipated reversionary increases, it is
assumed that all notices and where appropriate counter-
notices have been served validly and within the
appropriate time.

Investments in equity securities

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss is determined by reference to their quoted bid price
at the reporting date.

Trade, other receivables and advance
deposits

The fair value of trade, other receivables and advance
deposits is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date.

Convertible bonds

An external independent valuation company, with
appropriate recognised professional qualifications, values
the Company’s convertible bonds at each balance sheet
date. Appropriate valuation methods and assumptions
with reference to market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date to determine the fair value of the
embedded financial derivative of the convertible bonds
that is separated from the host debt contract are adopted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Determination of fair values (continueq)

(vi) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee stock options is measured
using a binomial lattice model. Measurement inputs
include share price on measurement date, exercise price
of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted
average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected
due to publicly available information), weighted average
expected life of the instruments (based on historical
experience and general option holder behaviour),
expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based
on government bonds). Service and non-market
performance conditions attached to the transactions are
not taken into account in determining fair value.

e BmRME (&)

5. BEAREBE®)
i) R %S

123

]

B () BRAR / ZEBNFER

EEBRENAABEERA AR
AFE-AHEHEEEAEZAN
BE ZTAMTERE FHED
(REEALRAERNIEYEZ S MA
ENBENEFORBAE) %
ETENMBETFIEFFHRE
BELBIBEREFBEA—RITR
FE) - ERRERERRF X (R
BBRRESFE) EEEAAE
B - T EEZER S IR
Bk RIEM B RIRBIL ©

145



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

6. Prioryear adjustments 0.

In the course of preparing the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2008, it was noted that the
redemption option of the bondholders in relation to the
convertible bonds issued by the Company on 27 April 2007 has
economic characteristics and risks closely related to the host
contract and, in accordance with IAS 39, should not have been
separated from the host contract on initial recognition.
Accordingly, prior year adjustments have been made to restate
the prior year comparative figures.

DR FERE

REEAEEHRE _TTENF+ A=
T—BLEFEMBHRERRBES  ARQA
ARE AEARRR _TZELFHA
“HERBETZAERESZESFR
AZBEBOERERIANETRAZE
BEEHELRER  MREEREENSE
3957 - B BE AR [ 0 1) 5 R SR B T R B
TAEMNDM - Bt RRFEEHAE
FERAEUNBINEFEZLRETF -

Group Company
rEHE AT
Previously Previously
Restated reported Restated reported
BE LA 2 ) BE LLAT 2 3]
2007 2007 2007 2007
—EELE Z—ZETLtHE Z—EBEELtE =—EFTLH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT AR®TRT ARETET
Consolidated Income HEFBEE

Statement
Finance expenses (i) b & A () (152,729) (1565,560)

Fair value changes on MESBMIT AR

financial derivatives (ii) N7 B E (i) 20,725 4,440
Profit attributable to equity N A & IR B A

holders of the Company (i) & 16 & &1 (iii) 517,614 498,498
Basic earnings pershare EREXRZEF|

(RMB) (AR®) 0.499 0.481
Diluted earnings per BEREBERF

share (RMB) (AR#) 0.462 0.462
Consolidated Balance HREBEEARBEX

Sheet and Company MAREEAEBR

Balance Sheet
Equity ’w
Retained earnings/ REBHM

(accumulated losses) iii) (RETEE) (i) 451,772 432,656 (84,289) (103,405)
Total equity attributableto AN A A1 HEHF A A

equity holders of the JE A1 e 2 48 FE (i)

Company (iii) 3,327,711 3,308,595 2,560,699 2,541,683
Total equity R 3,632,288 3,613,172 2,560,699 2,541,583
Non-current liability FFRBEE
Convertible bonds (iv) A] B 8 (5 5 (iv) 1,080,189 1,007,549 1,080,189 1,007,549
Financial derivatives (iv) PTHE € B T A(v) — 91,756 — 91,756
Total non-current FRBEBELE

liabilities (iv) 1,972,998 1,992,114 1,080,189 1,099,305
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Prioryear adjustments continued)

Notes:

(0

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Amortised interest on the bond liability of the convertible bonds is
reduced by RMB2,831,000 as a result of the restatement.

The loss of RMB16,285,000 which arose on re-measuring the
redemption option of the bondholders to fair value is reversed as
a result of the restatement.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (and
consequently, the Group’s retained earnings and the total equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company) is increased by
RMB19,116,000 compared to the amount previously reported,
being the aggregate of adjustments identified in notes (i) and (i)
above. In the balance sheet this is reflected as a decrease in total
non-current liabilities of RMB19,116,000 (see note (iv) below).

The amount attributable to the redemption option of the
bondholders has been restated to form part of the amount initially
recognised for the bond liability and is carried at amortised cost
after initial recognition. This adjustment, together with the
adjustments to amortised interest for the year and the reversal of
the fair value movement on the redemption option of the
bondholders (see notes (i) and (ii) above), has resulted in a net
increase in the carrying value of the convertible bonds as at 31
December 2007 of RMB72,640,000 and a decrease in total non-
current liabilities of RMB19,116,000 compared to the amounts
previously reported.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s

business. The primary format, business segments, is based on

the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. Inter-

segment pricing is determined on an arm’s-length basis.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly

attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated

on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the

period to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used

for more than one period.
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BREOEFHAANBEROEZAAEBEE
B (R EXHEE ) &G)  BHER
—ETAE+ A=+ -HAERES
ZEm R FIE AR 72,640,000 T
FIERBEBERRRZAZMSBERD
AER® 19,116,000 7T °

7 &b EH
DEHERTIRAAREXBME - 5%
DHAETE2HTA  TRASEER
ErAEBERBELY - D EEERR
BEREEBE -

DEHEE BERBBEREIMEERE

EMEB RAAEDREZ D FNIER -

DHEAFAXERNRRNKBEERTBR
— B HIFE A £ #yD BB & BE T B A B A AR
HE -
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7. Segment reporting (Continued) 7. DEIE &)
Business segments E o I0
The Group comprises the following main business segments: REENTEER IO -
e Sales of property o  WIEHE
o Lease of property o WMERE
° Property management and other related services . MEESIEREMBBRG
° Education ° HE
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE-_ZEENE+-BA=+—HILEE
Property
management
Sales of Lease of &related
Expressed in RMB’000 property property services Education Elimination Group
MEEER
UAR®T IR MEHE MERE HE B B HE i) rEE
Revenue from HBEF kS
external customers 1,269,102 60,472 - 1,394,993
Inter-segment revenue %> 2B U 25 - = (41,859) o
Total revenue WA 1,269,102 60,472 (41,859) 1,394,993
Segment result DEEE 253,620 11,368 (6,654) 310,491
Net gain on acquisition WEFRAFZ
of subsidiaries W% 88 48,216 48,216
Net gain on disposalof ~ H{ & F A A
equity interest in PR 2 W
subsidiaries R 61,140 61,140
Net gain onrepurchase [ [@ 7] &5 # & %
of convertible bonds & 58,252 - - 58,252
Net finance expenses BB FE (121,782 (3,449) (6,762) (130,352)
Share of loss of FEIR B & R A
associates &8 (12,717) (12,717)
Revaluation gains on BREMESH
investment properties Iz - 25,000 - - 25,000
Income tax expense ERZ (162,220) (8,566) (1,223) (16) (172,025)

Profit/(loss) for the year 7 F E 3% %I/

(E8) 124,509 25,699 39,072 4,590 (5,865) 188,005
Segment assets DEEE 7,613,210 723,000 303,626 255,871 (594,805) 8,300,902
Interests in associates B AR R 923,177
Total assets EEHE 9,224,079
Segment liabilities PHEE 5,202,383 232,039 230,744 208,127 (497,474) 5,375,819
Capital expenditure BARRAY 28,456 739 19,428 48,623
Depreciation and

amortisation e R 11,084 877 15,650 27,611
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Segment reporting (Continued) 7. DEERE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 (restated) ( ZE_ZET+F T+ A=+ —-BHLFE
(FE5)
Property
management
Sales of Lease of & related
Expressed in RMB’000 property property services Education Elimination Group
MEEER
AAREF IR MEHE mEEE TERA AR HE H rEE
Revenue from HEBEF W E
external customers 1,606,718 29,585 27,243 50,961 — 1,714,507
Inter-segment revenue 7 80 = — — 45,516 — (45,516) —
Total revenue WA 1,606,718 29,585 72,759 50,961 (45,516) 1,714,507
Segment result PEEE 397,775 21,230 8,095 5,061 (7,165) 424,996
Net gain on disposalof ~ Hi & F A A
equity interest in PR 2 W
subsidiaries el 193,112 - — - — 193,112
Net finance expense BE KA FE R (82,720) 611) 599 (4,268) 1,355 (85,645)
Share of loss of FE (5B & XA
associates &8 (8,239) - — - - (8,239)
Revaluation gains on REMEER
investment properties I — 269,626 — — — 269,626
Income tax expense Friefix it (150,972) (98,889) (1,719 — — (251,580)
Profit/(loss) for the year 7 F E %%,/
(E8’) 348,956 191,356 6,975 793 (5,810) 542,270
Segment assets SPHEE 5,752,479 701,710 111,965 240,155 (240,047) 6,566,262
Interests in associates B A8 N A 982,507
Total assets EEAE 7,548,769
Segment liabilities PHEE 3,573,209 232,159 74,769 197,000 (160,656) 3,916,481
Capital expenditure BARL 41,905 26,310 621 1,757 — 70,593
Depreciation and mER#EE
amortisation 6,463 — 2,334 15,897 — 24,694
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8. Acquisition of subsidiaries

Subsidiary acquired in 2008

@

Hainan Jianqgiao Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Jianqgiao”)

On 4 January 2008, Shanghai Oriental Cambridge
Property Development Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with Shanghai Newgench Enterprise Group
Co., Ltd. (E/B¥EB XS E AR A A]) (“Shanghai
Newgench”) to acquire from Shanghai Newgench the
entire equity interest in Hainan Jiangiao at a total
consideration of RMB405,150,000. On 28 November
2008, a supplementary agreement was signed to reduce
the total consideration by RMB6,000,000. Transaction
costs of RMB17,900,000 were incurred. The total
consideration to acquire Hainan Jiangiao was determined
as RMB417,050,000. Hainan Jiangiao is engaged in the
development of a property project located in Hainan
province, the PRC.

Hainan Jiangiao owns 100% of the equity interest in
Hainan Jiangiao Property Management, which is engaged
in providing property management service to the property
project.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A BB REN ()

8. Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) 8. WEEF T (&)
Subsidiary acquired in 2008 (Continued) —EENFRENFLAA (&)
()  Hainan Jiangiao Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Jiangiao”) (i) /E HEREXERLAA(EEE
(Continued) B/ (&)
The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s R WY AEENEE
assets and liabilities on acquisition date: N i o
i RAEEEMTRYE -
Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value value on
amounts adjustments acquisition
g [BR
REEE 2AAREERAE KEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARB T T ARBT T
Property, plant and Y- BEREE
equipment 1,135 — 1,135
Properties under ERAPYE
development 243,128 496,872 740,000
Trade and other JiE U BR 3R K
receivables H e K 87,547 - 87,547
Cash and cash equivalents B NESEEY 70,220 — 70,220
Loans and borrowings BERREE (122,000) — (122,000)
Trade and other payables JE A< BR SR K H At J& 5 3Rk (186,075) — (186,075)
Tax payables FE 1~ B IR (1,343) - (1,343)
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEEE
(note 324iii)) (B 53 32iii ) ) - (124,218) (124,218)
Net identifiable assets and Al % R & =
liabilities BEFH 92,612 372,654 465,266
Total consideration for WEERRE
acquisition (417,050)
Excess of acquirer’s interest NABEARZKE
at fair value over costs JﬂE w2 58 48,216
Total consideration, BRAE - AT
satisfied by: KA
— Cash paid —BEfRE 325,113
— Cash acquired — FTERS (70,220
Net cash outflow WL F5E 254,893
— Non-cash consideration — EHRERE 91,937
346,830
Net cash outflow arisingon Ut E £ R &
acquisition R
— Cash paid during 2008 — ZZEENFENERS 249,980
— Amount due to —RZEENF
Shanghai Newgench +=-—A=+—8
as at 31 December B LB ER
2008 B R IE 4,913
254,893
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8. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Subsidiary acquired in 2008 (Continued)

U]

Hainan Jiangiao Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Hainan Jianqgiao”)
(Continued)

Non-cash consideration is composed of the following
items:

(i) On 2 July 2008, Shanghai Oriental and Shanghai
Newgench, Wenzhou Zhongda Qiaojia Muxiancao
Co., Ltd. (“Wenzhou Zhongda”), a related party of
Shanghai Newgench, entered into a tripartite
agreement in which the latter two companies’
liabilities due to Hainan Jiangiao of RMB63,718,000
were waived by Hainan Jiangiao as part of the non-
cash settlement of the consideration for acquisition.

(i)  The Group settled part of the consideration for
acquisition by transferring two units of villas
developed by Shanghai Cambridge to Shanghai
Newgench with a total fair value of RMB28,219,000.

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were determined based
on applicable IFRSs immediately before the acquisition.
The values of assets and liabilities recognised on
acquisition are their estimated fair values. The
consideration for the acquisition of the equity interest in
Hainan Jiangiao by the Group was based on the net book
value of Hainan Jiangiao as at the date of acquisition with
fair value adjustments according to a property valuation
report prepared by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
(“DTZ”), an independent valuer.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting.

The losses attributable to Hainan Jiangiao amounted to
RMB17,110,000 of the Group’s profit for the period
between the date of acquisition and 31 December 2008. If
the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2008,
the Group’s revenue would have remained unchanged
and the impact on the Group’s profit for the year ended 31
December 2008 is not material, as the acquisition date
was close to 1 January 2008.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

8. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Subsidiary acquired in 2008 (Continued)

(i)  Wuxi Guosheng Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi
Guosheng”) and Wuxi Shenglian Property Development
Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Shenglian”)
Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian were joint venture
companies established on 2 November 2007 for the
purpose of acquiring land from Wuxi Guolian Development
Co., Ltd. (f £5 Bl B 3 & B IR A 7)) (“Wuxi Guolian”). The
two joint venture companies were 49% and 51% owned
by the Group and Wuxi Guolian respectively as at 31
December 2007.

On 25 June 2008, the Group injected additional capital of
RMB66,966,000 (equivalent to HKD76,128,000) for each
of Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian. As a result, the
interests held by the Group in Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi
Shenglian increased from 49% to 79.78%. Therefore, the
financial statements of Wuxi Guosheng and Wukxi
Shenglian were consolidated by the Group from 25 June
2008. As at 31 December 2008, the Group holds 88.84%
and 92.06% equity interest in Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi
Shenglian respectively.

Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian have not carried out
any business and did not contribute any revenue to the
Group for the period from 25 June 2008 to 31 December
2008.

Subsidiary acquired in 2007

On 28 September 2007, the Group entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Run Di Li Property Development
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Run Di Li”), Suzhou Run Di Li
Construction Development Co., Ltd., Jiangsu Zhong Qi
Investment Co., Ltd. and Mr. Wu Jian Ping (collectively referred
to as “the Sellers”) to acquire the entire equity interest in Suzhou
Runjian Property Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Runjian”) from the Sellers.
The total consideration payable by the Group for the acquisition
of Suzhou Runjian is RMB555,284,000. Pursuant to the equity
transfer agreement, the Sellers transferred 90% of the equity
interest to the Group in October 2007 and the remaining 10%
equity interest was transferred to the Group in 2008.

In respect of the consideration payable, the Group settled
RMB197,423,000 (2007: RMB329,115,000) in 2008. As at 31
December 2008, the balance of consideration payable
amounted to RMB27,866,000.
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Disposal of equity interest in subsidiaries

Equity interests in subsidiaries disposed in 2008

On 28 May 2008, SPG Investment XIV (BVI) Limited (“SPG XIV"),
which is wholly-owned by the Company, and HCP Suzhou
Newton Co., Ltd. (“the Purchaser”) entered into a share
purchase agreement (“Purchase Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Purchase Agreement, SPG XIV sold 40% of the entire issued
share capital of SPG Investment Xlll (BVI) Limited (“SPG Xill”) to
the Purchaser for RMB283,500,000. SPG XllI is an investment
holding company and indirectly owns 100% of the equity
interest in Suzhou Runjian Zhi Ye Company Limited (“the Project
Company”). The Project Company is undertaking the
development of a multi-purpose property complex in Suzhou.

The net assets of the subsidiaries as at 28 May 2008 were as
follows:

9. HEFRAKRE

—EENFHEFLARIRE
RZZEZENFRHAZ+NH: SPG
Investment XIV (BVI) Limited ([ SPG XIV )
(HBEARRQARZ2EHA) EBHCP Suzhou
Newton Co., Ltd.([ B 75 |) 5T 2 | 15 B8
Emz((EERZ] BEESHE
SPG XIVIA A R # 283,500,000 7T A B 75
1 &SPG Investment Xl (BVI) Limited
(I'SPG XiIl])40% &) # 25 ° SPG Xl & —
MIREERAR HEEEHNEESE
XERA ﬂ((lﬁa NA) M2 ERARAE o
BHERAREBEMARURGMNNZAERE
WERZEIEE -

ZEFRANR-_ZEZENFAA-+/\H
MEEFENT :

RMB’000
ARBFIT
Net assets disposed of: HENEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment W HWERRE 1,710
Properties under development BREPYE 716,776
Trade and other receivables JE W5 R R K2 E A JE R 35,167
Cash and cash equivalents HekIReEEY 2,830
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEEE (107,874)
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 0 R HL M FE A5 K (92,710)
555,899
Disposal of 40% equity interest to the Purchaser & 40% 8 i T & 5 222,360
Gain on disposal of equity interest in subsidiaries & F 2 & J% # #h U 25 61,140
Total consideration, satisfied in cash DR HWBRE 283,500
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELENRERAFE
— Cash consideration received during 2008 — ZZEZENFEREHREESNE 283,500
Equity interests in subsidiaries disposed in 2007 —ETLFHETORIRE

In October 2007, the Group disposed of 29% of its interest in
projects in Kunming and Shanghai Qingpu District for a total
consideration of RMB412,806,000. The disposal resulted in a
gain of RMB193,112,000. Cash consideration received in 2008
was amounting to RMB65,568,000 (2007: RMB347,238,000).
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e BmRME (&)

10. Revenue 10. W &=
The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised REBEZ-_ZEZEN\F+_A=+—HLItHF
during the year ended 31 December 2008 is as follows: ERANSBETZRESENOT -
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFT
Sales of properties YEHE 1,269,102 1,606,718
Rental income Ee A 26,920 29,585
Property management income YIEEEIA 23,528 19,690
Sales of goods and rendering of services HEEMHMIRERS 14,971 7,553
Tuition fee 2% 60,472 50,961
Total A&t 1,394,993 1,714,507
11. Otherincome 11, g A
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AREEF T
Government grants BT 48 B 1,852
Gains on acquisition of interests in B2 %Ufié =R R
subsidiaries from minority interests N E w2 W 1,131
Compensations and forfeited deposits LS E AEEEER
from contractors BWE L ® 5,784
Others HAth 470
Total &5t 9,237
12. Other operating expenses 12. Hh K& X
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Donations B 3,664
Compensation to contractors BEETERER 5,087
Penalty costs BHIBLAR -
Others HAmh 364
Total A&t 9,115
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RapBmERmE(E)

13. Personnel expenses 13. EIH X
2008 2007
—BEN\E ZETHE
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

Wages and salaries ITEEF® 94,564 59,145
Contributions to defined contribution plans ) 5 (KA B R 9,417 5,440
Staff welfare, bonuses and other allowances  E B4&F) + fEAL R Efh)EEh 12,111 12,264
Equity-settled share-based payment BRELENRMDIARASZ
expenses (note 38) (FF5E38) (568) 25,002
Total &t 115,524 101,851
= =
——
14. Expenses by nature 4. ZHES7HNEH
The following expenses are included in cost of sales, selling and AT ER A - BB K5 E K A
marketing costs and administrative expenses: THRAZORAZNT
2008 2007
—EENFE  —TTEA
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

Cost of properties sold BHEWEXR 771,185 1,008,701
Auditors’ remuneration ZEA 2

— audit services — BRI 2,450 2,461

— non-audit services — FEZRTE 439 455
Depreciation e 25,898 23,254
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 R R B 1,713 1,440
Operating lease charges LEREY 15,571 9,336
Reversal for bad and doubtful debts RIEZIREH R (3,046) (200)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

15. B E WA K AR

2008 2007
—EEN\EF —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBF T
(Restated)
(5eE5)
Interest income on bank deposits SRITIF R B 14,199 37,674
Net change in fair value of other investments 2R 7 (BIEFIERNIBREIER
at fair value through profit or loss HitnR B AR BEZH)FE — 8,685
Finance income BhE WA 14,199 46,359
Interest expenses on bank loans RITEFFEER (121,288) (102,171)
Less: interest capitalized (note 24) B B F B (FisE24) 87,041 59,962
Net interest expenses FEBREFEH (34,247) (42,209)
Interest expenses on financial liabilities REBEXTTEN SR
measured at amortised cost (note 36) BEMNFBEER (WHE36) (46,319) (30,553)
Interest expenses on long-term payable BREBENATERNREENS
measured at amortised cost HEMFEER (1,289) -
Net change in fair value of other investments A 4 BEVIBRNRIEREIER
at fair value through profit or loss HMRE A A EEEEFE (828) -
Net foreign exchange loss b B 18 558 (19,373) (79,967)
Finance expenses A KA (102,056) (152,729)
Fair value changes on financial derivatives PESRMIENARBES
(note 36) (Mi7¥36) (42,495) 20,725
Net finance expenses BhE R A F R (130,352) (85,645)
——
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16. Income tax expense

16. FTEHIEX

() Income tax in the consolidated income () Z#ERNBROFAEHRBX
statement represents: ig
2008 2007
—EENF —ZERLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTF T
Current tax B ERBE TR
Provision for PRC enterprise income tax PR BEMERATEE
for the year g 56,612
Provision for PRC land appreciation tax B IR AR AFE
for the year B 30,700
87,312
Deferred tax EERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary EREZENEER
differences (note 32((i)) (B EE32(i)) (11,711) (7,409)
Benefit of tax losses recognised (note 32(ii)) EERHIERESE
(M E32(i1) ) (2,710) 17,366
Recognition of withholding tax (note 32(iii) TERIEFIR
(B E32(i) ) 4,400 —
Revaluation of investment properties B S
(note 32(iii)) (B 5E32(ii) ) 7,880 48,632
Fair value adjustments (note 32(i) B EEFAE (M EE32(i0) ) —
Effect of change in future enactive tax rate AR BAREREGNTE
(note 32(iiii)) (Bf wE32(i)iii) ) 11,945
Deferred PRC land appreciation tax IEFE R B £ 3B 93,734
164,268
Total income tax expense in income statement  F|JE 3K /) P15 58 2 4258 172,025 251,580
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

16. Income tax expense (Continued)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

Enterprise income tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group did not earn any income subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“new tax law”)
of the PRC passed by Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress on 16 March 2007 and
effective from 1 January 2008, subsidiaries of the Group in
the PRC are subject to PRC income tax at 25%
(2007:33%), except for Kunming SPG Land Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Kunming SPG Land”).

Pursuant to the preferential tax policies issued by the PRC
government in 2008 to encourage investment in the
Western region of the PRC, Kunming SPG Land is subject
to a concessionary income tax rate of 15%.

Withholding tax

Pursuant to the new PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
which took effect from 1 January 2008, a 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1 January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22 February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC
tax laws and regulations are exempted from the
withholding tax. As at 31 December 2008, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB4,400,000 (2007: Nil) have been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of the retained profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries. Deferred tax liabilities of RMB6,082,000 have
not been recognised, as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that certain of the profits
earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries for the year from
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008 will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
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A=+ —H L5 EY & RRAZN
BAEMNEHROWA B BELE
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ERKBRZBEEMEMR
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(THREDIER-_ZTENFE—A
—BREM  AEEFEHTFRAFY
BRI RGP ESENE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(8E)

16. Income tax expense (Continued)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

Land appreciation tax

PRC land appreciation tax is levied on properties
developed by the Group for sale at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, which under the applicable regulations is calculated
based on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including lease charges of land
use rights, borrowing costs and all property development
expenditures. Land appreciation tax of RMB102,338,000
has been included in the income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: RMB124,434,000).

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in the PRC are subject to land
appreciation taxes, which have been included in the
income tax. However, the implementation of these taxes
varies amongst various districts and the Group has not
finalised its land appreciation tax returns with various tax
authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its
related taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best
estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts initially recorded, such
differences will impact the cost of sales and provisions of
land appreciation taxes in the period in which such
determination is made.

160  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

16. TSR X ()

(i)

FEFMBRNWEAEH
X (&)

T g E
AEEHEMBEENMERRL
i {8 {8 1 18 LA30% = 60% K 2 i Tt
EHMPE T IEER RES
ARG L ER IR EmE
FTERERAIINFEAS (BIELi
FERABHEIL  BEXAKRMA
MEBRERAI)FE -BE_ZZ
NEFE+_A=Z+—BLEFEFA
FERPN LI HEERAARE
102,338000 T ( —EE+F : AR
#124,434,0007T ) °

AREETFBEEENERERERD
FRAEAFH I MEER - HE
PIAFREH - A > £ TRME -
ZERENERSAER - XK
B RENRRGHEREEEH
THIRERERE - HKt - £EE
THIRESBENMNEABERARAE
HERHE NEEXKBEDR
RETNRERTEEN - AEE
EREEENREMAERZETE
e WS FENRRHELERZY
RN EEIR - AIZEBEHET
EHEHBRATHRNHEERANR
T E R R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRmE (&)

16. FTB MBI X (&)

FRS BB X e sl 2B
AR RTERNH R

16. Income tax expense (Continued)

(i) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i)
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

2008 2007
—EENFE  —TTEA
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
(Restated)
€ ==x))
Profit before income tax FRET 1S E AR A 360,030 793,850
Less: PRC land appreciation tax W R IR E R (102,338) (124,434)
257,692 669,416
Tax calculated at the rates applicable B IS
to respective companies that comprise BT&AREA
the Group HEFENTIE 64,937 111,069
Non-deductible expenses, net of TRAIHOFESE
non-taxable income (B I0BRBAERBUA) (643) (1,024)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets on unused 7k ) 7% B3 18 8 R TR
tax losses RETRIEE = 4,183 5,156
Effect of change in future enactive tax rate RIEAMEE B = 11,945
Over-provision in prior years BAFEERERE (3,190) —
65,287 127,146
PRC land appreciation tax (note 32) A H IS (E R (PFRE32) 102,338 124,434
Withholding tax TEH0L 4,400 —
Total &5t 172,025 251,580
——

Profit before income tax of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2008 was mainly generated by Shanghai
Cambridge, Shanghai Oriental and Shanghai Zhuijia, which
are subject to PRC income tax rates of 25% (2007: 15%),
25% (2007: 33%) and 25% (2007: 33%) respectively.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
3(v), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2008 as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity.

AEBREBEZ-_TETENF+_AZ=
+—BIEFE RSB R A
FERELERB¥S -  EERA
EBRRELEESHRERRE  ®BEHAKE
25%(ZFT+F 15%) « 25% (=
T LF 33%) M2s5%(ZFET
F :33%) 2B ERBMPBEMEH -

RISV FTH M S ERE - A
REDFRARTKAIREEE BRTSE
AAER R ERIG R R ERD G
FILRBE IS ANEER  WASEE
FHEZZEZEN\F+=ZA=+—H
IFFEABREMNBEERRREL
HEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

17. Directors’ remuneration 17. £S5 €

Basic salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other  toretirement

benefits benefit
ExEé schemes Share-based
Fee BRER  ERAER Bonus payment Total
e HitFlE HE 23 A ki At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARBTR AREBTR ARBTR ARETR

(note 37)
GEE
For the year ended HE-ZEN\E
31 December 2008 +ZA=t-8
LEE
Executive Directors HiTEZF
Mr. Wang Weixian TRELE

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones FERELE

Mr. LaiKin, Jerome (notei) ~ ZRf 454 (FffsEi)
Ms. Wang Xuling FhzEat

Mr. Tam Lai Ling (note i EEE LA (i)

Non-Executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry 8% 4

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP FMEEREaL

Mr. Jiang Simon X. BAEE

Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRELE

Total At

0] Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome retired as a director of the Company on 31 iy BHERLIER-_ZEZNF+-_A=+—H
December 2008 and was re-designated as a non-executive RERRBESTRY  WHAETAELSE
director of the Group with effect from 1 January 2009. FHITEF  BZTTNF—A—AHR

E4

(i)~ Mr. Tam Lai Ling voluntarily resigned from the Group on 30 (i) BEEBEEEAER_ZZNF+-—HA=

November 2008. THEAREEEFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

17. £ < (#)

Basic salaries,

17. Directors’ remuneration (continueq)

allowances Contributions
and other  to retirement

benefits benefit
BEX#He schemes Share-based
Fee ERRE  HRKERN Bonus payment Total
He HttFlE SRR A RE A Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTL  ARRTL ARETL ARETR ARETR

(note 37)

(B3E37)

For the year ended HE-ZZtE+ZR
31 December 2007 =t-BILEE

Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Wang Weixian FRELE - 5,014 - - - 5,014
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones W RELAE - 4,186 - 3,489 - 7675
Mr. LaiKin, Jerome Rigrs - 3,751 - 2,492 6,764 13,007
Ms. Wang Xuling (note i) T A4 (B i) - 2,217 - 1,196 - 3,473
Mr. Tam Lai Ling (note ii) RS (3Tl - 301 - - 3911 4212
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry SR 308154 234 - - - - 234
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP ANEERTEL 234 - - - 234
Mr. Jiang Simon X. BN 234 - - - 234
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BRELE 234 - - - 234
Total A&t 936 15,629 - 7177 10,675 34,317
(i)  Ms. Wang Xuling and Mr. Tam Lai Ling joined the Group in July (i) TREZTRELELENFINR=ZZT

tFLARTZAMAREE -

and December 2007 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

18. Senior management remuneration

19.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2008 comprise five directors of the
Company, whose remuneration is disclosed in note 17. During
2008 no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

Dividends

SREEEN=

AEBBEE—_ZTEN\F+_A=1+—~H
LEENRAERSFMALTEBREART
hEEFE EMESCRMEI7THE - =
ZENFEAKELERNEE S HEM
B ERMAERIMAREER 2 25
RIEDBERAE -

19. R &

(i)

Dividends declared during the year FREERZKE
Dividends proposed after the balance ~ ZBE & Ex Bk
sheet date % 2

2008 2007
—EENEF —EEEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEF T
149,549 —
149,549

(i)

The Company’s Board of Directors proposed a final
dividend of RMB14.4 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2007 at the meeting held on 26
March 2008, which was approved by the Annual General
Meeting on 23 May 2008 and paid on 27 May 2008, and
has been reflected as an appropriation of retained
earnings for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The Board of Directors has resolved to propose dividends
of RMB51,185,000 (RMB4.97 cents per ordinary share) in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2008. The
dividends proposed after the balance sheet date have not
been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A BB REN ()

20. Earnings per share 20. 3R & A
(a) Basic earnings per share () BERELRZR
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year Hz_TZTZN\NF+_HA=+—H
ended 31 December 2008 was based on the profit FTEESERERNRBMNTIZEEAA
attributable to equity holders of the Company of IS A AELSRMNAEREE
RMB151,499,000 (2007: RMB517,614,000 (restated)) 151,499,000 ;L ( = & T + F : A
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of R 517,614,000 T (&L E 5] )) &
1,036,606,306 (2007: 1,037,500,000) in issue during the FANDBEITEERIR 2 MEFESE
year, calculated as follows: 1,036,606,306 % ( 2 FE L F:
1,037,500,0000% ) 5T & + 5FE W T :

Weighted average number of ordinary shares TERMEFTHE
Ordinary share issued at 1 January 2008 RZZFZENF-—A—AMEETEAAK  1,087,500,000
Issuance of shares upon exercise of share options A 1715 B R A T 257 TR (D

(note 38) (Mf3E38) 74,973
Effect of shares repurchased (note 39) BERG 22 (FFE39) (968,667)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at RIZEZENF+_A=1T—0K

31 December 2008 TBAR IR 1,036,606,306
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at RZZEZE+F+-_A=+—H

31 December 2007 EoR=SEli gilib RSk 1,037,500,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

20. Earnings per share (continued)

20 BIREF (&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share b) BREERF
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year REZE_ZEENF+_A=+—
ended 31 December 2008 was based on the profit HIEFEFEEREERFDIEAR
attributable to equity holders of the Company of AR EEAEAEBERANARE
RMB151,499,000 (2007: RMB527,442,000 (restated)) 151,499,000 T ( —Z T E + F : A
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares R #527,442,000 L (& E 5 )) &
outstanding after adjustment for the effect of all dilutive RABHLETERNEEEE S
potential ordinary shares of 1,036,606,306 (2007: FERDRITETEROMEYY
1,141,540,509), calculated as follows: #1,086,606,306 fi% ( = T ZT + F
1,141,540,509 % ) & & - & & @0
BN
() Weighted average number of ordinary shares () EZBBRMETLHH (#E)
(diluted)
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
I 4
Weighted average number of ordinary & 3@ A% Nt 19 £
shares (basic) (FEA) 1,036,606,306 1,037,500,000
Effect of conversion of convertible Hian s IRES
bonds (note 36) 52 (M17E36) - 98,425,409
Effect of share options in issue ERTERECZE - 5,615,100
Weighted average number of ordinary M+ —-HA=+—HH

shares (diluted) at 31 December

BN E 2 ()

1,036,606,306 = 1,141,540,509

Convertible bonds outstanding during the year 2008
have no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per
share and therefore were not considered in the
calculation of the diluted earnings per share.

The average market value of the Company’s
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating the
dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted
market prices for the year that the options were
outstanding. For the year ended 31 December
2008, the exercise price of these options was higher
than the average market price of the Company.
These options had no dilutive effect and therefore
were not considered in the calculation of the diluted
earnings per share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

20. Earnings per share (continued) 20 BlREF (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued) b) SREBEERR (&)
(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the iy XAFEERBRESEAEN
Company (diluted) wmA ()
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(geE:5)

Profit attributable to ordinary equity TR RS e ARG R

holders (basic) (EX) 151,499 517,614
Effect of effective interest on the liability FJ#RES B &S0

component of convertible bonds ERNENTE

(note 36) (Fft5E36) 30,553
Effect of gain recognised on the PRSI E S OTE R D

derivative component of convertible FrigsR iz n

bonds (note 36) T2 (Mi3E36) (20,725)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity LR EEE ARG R

holders (diluted) (#8) 151,499 527,442
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

21. Property, plant and equipment 21. W% - WERZE
Fixtures,
Leasehold Motor fittings &
Buildings  improvements vehicles equipment Total
In RMB’000 #E-KE
ARBETT BF HENELEE AE k#EE &%
Cost: B
Balanceat1January2007 —ZZ+f—-HF—H
EE 192,652 24,753 27,031 57,627 302,063
Acaquisitions EE 29,605 394 6,907 4,877 41,783
Acquired on acquisition RRETFLRAIRES
of subsidiary (note 8) (Ft3x8) - - 790 142 932
Disposals = - (1,064) (1,038) (42) (2,144)
Balance at 31 December “EE+FE+=h
2007 =+-HWEH 222,257 24,083 33,690 62,604 342,634
Acquisitions EE 17,548 5,855 1,503 6,677 31,583
Acquired on acquisition RWETRRIKER
of subsidiary (note 8) (PfffsEs) — — 1,027 621 1,648
Disposals - - - (3,742) (13) (3,755)
Balanceat 31 December —ZENE+Z A
2008 St-AMEs 239,805 29,938 32,478 69,889 372,110
Depreciation: nE:
Balanceat1January2007 Z=—ZZ+f—-HF—H
e 12,773 20,865 15,068 26,501 75,207
Charge for the year FERFTE 10,782 552 4,151 7,769 23,254
Disposals B - (1,064) (765) (37) (1,866)
Balanceat 31 December —ZEE+E+=A
2007 =t+-BM&Es 23,555 20,353 18,454 34,233 96,595
Charge for the year FRNE 13,312 670 4,852 7,064 25,398
Disposals . - - (3,129) (10) (3,139)
Balanceat 31 December —ZENE+=A
2008 =t+-AWEe 36,867 21,023 20,177 41,287 119,354
Carrying amounts: REME !
At 31 December 2008 “ZENE+ZA
=+-H 202,938 8,915 12,301 28,602 252,756
At 31 December 2007 —EELE+ A
=+-H 198,702 3,730 15,236 28,371 246,039
()  Allbuildings owned by the Group are located in the PRC. () AEEHRBHFEEFHMLRAF
o
(i) As at 31 December 2008, buildings with a total carrying iy RZEENF+ZZA=+—8H"
value of RMB141,126,000 (2007: RMB78,071,000) were AEEBCDCEREEHREARYK
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. 141,126,000 (ZZEZT L6 : AR
¥ 78,071,000 7T ) BV F1E /K&

BEEN MM -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

Transfer to properties under development
(note 24)

22. Land use rights 22. T ih{FE FARE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Cost Jo N
Balance at beginning of year F YR 69,822 78,940
Additions 1% 40 17,040 2,500
Transfer to investment properties (note 23) EREREYE (3E23) - (9,660)
Transfer to properties under development EREHRERPME
(note 24) (P 5E24) = (1,958)
Balance at end of year R 4 86,862 69,822
Amortisation ey
Balance at beginning of year F A 45 547 5,649 4,660
Amortisation charge for the year F N 5 1,713 1,440
Transfer to investment properties (note 23) EREREYE (3E23) - (380)

EREERPWE (ME24)

Balance at end of year F IR R
Carrying amounts REE
At end of year F R 79,500 64,173

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring rights
to use land, which is all located in the PRC, for own use
properties and investment properties under development.

As at 31 December 2008, land use rights with a total carrying
value of RMB54,947,000 (2007: RMB56,176,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

THEREERBEEBLN PN LT
EREMOBERNREA
FERAMERERTEREDE -

ZELHA

R-ZZEENF+-_A=+—08 x&£H
BT AE AR 54947,0007T (=

TTHF : AR¥S56,176,0007T ) #) £ 3
EREESAEEEEMNERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

23. Investment properties 23. REW %

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AR T T

Balance at beginning of year F 1) 48R 698,000 333,700
Transfer from completed properties ERECEXNTEME

held for sale (note 25) (P 5E25) — 18,177
Transfer from investment properties HEOQRREPREME

under development — 67,217

Transfer from land use rights (note 22) A+ A (K 5E22) - 9,280

Fair value adjustments: NABERAE
Transfer to income statement \BEEREEK 25,000 269,626
Balance at end of year F R 723,000 698,000
.

All investment properties are rented out under operating leases.

All the Group’s investment properties are stated at fair values at
31 December 2008. The fair values were arrived at based on
valuations carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited.
The valuations, which conform to the Valuation Standards (First
Edition 2005) on Valuation of Properties published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors, have been determined by reference
to comparable sales evidence and, where appropriate, by
capitalisation of net income. The revaluation gains have been
credited to the income statement of the respective year, or, in
the case of revaluation gains arising on transfer of an item of
property, plant and equipment to investment property following
a change in use, to equity directly.

As at 31 December 2008, investment properties with a total
carrying value of RMB517,000,000 (2007: RMB487,000,000)
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.
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24. Properties under development

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

24, R E

2008 2007
—EEBNF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARMET T

Properties under development expected
to be completed:

& HI A 70 AT HA A2 AR A
BERPME -

— within twelve months —+Z@ANRN 1,800,902 642,593
— beyond twelve months —+=-@A% 2,558,728 2,356,458
[ [ ]
|
2008 2007
—E2EENF —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

| I

Balance at beginning of year F )R 2,999,051 1,263,724
Cost capitalised BN YN | 1,580,384 1,866,864
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary (note 8) R U E + A Al EE 1S
(Kisr8) 740,000 677,721

Transfer from land use rights (note 22) ERE L AR (HE22) - 1,887
Transfer to completed properties held HBREOEXNTEDME

for sale (note 25) (HMt7E25) (959,805) (811,145)
Balance at end of year F IR 4E B 4,359,630 2,999,051

Interest capitalisation included in the above:

Balance at beginning of year

Cost capitalised (note 15)

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary
Transfer to investment properties

Transfer to completed properties held for sale

EAt A LaIE B B E AL
ME

F )4 8 69,915 98,867
XA E AL (M FE15) 87,041 59,962
RUEEFRARIKESE 5,853 1,655
EREIGEME - (1,094)

ERTORKEFEDE (46,001) (89,475)

Balance at end of year

F R4 116,808 69,915

The properties under development are located in the PRC. ERPMEIMAFE -

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings is 6.93% HE_ZTZNF+ZAR=+—H1

for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: 6.93%). FE - BEMONMEFHEREFNE A
6.93%(ZZF T+ :6.93%) °

As at 31 December 2008, properties under development of RZEBEENF+ZA=+—H &%

approximately RMB2,214,436,000 (2007: RMB1,051,516,000) BREEELNARK2214,436,0007T (=

were pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings. T+ 4 AKR®1,051,516,000 7T )

BERTVEER/ASEEENERS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

25. Completed properties held for sale

5. EEMEENHE

2008 2007

—EENE —ETLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Balance at beginning of year F ) 4 £ 253,976 387,533
Transfer from properties under development 54 (5 24 R dh 4 2 ({31 24)

(note 24) 959,805 811,145
Transfer to cost of sales HESHENN (703,920) (926,525)
Transfer to investment properties (note 23) EEREIREYE (5E23) - (18,177)
Balance at end of year F I 509,861 253,976
Impairment loss provision included SFAL#MTEE AR EEIE

in the above:

Balance at beginning of year F 1) 45 8 (1,503) (1,503)

Reversal upon sale of properties HEMEREE 1,503 —

Balance at end of year F RS = (1,503)

All completed properties held for sale are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2008, completed properties held for sale of
approximately RMB22,451,000 (2007: RMB99,854,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings.

PIEEEKFENEIURPHE -

RZBEZNF+_A=+—8 KA&£H
DHEMEENARE22451,000T (ZF
T F 0 AR%99,854,0007T) B B2 &K

26. Interests in associates

BEVMEERALAEERENERS -

26. BiE N AR

2008 2007
—BENF —EE+F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®TR AREF T
Shanghai ZhongXin Asset FEREEERK
Management Co., Ltd. AR AT (@) 65,739 65,531
The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan EENEEERE
Hotel Company Limited BR A A (b) 857,438 870,364
Wuxi Guosheng 5 85 B A% = 23,306
Wuxi Shenglian 1R 15 B% B - 23,306
923,177 982,507
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26. Interests in associates (continueq)

(@)

26. BtE N B R ()

Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management Co., (@ LBERBEEEKRERRLA
Ltd. (“Shanghai ZhongXin”) ([EBRE]
2008 2007
—EENEF —E2ELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  ARETFL
Cost of investment & & KR 26,933 26,933
Goodwill on acquisition WEEENEE 2,794 2,794
Share of post-acquisition profit o W B 1% A 3,012 2,804
Loan B% 33,000 33,000
65,739 65,531
—

The fair value of the net identifiable assets of Shanghai
ZhongXin at the date of acquisition was determined to be
RMB89,775,000. The Group'’s attributable share at
RMB26,933,000 represents its 30% equity interest in
Shanghai ZhongXin. The cost of acquisition was
RMB29,727,000, which was satisfied in cash.

The loan to Shanghai ZhongXin of RMB33,000,000
represents the Group’s proportional share of a
shareholders’ loan, which is unsecured, interest free and
has no fixed terms of repayment.

The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel

EERERKE RSO AR E
EAABEFRREERARE

89,775,000 JT °

RNEBEEGEBNA

R %26,933,000 T & AT /M L 6

M E30% M HE -

WHERAARKE

29,727,000 7% LAFR & X +F -

AMEEBREBERHENERXRARE
33,000,000 7T ( BN 7 & & A 16 B R

EW\H %)
TEEFKES o

REER - 2B RERE

(b) LBIEFEBERRLE

Company Limited (“Peninsula Waitan”) ([ME+ 8 1)
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARBF T
Cost of investment "B KA 867,013 867,013
Additional investment in paid-in-capital BINEHRAZIEE 13,665 13,665
Share of post-acquisition loss DGR S (28,240) (10,314)
857,438 870,364
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26. Interests in associates (Continued) 26. BE N AR (#)

(b) The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel b) EBMNEFEBIEERAF
Company Limited (“Peninsula Waitan”) ([9MEE+5 1) ()
(Continued)
Peninsula Waitan is 50% indirectly owned by Delta Link, G EE A B B Delta Link [8 3 7 B 50%
and is engaged in development, operation and et WieEME KERERLE
management of The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel. HHNEEEEIE -
On 7 November 2006, Delta Link invested an additional RZEZEXF+—H+EA - Delta
amount of USD1,750,000 (equivalent to RMB13,665,000) Link [a) 5 2 & & Hi % & 1,750,000
in Peninsula Waitan. (%R AR %13665000

TT) e

(c) Summary of financial information relating to the () TXFEIMBEQNRNMEER
associates, not adjusted for the percentage of ownership BB EARIBEAEEEGEZ A
held by the Group, is as follows: =

31 December 2008

InRMB'000
AEBTT

22BN NF+=ZA=+—H

ShanghaiZhongkin - FERE
Peninsula Waitan NEFE

Liabilities
af
Other  Shareholders’
Assets liabilities loans Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
§E EEE RRER B Wi OER/(B8)
|
446,229 227,231 110,000 108,998 3,071 693
3,004,136 1,264,375 - 1,739,761 - (14,607)

31 December 2007 —E2ZtH+-H=+—H
Liabilities
gf
Other  Shareholders’
InRMB'000 Assets liabilities loans Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
ARETR £E EtEE RREH B Wi BW/ (F8)
Shanghai ZhongXin LERE 366,145 147,840 110,000 108,305 39,358 1,145
Peninsula Waitan NEEE 2,411,967 658,654 321,402 1,431,911 - (5,379)
Wuxi Guosheng EHE S 50,638 3,075 - 47,563 - -
Wuxi Shenglian 8 B 50,638 3,075 - 47,563 - -
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BEE(ER)BRAR/ ZBENFFR

27. Investments in subsidiaries — Company  27. F A A% — XA T
2008 2007
—EENF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBFT
|
Unlisted shares, at cost EETRG - A 3,650,820 3.144,952
Cumulative fair value of share options granted &% ¥ F 2 A]1g 8 1) IR kg 1
to employees of subsidiaries EEANEE 19,935 19,232
3,670,755 3,164,184
The Company’s major operating subsidiaries are as follows: KRG EZLEFRRANT ¢
Percentage of equity
Placeand dateof attributable to the Company
incorporation FARELEREAL
Name of company FEM AR L Direct Indirect Registered capital ~ Principal activities
ARER RABH B & gMEL TEZEHK
% %
SPG Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands, 100% - USD1  Investment holding
2 March 2004 121 REER
EERNHES
“ZEWE=HRZH
Delta Link Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% - USD100  Investment holding
6 May 2004 100%m REER
EBRNHES
ZZEWERANA
Shanghai Cambridge the PRC - 98.24% USD67,670,000  Property development,
(Group) Co., Ltd. 25 August 1998 67,670,000  salesand lease
TERB¥S(5E) hE FHERE HEREE
BRAF —“AANENAZTEA
Shanghai New Independence the PRC, - 88.42% RMB5,000,000  Property management
House Property Management 17 January 2001 AR®5,0000007C  services
Co., Ltd. hE NEERRYE
TRFBERNEER “RE-5-A++tH
BRAR
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27. Investments in subsidiaries — Company 27. F A ®#ERI — K2 A (&)

(Continued)
Percentage of equity
Place and dateof attributable to the Company
incorporation ARAELERE L
Name of company TEAR B L e B Direct Indirect Registered capital ~ Principal activities
AREB RAH BE# & aAMER FEEHK
% %
Shanghai Cambridge the PRC, - 97.26% RMB5,000,000  Clubhouse operation
Country Club Co., Ltd 22 November 2001 AR%5000000 €fEE
LERBYEANRLE hE
BERAR —ZE-F
t—-RZ+ZH
Shanghai SPG Land Property the PRC, - 98.14% RMB10,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 14 August 2002 AR¥10,000,0007C  lease and management
LARRENEHERR HE FHERE HERER
BERAR ZEE-FN\A+IA
Shanghai SPG Hotel the PRC, - 98.24% RMB405,500,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 1 December 2006 AR#405500,00070  salesand lease
TREREERR HE FHERE HEREE
BRAF ZEERETZA-H
Shanghai Sipo Education the PRC, - 65.96% RMB70,000,000  Investment holding
Development Co., Ltd. 9 October 2001 AE#70,00000070 REEK
(“Sipo Education’) HE -
TEBRYEERERAA “EZ-E+ANA
(TBB#E])
Shanghai Sipo Polytechnic the PRC, - 65.96% RMB5,000,000  College education
TERBRITER 15 April 2003 AR¥5000000r ERHE
hE -
“ZE=FMATHA
Shanghai Sipo Vocational the PRC, - 65.96% RMB200,000  Technical training and
Technical Training Centre 14 October 2003 AR®200,0007T  technology consultancy
TRBERERMEIH L HE SUEE NS

“T2=F+A+EA

176  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

27. Investments in subsidiaries — Company 27. F A ®#EERI — N2 7 (&)
(Continued)
Percentage of equity
Place and dateof attributable to the Company
incorporation ARRELEREL
Name of company TEAR B L B Direct Indirect Registered capital ~ Principal activities
AREB RAH BE# B aAMER FEEHR
% %
Shanghai Oriental Cambridge the PRC, - 100% RMB650,000,000  Property development,
Property Development 26 September 2002 AR %650,0000007C  salesand lease
Co., Ltd. - FHERE HEREE
LERFEBRHERE Z—TT-FAA=1H
BRAF
Shanghai Lishui Greenary the PRC, - 51% RMB10,000,000  Landscape construction
Ecology Engineering Co., Ltd. 7 November 2003 AR¥10,000000C  project
LABKEESIR HE - HESEYE
BRAF ZEE=F+—-AtA
Shanghai Cambridge the PRC, - 100% RMB500,000  Project management,
Construction Consulting 29 April 2004 AR¥500,0007C  consulting and services
Co,, Ltd. hE BERER  FARRE
TRRBYBRERS “EEMEMAZ+NH
BRAR
Shanghai Shikang Property the PRC, - 60% USD140,000  Property agency and
Consutting Co., Ltd. 7 January 2003 140,000%7C  consulting
LBt REEES T MERERES
BRAR ZZZ=5—-HtH
Shanghai Zhuxi Investment the PRC, - 98.14% RMB30,000,000  Industry investment,
Enterprise Co. 2 December 2003 AR®30,0000007C  management and
FEREEEREBRAA HE business consulting
“RE-F+_AZH EXRE EER
ElEE)
Huangshan Taiping Lake the PRC, - 100% RMB120,000,000 Hotel development and
Resort Hotel Development 7 January 2004 AR #120,000,0007C  operation
Co,, Ltd. - BEERERES
BELATFRERBELE “ZEmE-AtA
BERAR
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27. Investments in subsidiaries — Company 27. F A ®#ERI — K2 A (&)

(Continued)
Percentage of equity
Place and dateof attributable to the Company
incorporation ARAELERE L
Name of company TEAR B L e B Direct Indirect Registered capital ~ Principal activities
AREB RAH BE# & aMELX TEXHK
% %
Huangshan Cambridge the PRC, - 100% RMB50,000,000  Property development,
Property Development 22 July 2004 AR®50,0000007  salesandlease
Co., Ltd. M FHERE HEREE
BURE+BRHERR _—TTMNFtA-T+=H
BRAHF
Huangshan SPG Land the PRC, - 100% RMB100,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 16 August 2007 AR#%100,000,0007C  salesandlease
BELESENERARAA HE FHERE HERES
ZEELENATAA
Huangshan Shengyuan Hotel the PRC, - 100% RMB150,000,000  Hotel development and
Development Co., Ltd. 17 August 2007 AR #%150,000,0007C  operation
BLREEERRAERDA Mg BERERER
ZEELENAT LA
Huangshan Shengzhi Hotel the PRC, - 100% RMB150,000,000  Hotel development and
Development Co., Ltd. 17 August 2007 AR #%150,000,0007C  operation
BIBREEEERERAA hE BERZERER
ZETEENATLEA
Huangshan Shengdi Real Estate the PRC, - 100% RMB150,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 16 August 2007 AR#150,000,00070  salesand lease
BELEHEHERE HE - FHERE HERES
BERAR ZZELENATAA
Huangshan Shengde Real Estate the PRC, - 100% RMB150,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 16 August 2007 AR%150,0000007C  salesandlease
BLEERMELR M FHERE HERES
BRAA ZEEEENATRA
Kunming SPG Land Development the PRC, - 71% RMB142,500,000  Property development,
Co., Ltd. 9 November 2006 AR#142500,00070  salesand lease
ERBRSEREREERAA hE EHERYE HEREE

“EEXFT-ANA
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27. Investments in subsidiaries — Company 27. F A ®#EERI — N2 7 (&)

(Continued)
Percentage of equity
Placeand dateof attributable to the Company
incorporation ARRELEREL
Name of company TEAR B L B Direct Indirect Registered capital ~ Principal activities
AREB RAH BE# & aAMELX TEXHK
% %
Kunming SPG Grand City the PRC, - 71% USD40,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd 15 June 2007 40,000,000 7L  salesand lease
ERESAHBHELR hE FHERYE HEREE
BERAR “EZLERATHA
Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge the PRC, - 71% RMB280,000,000  Property development and
Property Development 24 September 2003 AR ®280,000,00070  sales
Co,, Ltd. hE EHERERHE
TEKERBEERME _—TE=FAA-TMA
HERRDA
Suzhou Runjian Property the PRC, - 60% RMB550,000,000  Property development,
Co., Ltd. 28 September 2007 AR %550,0000007C  salesand lease
BNEREXARAT hE FHERE HEREE
“ETEENAZTNA
Wuxi Guosheng Property the PRC, - 88.84% HKD425,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 2 November 2007 425000,000/8 70 salesand lease
ESAREERERERAA HE FHERYE HEREE
“EE+E+-AZH
Wuxi Shenglian Property the PRC, - 92.06% HKD425,000,000  Property development,
Development Co., Ltd. 2 November 2007 425,000,000/ 7 salesand lease
EARMEEREERLAA - FHERE HEREE
“ERE+E+-AZH
Hainan Jiangiao Real Estate the PRC, - 100% RMB115,000,000  Property development,
Co., Ltd. 4 January 2008 AR®115000,000700  salesandlease
BHRBEXARAT hE FHERYE HEREE
—ZE\5-HAMEA
Hainan Jiangiao Property the PRC, - 88.42% RMB1,000,000  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 4 January 2008 AR®1,0000007T  services
BERBNRERERAA e NEERRHE

“TT\¥-AEA
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27. Investments in subsidiaries — Company 27. F A ®#ERI — K2 A (&)
(Continued)
Percentage of equity
Placeand dateof attributable to the Company
incorporation ARAELERE L
Name of company TEAR B L e B Direct Indirect Registered capital  Principal activities
ARER RAH =8 B TMER FTEK
% %

Changshu SPG Land the PRC, - 100% RMB200,000,000  Property development,

Development Co., Ltd. 12 July 2007 AR®200,000,0007C  salesandlease
FARRRERE HE BHERE HERES

BRAA S e =
Changshu SPG Real Estate the PRC, - 100% RMB350,000,000  Property development,

Development Co., Ltd. 24 October 2007 AR#350,0000007C  salesand lease
EARMEEERLA HE - FHERE HERHEE

“EE+E+AZ+NA

Wuxi SPG Land Development the PRC, - 100% USD20,000,000  Property development,

Co., Ltd. 5 June 2007 20,000,000%7C  salesand lease
ERRSEHEREAR HE EHERE HEREE

AT ZZTEERARA
All these entities are controlled subsidiaries as defined under FrEZEERY AN E3QOMTATH X
note 3(a)(i) and have been consolidated into the consolidated THFRATRIREE M ALGE P BRE -

financial statements.

28. Other investments 28. Hik &
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Equity securities held for trading BEZXSENERTES m 730
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29. Trade, other receivables and 20. EUNBRFX - EftEIRF K&
advance deposits Ef®RE
Group Company
wE F NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —TTLHE =—BENF _"TTLHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTRT ARBTT AR®TR ARETET

Receivables due from FEW RRE AT
related parties: RIA
—Chairman of the Board —EEEFF
(note 45(c)) (M 5E45(c)) = -
—Subsidiaries — FRH 241,315 93,530
—Other related parties — EMmBEEALT
(note 45(c)) (FMf3£45(c)) : ) 32 50

241,347 93,580

Trade receivables due from  fEULE = &9

third parties B 5 AR -
Advance payments to TEAT R P BB

contractors 29,184 321
Advance deposits for Wi B + b {55 3 A

acquisition of land use M TEIE S

rights 1,087,303 847,429 429,882 496,769
Receivable related to BAHETAR

disposal of equity interest % # & fiE U BR 3¢

in subsidiaries (note 9) (HfF3£9) — 65,568 65,568
Non-trade receivables H b B WK 66,705 53,055 —
Tax prepayments T8 B 3K 126,126 65,553 -
Total A&t 1,340,466 1,079,564 671,229 656,238
The receivables due from related parties are unsecured, non- FEWEBEATHRELSEEA 2B LERE
interest bearing and repayable on demand. SKEFEE -

Non-trade receivable balances, deposits and advances to third HEMmERRIELH® ST RBRNE=ZAOK
parties are expected to be settled or recovered within one year. HIEHR —FRBES UG -

Tax prepayments mainly represent prepayment of business tax EABR T ERERBEEE TERTYWEME

during the pre-sale stage of certain properties under R E SR o
development.
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29. Trade, other receivables and
advance deposits (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at each balance sheet
date is as follows:

29. EWWERF - HWE W F K
AN E #)

RUREFNEEEBOKREDTAOT

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EZENF e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

| I

Within 90 days 0 HMA 5,236 1,417
Over 90 days and within 180 days 90H &#180H B35 499
Over 180 days and within 365 days 180 H £365H 369 732
Over 365 days 365 H A £ 27 869
5,967 3,517

N

30. Restricted cash

Pursuant to relevant regulations, certain subsidiaries of the
Group which engage in property development have restrictions
on their ability to draw cash from specified bank loan accounts
for uses other than the purchase of construction materials and
payment of development costs relating to the relevant property
projects. As at 31 December 2008, the bank account balances
subject to these restrictions amounted to RMB539,771,000
(2007: RMB173,236,000).

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2008, cash at bank of the

Company of nil balance (2007: RMB68,357,000) was security
for short-term loans of certain of its subsidiaries.
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30. ZRHI\ €

BEBBRN AEBEE TR EYWER
RO FRAABIEEEHRITERFORR
BeFABEREMBRERINBEAY
X¥BEBERKRANUIINNAR - AR
#l e RZTEENF+_A=+—80" &
BETZERINEBITPOEHAAR
#5389,771,000L ( BT+ F : AR
173,236,000 7T ° )

oy RZEEZNF+ZA=+—H"
RARARRITIFERRBAREZTT( =
+4& : AR®68,357,0007T)  BEHET
FTAREREHERNER -
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31. Cash and cash equivalents M. BERKREEEY
An analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents is set HeMREEBYNESS TN T -
out below:
Group Company
rE NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE Z—ZTTLF —EENFE ZTT+LHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTRT ARBTT AR®TRE ARETT

Cash at bank and cash wOTERARBES
in hand 943,302 1,104,830 205,495
Less: restricted cash W RREIRE
(note 30) (M3E30) (539,771) (241,593) (68,357)
403,531 863,237 137,138
Cash at bank and cash in hand are denominated in: Uy EBEENRITERANES
RMB AR 816,533 772,582 -
usD ETT 45,033 191,572 110,031
AUD YR IT 5 7 —
HKD BT 81,731 140,669 95,464
943,302 1,104,830 205,495
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of AEBIWIEBREIEE - P HEH
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions ARMBE TR BT HIET A E LR H -

imposed by the PRC government.
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32. Tax payable/Deferred tax assets/ 2. BIFTBHR, EEXEKHEE
(liabilities) E/(8af)
(i) Current taxation in the consolidated balance () HREEEEBBXRNAHHRSE
sheets represents: i ig
PRC income tax PEIFTEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Balance brought forward X BI] 45 #5 10,499
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary RUEFRARREERS
(note 8) (MF7E8) 700 —
Provision for PRC enterprise income tax
for the year F AR B FTSRR A 71,290 56,612
PRC income tax paid BRNFPEERH (128,184) (7,690)
Balance carried forward it 3,227 59,421
PRC land appreciation tax FE L E R
2008 2007
—EENF ZEELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
A E S ARKEF T
Balance brought forward A Bl 4 £ 273 000 175,435
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary RUEE T A AIKFES
(note 8) (Mfzx8 ) 643
Provision for PRC land appreciation tax FREPE L IZER
for the year (note 16) B im (M 5E16) 102,338 124,434
PRC land appreciation tax paid B R4 g ER (55,652) (26,869)
Balance carried forward EREE 320,329 273,000

184  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

32. Tax payable/Deferred tax assets/ 32. BITFTBHR ELEFIE
(liabilities) (continued) B/ (AfR8) @
(i) Deferred tax assets recognised: (i) SEIELEHEEE :
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the BEAEGEEERAER ﬁE B E’] iR AE B
consolidated balance sheets and the movements during BHEELMDERBE_SENFE T+
the year ended 31 December 2008 were as follows: “A=+—BILEENEFHEOT :
Temporary
difference on
revenue Temporary
recognition difference on
and related recognition of
cost of sales expenses Tax losses Total
WHEBEER
FEHE
A BIAEAN
EREE TRHER REER &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT AR¥EFTT AR%®TTT
At 1 January 2007 —EELF
—HA—H 13,609 29,769 20,770 64,148
Additions 20 806 21,284 8,855 30,945
Charged to consolidated  7E 43 & 7 M %
income statement % (13,675) (1,006) (26,221) (40,902)
Effect of change in future 7k 3 i FA i &
enactive tax rate BN ETE 494 19,868 (825) 19,537
At31December 2007 =TT H4F
+-_B=+—H 1,234 69,915 2,579 73,728
Additions eyl — 24,931 10,916 35,847
Charged to consolidated 7t 43 & F)F & 1 %
income statement (1,234) (11,986) (8,2006) (21,426)
At31December2008 ~ —ZTFT )\ 4
+=—A=+—H — 82,860 5,289 88,149
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32. Tax payable/Deferred tax assets/
(Iiabilities) (Continued)

(if)

Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had unused tax
losses of RMB97,767,000 (2007: RMB74,649,000)
available to offset against future profits. Deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of tax losses
amounting to RMB13,175,000 for Kunming SPG Land
and RMB13,249,000 for other group subsidiaries at a tax
rate of 15% and 25% respectively as at 31 December
2008 (2007: RMB10,316,000, 25%). No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of the remaining
tax losses of RMB71,343,000 (2007: RMB64,333,000)
due to the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams
of the legal entities concerned as at 31 December 2008.
The unrecognised tax losses for the year ended 31
December 2008 will expire in the following years ending
31 December:

. JE
&

—

=

5 *‘/ : 4E B4 18
/( 8E&) @

EHERELEREBEE !
EG:EEJ\EwaH:wL—EI 'Z}S
S 1) S = I N [ O B N5
A% EE AR A K ®97,767,000 7T
(ZZEZT L F: AR 74,649,000
ﬁ)o AZEENF+ZA=+—
H - BB EIE D B & 15% & 25%
MEBRANELEHRIEEERARK
13,175,000 T (FEE A B S B m
=) M AR¥13,249,0007T (5t E b
SEFLREImME)(ZEZTLF
AR #10,316,0007C © 25%) ° AR
TEHEBEREBBAEE R KRNRE
AREEFRE BT HEE - B
TEENFE+-_A=+—BAE X
H 2 B 15 B 18 A R ¥ 71,343,000 7T
(ZEZ 4 A K ¥64,333,000
T)MREEHREBEEE - REEZ
EENF+ A=+ —HLFEHD
AERMBEBENUTEET =
A=+—HLEFERER:

P

2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBFIT

2008 —ETNF 9,720
2009 —EENF 11,023
2010 —T—TF 17,908
2011 —ET——% 11,187
2012 T 14,495
2013 —F—= —
64,333
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32. Tax payable/Deferred tax assets/ 32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Iiabilities) (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated balance sheets and the movements
during the year ended 31 December 2008 were as

e BmRmE (&)

[ !

EESGCEERBRERNELTH
HREEHOERBEZE_ZTZTNE+
“A=T-HLEFENESHET :

follows:

Revaluation of

Withholding investment Fair value
tax properties adjustments
REME DREE Total
BEMEHR R AE &3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBFT
At 1 January 2007 —ZEZ4+F—H—H — 24,045 - 24,045
Charged to consolidated £ 4% & F B £ Bk
income statements — 48,632 — 48,632
Arising from acquisition WHFARESE
of subsidiary (note 8) (H5E8) - - 109,840 109,840
Net effect of change in ARBATEREH
future enactive tax FE
rate — 31,482 — 31,482
At 31 December 2007 e S
+-A=+—H — 104,159 109,840 213,999
Arising from acquisition WETFRARIEYE
of subsidiary (note 8) (ffzx8) - - 124,218 124,218
Chargedto consolidated ~ 7E47 A FI B X 1k
income statements 4,400 7,880 12,054 24,334
Realisation for the year FERNER — — (11,516) (11,516)
At 31 December 2008 —TENE
tZA=+—H 4,400 112,039 234,596 351,035
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33. Interest-bearing loans 33. s FEEX
2008 2007
—SENF —TTLF
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARMET T

Current EH
Secured bank loans BEBRITER 50,000 103,400
Unsecured bank loans EIXIFRITE R 5,000 5,000
Unsecured loans from related parties KB E AL EE
(note 45(c)) B3k (K sE45(c)) 200,000 —
Current portion of non-current FEARTRBERD
secured bank loans —FRIHOE D 325,000 264,000
580,000 372,400
Non-current EH
Secured bank loans BEFRITER 1,466,860 942,810
Less: current portion of non-current B BRI RER
secured bank loans M —FREEH 5 (325,000) (264,000)
I 1,141,860 I 678,810
I
The secured bank loans as at 31 December 2008 were secured RZEENF+_A=+—HHEIKR
by the Group’s properties and land use rights with carrying FHERTEFUNAEEREEEAARE
amount of RMB2,941,693,000 (2007: RMB1,772,617,000) 2,941,693,000 T( T+ F: AR
(notes 21, 22, 23, 24 and 25). 1,772,617,000 7T ) B ) 2 K £ 0 {F 4

EAIKTR (Ff3E21 ~ 22 ~ 23 24 K% 25) -
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33. Interest-bearing loans (Continued) 3B.FTEEF (&)
The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as follows: AREFBNRARITEFTERATEHEE
=
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETTT

Within 1 year —FR 325,000 264,000
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —EWE 250,000 460,520
Over 2 years but less than 5 years —EHRF 511,860 90,290
Over 5 years HEMNE 380,000 128,000

1,466,860 942,810

The effective interest rates of the year ended 31 December 2008

2%

BE_ZTZN\FR_ZEZLF+_A
T—RLEFENERNEMT

and 2007 were as follows:

2008 2007
—BBNAFE  _FTTLHF
Bank loans RITER
The carrying amounts of current and non-current bank loans CHEEHRETERNEREEA LB
approximate their fair value. 1B 4830
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34. Trade, other payables and

34. BEATBRFX »

HtEMRK R

advance receipts W X 18
Group Company
rE ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEBENE _—TT+F ZBBENFE _TTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT AR®TR ARETET
Payables due to related JETEE AT FIR -
parties:
Trade related (note 45(c)) Z S5 EMNERZK
(Kt 5E45(c)) 11,920 15,952
Non-trade related: E b B A R
— Dividends payable — ERTRE
(note 45(c)) (Bt 5E45(c)) 9,173 9,173 - —
— Subsidiaries — FRA - — 689,819 424,023
— Other related parties — EMmBEEAL
(note 45(c)) (Bt 5 45(c)) 10,601 11,101 - —
31,694 36,226 689,819 424,023
Trade payables FE AT BR X 652,355 390,497 —
Advance receipts from TEUW = F B
customers 1,036,776 445,378 —
Other taxes payable H i ENFRIE 13,026 36,778 —
Dividends payable &A% B 77 — —
Non-trade payables and H b KA TERR
accrued expenses ZH 161,200 329,783 44,585 777
Total &=t 1,895,128 1,238,662 734,481 431,200

The payables due to related parties are unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables at each balance sheet

date is as follows:

Group

rE
2008 2007
—EBENE —EELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T
Within 90 days 0HRW 384,815 136,259
Over 90 days and within 180 days HiEO0H £180H 116,754 86,792
Over 180 days and within 365 days HiB180H =365 H 92,707 89,768
Over 365 days and within 3 years HiB365H £23F K 69,999 93,630
664,275 406,449
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35. Long-term payable 35. REIEAR
Group
A%
Term Initial Cost 2008 2007
F 5 ARy ZZBEENFE —ZZTFTLF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TR AR®TRT

Long-term payable RHIEA R 15 years 58,453 55,013 -
Less: Long-term payable 5 : — 4= &y 5 i ) 154
due within 1 year & B 5 50 (6,000) —
Long-term payable due —FE RPN EE
after 1 year FEF 3R 49,013 —

The amount is repayable RUTEBRE:SY

as follows: KB :
Within 1 year —F R -
Over 1 year and within BB —FEEME

2 years -
Over 2 years and within BEWMEERE

5years _
After 5 years AFEE —
Long-term payable represents construction cost payable to a RHEMNSEEN —ZEEFNEEK
contractor. The amount is non-interest bearing and repayable in KNeZEFHEARE A -_ZEZENFE
15 annual instalments of RMB6,000,000 each, starting from 1 LA —HBEDIEEES - AR #&
September 2008. 6,000,0007T °
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BI ISR RE (&)

36. Convertible bonds (restated)

On 27 April 2007, the Company issued USD Settled Zero
Coupon Convertible Bonds due in April 2012 in the aggregate
principal amount of RMB1,158,000,000. The subscription
amount payable in respect of each unit of the Convertible Bonds
is RMB100,000 (approximately USD12,952). The Convertible
Bonds are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited. The details of the principal terms of the Convertible
Bonds are set out in the Company’s 2007 annual report. Prior
year adjustments relating to the Convertible Bonds are detailed
in note 6.

On 29 December 2008, the Company repurchased 1,000 units
of Convertible Bonds with a total principal amount of
RMB100,000,000. The bonds were repurchased with a total
consideration of USD5,858,946, equivalent to RMB40,000,000.
These bonds were cancelled upon repurchase.

The fair value of the embedded derivative of the Convertible
Bonds was calculated using certain valuation models. The major
inputs used in the models as at 31 December 2008 and 31
December 2007 were as follows:

36. TEBEE (KEH)

WN-ZEZTLEMA-++H KAQF 3
1A & 8% B A R%1,158,000,000 7t 3
RZE—ZFHAHNUETENSD
TREAERES BEAEBESNR
%%%ﬁAEMmMWﬁHWMm&
EL)c IHBESFRITIMEZFLER
FrBRA 71moﬁ%7%ﬁ%%%$

ZRFANFBHIREARA ZEELFF
e BATEHBRES 2BAFERAED
ARG -

RZZZENF+_A=+hB AQF
BBE1,000m Al EnELR(BAEEAA
R 100,000,000 ) - B EZ EEH K
BB R5858946% 7T - HHE N ARM
40,000,0007C ° Z FEFNEE BT -

AEBRESZBARITETANR
BERETHEEAFE R-FF
Ft+-A=Z+-"BAR-_ZETLHF+ -
E+—E’avﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁigﬁﬁ
W

&

/

=i

| NH Ft

Redemption option

Stock price % &

Exercise price THEE
Risk-free rate 5 3 g ) R
Expected life IG5t A’ Y
Volatility S g

The stock prices were as at 31 December 2008 and 31
December 2007 respectively. The risk-free rates were
determined with reference to the Hong Kong Exchange Fund
Notes Yields as extracted from Bloomberg. The expected lives
were estimated based on the terms of the Convertible Bonds.
The volatilities were determined based on the historical price
volatility of the Company.
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of the Company

N T R E
31 December 31 December
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
+=A +=A
=t+—-H =t—H
| I
HK$0.997& T HK$6.987% 7T
HK$7.777%8 7t | HK$8.1165/%8 7T
0.871% 2.989%
40 months 18 B 52 months 1@ A
82.85% 52.60%

|
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BE-_ZTLF+-_A=+—HMIT
MER - BEARNETEL2REBIER
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i ET o K8 BIR IR A 2 B 60 2 (B 18K

@ i # 5E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

36. ARG S (KES) =)

MZEANTERBELREMNEE - &
GEYMARTETIAEN AR BELR

36. Convertible bonds (restated) (continueq)

Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result in
changes in the fair value of the embedded derivative. The

variables and assumptions used in calculating the fair value of B o AERMARNTETIEAENAARBE
the embedded derivative are based on the directors’ best HAFERRNESNBRERIIENREENR
estimates. FEEE o

The movement of the liability component, the embedded FRAEBRESNEBESDRD » AR
derivative, and the equity component of the Convertible Bonds PTHET AU RERIS D ZB)E NET
for the year is set out below: N
Redemption
Liability option of the Equity
component Company component Total
b NN B
=R L ERTo &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®FTRT AREFT ARE®TTT
Convertible Bondsissued W —ZEZ+ 4
on 27 April 2007 MA=Z++H
BITH R B E 5 1,070,613 (25,446) 112,833 1,158,000
Transaction costs R 5 KR (20,977) — (2,210) (23,187)
Interests charged during REBEE-_ZT+F
the year ended +=Z—A=+—HI1
31 December 2007 FERNMFROFE
(note 15) (MF5E15) 30,553 — — 30,553
Changes in fair value DRAEEEZED
(note 15) (Mfsx15) — (20,725) — (20,725)
As at 31 December 2007 RZTTLF
(as restated) +=-A=+—H
(R=E751) 1,080,189 (46,171) 110,623 1,144,641
Interests charged during REBEZZTZTNF
the year ended +—A=+—8It
31 December 2008 FERNMFROTE
(note 15) (MI5E15) 46,319 — — 46,319
Changes in fair value AREEH
(note 15) (MF5E15) — 42,495 — 42,495
Derecognised due to i 2] i 4% |- ## 7R()
redemption (i) (97,281) 294 (1,459) (98,446)
As at 31 December 2008 RZEZENF
+=-A=+—H 1,029,227 (8,382) 109,164 1,135,009

No conversion of the Convertible Bonds has occurred up to 31

December 2008.

BE-_ZEZNFE+-_A=1+—81 " #

BEEMAEREFESR -

BEEL(ZR)ERAT / BB \FER
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36. Convertible bonds (restated) (continueq)

The changes in the fair value of the embedded derivative from
31 December 2007 to 31 December 2008 resulted in a fair value
loss of RMB42,495,000, which has been recorded as “Fair value
changes on financial derivatives” in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2008.

(i) The Company repurchased 1,000 units of Convertible
Bonds on 29 December 2008 with a total consideration of
RMB40,000,000 and transaction costs of RMB194,000.
The allocation of consideration paid and transaction costs
for the redemption and calculation of resulting gain or loss
is as follows:

36. ARG S (KES) =)

BAXNTEIEN AR BER_-_ZT L
F+-_A=+t—BE2-_ZZN\F+_-HA
ST+ BREENEHERAREEES
BARMA24950007C © EHEIBRE #H
WABZEZZEZNF+ZA=+—HL
FEMGEAMBERANTEITESRMT
EWMAnBEEY] -

() ARBRZZEENF+=ZA=1+h
HEEE1,00008EBBRES - 1R
8 & A B # 40,000,000 7T & % 5 K
AN A AR E194,0007T ° A B [0
MERNREBRERSKAN DB &
EXBENHERERT ¢

Carrying value Fair value Difference

FREE NREE =5

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBFT AREFT

Liability component BEH D 97,281 39,029 58,252
Issuer’s redemption option 1T AR BB O 4 (294) (294) -
Equity component R 2= 2B 9,553 1,459 8,094
Total At 106,540 40,194 66,346

The gain in relation to the liability component of
RMB58,252,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008.

37. Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC,
the Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the relevant local
government authorities in Shanghai whereby the Group is
required to make contributions to the Schemes at the rate of
22% of the eligible employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of pension
benefits associated with those schemes and other post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions described
above.
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37. EERKEF
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A BB REN ()

38. Share-based payments 38. IR 10 X 1
The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the FRAEFENREEENGRREH D
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical T MmAABKRESEAEE XM RN
+ g -
delivery of shares: wmH
Number of Contractual
shares involved life of
in the option Vesting condition options
B8 IR RE AT )R EREN
H IR 10 B B 5 B R4 BRI
Options granted to directors:
RTESHNERE :
— on 19 September 2006 7,500,000 (i) 25% on the date of grant at an exercisable 10 years

—R-ZETERFNLA

price of HKD3.824 per share; (ii) 25% on

+hA each of the first, second and third
anniversary of the date of grant at an
exercisable price of HKD4.302 per share
()R H & H25% Al 2 & 1k 3.824 8 TV 1T £ (B 10%F
BE (RREBHENE— F_RE=(EB
FHEEB25% A KT R4.3028 T
BWITERERS
— on 3 December 2007 10,000,000 25% on the date of grant and on each of the 5years

——ZZT4+F+_-_A=H

Options granted to employees:

first, second and third anniversary of the
date of grant at an exercisable price of
HKD6.526 per share
#Tﬁﬁ*a&ﬁé?ﬁuﬂa,ﬁﬁﬁ’q%’—~ 5%
g &%WI%EEEIHH E‘Jﬂ“ﬁ%%
W RETIRE 6526/%7EH’JT71§TE

RTEENBRE !
— on19 September2006 11,040,000 (i) 25% on the date of grant at an exercisable 10 years
—RZEETRF price of HKD3.824 per share; (ii) 25% on

A+ NH each of the first, second and third

— on100ctober 2007
—-RZZEELF+A+H

Total share options

BREHSS

anniversary of the date of grant at an
exercisable price of HKD4.302 per share

(VR E H25% Al R G R3.824 B T 1T EE 104F
BB (\WREBHNE— F-K
F=EREF HEE B 25%0] %
FRA4B02BILHITEERE

640,000 30% on the date of grant, 30% and 40% 4 years
on the first and second anniversary of
the date of grant at an exercisable price of
HKD6.3 per share

0% NI HEE HEB - M30% &40% 5 5l B 4%
REHBHNE-NRE-BFHEHAZ
BRE6IBTHITEERE

29,180,000

BEEL (R ERAT/ —FE\FER 195



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e

BI IS mARaE (48)

38. Share-based payments (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise price of share
options are as follows:

38. R0 X 13 (#)
RS BB REFEETEENT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2008 31 December 2007
BE-ZENE BE_ZT+HF
-I-_H:-I-—Ejtﬁﬁ tTZA=Z+-BLEE
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average shares involved average shares involved
exercise price in the options exercise price in the options
mEFLY  BREMSR mETH  BREMSR
THEE [ gip 4| 11158 8B
|
Outstanding at beginning FHIERITIE

of year HKD5.032/& 7T 29,180,000 HKD4.1837% 7T 18,540,000
Granted B - — || HKDB.512/ET 10,640,000
Exercised 2178 HKD3.824& 7t (80,000) — —
Lapsed B HKD5.6337%8 7T (16,315,000) — —
Outstanding at end of year FRMARITHE HKD4.2737% T 12,785,000 | HKD5.03247T 29,180,000
Exercisable at end of year FRATHE HKD4.1265& 7T 7,162,000 || HKD3.824/%7T 4,635,000

The option outstanding at 31 December 2008 have an exercise
price in the range of HKD3.824 to HKD6.30 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.46 years (2007: 7.30
years).

During the year ended 31 December 2008, an employee of the
Group exercised options relating to the share options granted
on 19 September 2006 to subscribe 80,000 ordinary shares
(2007: nil) at an exercise price of HKD3.824 per ordinary share.
The total proceeds received by the Company were
HKD305,920.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, three employees
voluntarily resigned from the Group and therefore ceased to be
entitled to the share options granted by the Company. The
number of shares involved in the above lapsed share options
amounted to 4,440,000 shares with a weighted average
exercise price of HKD4.183.

196 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008

R-ZZFETZENFE+T_A=1T—HHEKRTE
Z B 2T EEN F3.82478 L £6.30

BB MEGMEFHAENHAR A
TABF (ZZEZLF 1 7.304F) -
REBEEZ-_ZZNF+_A=Z+—HLHF

B AEBEEENFEFEH_ZZTAFH
HJerEIT hoHlkEaEBRE -
SR E@ER3824B L 21THEERE
S0,000HX EBEBR(ZZEZLF: E) o K
A B FT IR 2 BT 15 3k TE 42 B8 A 305,920
T o

(]

RBEZE-ZZEN\FFT-_A=+—-AL
FE ZXZEEEBBEAREEFT -
WA BAERZERRARE 2 BRE -
L RMEIRER S R 2B D E B EE
4,440,000[% - ™ hoHEF 170 (E /R 4.183
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Share-based payments continued)

On 30 November 2008, a director voluntarily resigned from the
Company and therefore ceased to be entitled to 10,000,000
share options granted by the Company on 3 December 2007
with an exercise price of HKD6.526.

On 31 December 2008, a director retired from the Company
and ceased to be entitled to 1,875,000 share options granted
by the Company on 19 September 2006 with an exercise price
of HKD4.302.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

As a result of the resignation and retirement of two directors and
the resignation of certain employees during the year before they
meet the vesting conditions, a net credit of RMBO0.6 million
(2007: an expense of RMB25 million) is resulted from the
reversal of the cumulative fair value of share options charged to
administrative expenses in the income statement in prior years.

Share capital
(@)

Authorised and issued share capital

38.

39.

e BmRME (&)

IR0 A5 ()

R-FENE+—A=+A —2ES
EEEARARE  RFEBEAALT
R-TELFET-A=BERTEEA
6.5267% 7T 2 10,000,000 17 &8 A # -

R-ZEENF+_A=+—"H —%=
ERARFER MIABEEZTHEARD
ARZEEANFNATLARLTER
£ 4.30278 T 2 1,875,000 17 B B 4% -

BIEDREBRGEMARL - Rt 86
WEIRBEERL ARz 2R EBERHRK
AR LR o B BB AR BT S R A B
A o

HRFAEMBEENZHEES H 5
EREFEBBIKGARK - BE R
B BRNRELFERFBERPE
AMTBERERERFTAALBEFRE
B &7 %% A R%600,0007t (Z T+
F . BH AR¥25000,0005L) °

A 7
EERBRITRA

At 31 December 2008 and 2007
R-ZBENFR-ZEZELHF

+t=ZA=+—8
The Group and the Company
AEERERQF
No. of shares Amount
gl = Kok
(thousand) HKD'000
(FH) B
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each f&E{E0.18 T/ & @ A% 10,000,000 1,000,000
BEEMGER)ERAR /BB \EEHK 197
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39. Share capital (continueq)

39. AR (&)

(@) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued) (a) ZERDBTRA(#)
2008 2007
—EENFE —EETLF
No. of shares No. of shares
of nominal Nominal of nominal
value of value of value of  Nominal value
HKDO0.1 each shares HKDO.1 each of shares
EREEO F R EEO
BITH 7B TTHY
RO A iR 10 E1E &8 B 1% E1E
(thousand) RMB’000 (thousand) RMB’000
(FR) ARBTT (FB) AREFT
Issued and fully paid: BEETREE
At 1 January () R—HA—H() 1,037,500 105,571 1,037,500 105,571
Issuance of ordinary TR AR
shares upon exercise BT LR
of share options (note 38) (Mf5E38) 80 7 — —
Shares repurchased BRI REHEZ
and cancelled (b) %15 (b) (7,465) (760) — —
At 31 December R+=A
=+—H 1,030,115 104,818 1,037,500 105,571
- |
0] Immediately after the completion of a global offering on 19 (i) 2EEHRBEER_ZZTENFN

September 2006 and up to the beginning of 2008, the total
number of issued shares is 1,037,500,000, of which an
aggregate of 287,500,000 shares are held by public
shareholders, representing approximately 28% of total
number of shares. Each share has a par value of HKDO.1.
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39. Share capital (continueq)

(b)

e BmRmE (&)

39. AR (&)

Repurchase of own shares (b) BEEAREFHRG
During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Company Hr—_ZENF+ZRB=1+—81F
repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock FE ARAREEBEAERSHMA
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows: RARIBRERGHLEBRLOT
Number of Highest price Lowest price
shares paid per paid per Aggregate
Month/year repurchased share share price paid
[ AEE: v XRHER X8R
B/ ® 2H BEafE BEE XHTHEER
Note HKD HKD RMB’000
B 3 BT BT ARBTET
October 2008 ZZEENFTH (ii) 2,173,000 0.50 0.42 911
November 2008 —ZZENF+—A (i) 5,292,000 0.80 0.62 3,158
7,465,000 4,069
(i) The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly (i) BOZBRMHE FUFEHE MzE
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by B zEERARAEETRA
the nominal value of these shares. Pursuant to section R - RIEBEREREARE(Z
37(4) of the Companies Law (2007 Revision) of the ZELFEE) F37(4) & - 4
Cayman Islands, an amount equivalent to the par value of ERZECEHEKROEAE & E
the shares cancelled of RMB760,000 was transferred from AR 760,000 7t 2 B R 2B & Fl
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve. The ETEREDRE o BORMDE
premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of Frfst 2w 8 AR 3,309,000 7T
RMB3,309,000 (note 40(a)) was charged to share (Kt3E40(a)) ERR D & E R
premium. B o
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by the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over nominal

value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange

under the Reorganisation was transferred to the

contributed surplus account in the Company’s financial
statements.
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40. Share premium and reserves 40. R m B R f#E1E
(a) The Company (a) ZA&1HF
Capital reserves
(undistributable)
EARE
(RULE)
Capital — convertible
Share  redemption  Contributed  bondsequity - employee  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus  component  share option losses Total
—-ERES
RERE EXEEHE E4zH EsYs -ESBRE ZitFR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
(note 40(0)) (note 40(c)) (note (i) (note 36) (note 38)
(Wikdop)  (3E400) (Birs) (fit5E36) (FzE21)
At1 January 2007 RZE3tE-A-8 2,084,437 - 308,439 - 10,916 (5926) 2,397,866
Equity settled share-hased RiggERRn
transactions SRR - - - - 25,002 - 25,002
Equity component of NEABHA
convertible bonds Eadh - - - 110,623 - - 110,623
Loss forthe year FEFR - - - - - (78,363) (78,369)
At 31 December 2007 R-E3tE+-F=t-H
(as restated) (85 2,084,437 — 308439 110623 35,918 @4289 2455128
At1 January 2008 R-BENE-A-A
As previously reported NEEER 2,084,437 - 308,439 110,623 35,918 (103,405) 2,436,012
Prior year adjustment (note 6} F-FEHB (M) - - - - - 19,116 19,116
At1 January 2008 (asrestated)  R-BE/\E—A—B(EF)) 2084497 — 3843 110623 35,918 @489 2455128
Issue of shares Bk
- share option scheme - BREE 456 - - - (177) - 219
Equity settled share-based Wi E Rk
transactions SRS, - - - - (568) - (568)
Repurchase of convertible REEmaE
bonds (note 36) &% (HzE36) - - - (1,459) - - (1,459)
Purchase and cancellation BERHHEY
of own shares note 39): BOIGER)E
— premium paid -2aE (3,309) - - - - - (3,30)
— transfer between reserves - GiERER - 760 - - - (760) -
Dividends declared to EmBREREA
equity holders SRS - - - - - (149,549) (149,549)
Profitfor the year EEET - - - - - 187,170 187,170
At 31 December 2008 R-BEN\E+-A=t-R 2,081,584 760 308,439 109,164 35,173 (47,428) 2,487,692
Note (i): The excess of the consolidated net assets represented MEEG : sREFEE(RRKEFQA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. Share premium and reserves (Continued)

(b)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (2007 Revision),
the funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of the business.

Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value
of the shares repurchased which has been paid out of the
Company’s distributable reserves.

Merger reserves

The merger reserves represent the difference between the
Company'’s share of the nominal value of the paid-up
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property reclassified
from owner-occupied to investment property. For such
reclassifications, the cumulative increase in the fair value
of the property at the date of reclassification in excess of
any previous impairment losses is included in the
revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

40. Share premium and reserves (Continued)

(f

(e)

PRC statutory reserves
Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory reserves

were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and

regulations and the articles of association of the

Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and

were approved by the respective boards of directors. The

statutory reserves consist of:

(U]

(ii)

General reserve fund

Transfers from retained earnings to the general
reserve fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve fund
can be used to cover previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital in proportion to
equity holders’ existing equity holdings, provided
that the balance after such conversion is not less
than 25% of their registered capital.

Enterprise expansion fund

Transfers from retained earnings to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company’s subsidiaries
and were approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the enterprise expansion
fund can be used for business development
purposes and for working capital purpose. This fund
is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
Transfers to this fund must be made before
distribution of dividends to the equity holders.

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency

differences arising from the translation of the financial

statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with

in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
3(b)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40. Share premium and reserves (Continued)

()

Distributable reserve

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB2,343,355,000 (2007:
RMB2,308,587,000 (restated)).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective in managing capital is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurate with the
level of risks and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowing and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (including interest bearing loans, convertible
bonds, long-term payable, trade, other payables and
advance receipts) plus unaccrued proposed dividends,
less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity less
unaccrued proposed dividends.

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio as at 31 December
2008 was 100% (2007 restated: 69%). There were no
changes in the Group’s approach to capital management
during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

= A\
%TIII

41.

42.

BI IS mARaE (48)

Financial guarantees

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for certain
purchasers of property units and provided financial guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for repayments. The
outstanding guarantees amounted to RMB298,117,000 as at
31 December 2008 (2007: RMB266,038,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which will generally be available within six
months after the buyer takes possession of the relevant
properties; and (i) the satisfaction of the mortgaged loan by the
buyer of the properties.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair values of the
financial guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at
initial recognition and the directors consider the possibility of
default by the parties involved to be remote. Accordingly, no
value has been recognised in the balance sheet as at 31
December 2008.

Financial instruments

The Group conducts its operations in the PRC and accordingly
is subject to special considerations and significant risks. These
include risks associated with, among others, the political,
economic and legal environment, influence of national
authorities over pricing regulation and competition in the
industry.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:

o credit risk;
° liquidity risk; and

° market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and
equity price risk)

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to
each of the above risks, and the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and

oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.

Management establishes policies to identify and analyse the

risks faced by the Group, to set up appropriate risk limits and

controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk

management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to

reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

Through training and management standards and procedures,

management aims to develop a disciplined and constructive

control environment in which all employees understand their

roles and obligations.

(@)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group’s trade and other receivables and
investments.

The Group’s management has a credit policy in place and
exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade,
other receivables and advance deposits. In respect of
trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on each new customer. The Group’s review
includes external ratings, when available, and in some
cases bank references. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s liquidity to make payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Customers are generally required to transact with the
Group on a prepayment basis. The Group generally offers
no credit terms to customers and does not usually obtain
collateral from customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(8E)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry and country in which customers
operate also has influences credit risk, but to a lesser
extent. At the balance sheet date, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit at 81% (2007: 79%) of the total
trade, other receivables and advance deposits arising
from the Group’s deposits for land acquisition. These
deposits will be transferred to the cost of properties under
development upon the Group obtaining the relevant land
use rights.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet after
deducting any impairment allowance. Except for the
financial guarantees given by the Group as set out in note
41, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group or the Company to credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
these financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is
disclosed in note 41.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade, other receivables
and advance deposits are set out in note 29.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are placed
with a group of banks and financial institutions which
management considers have good credit ratings.
Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange and management does
not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Undiscounted

Carrying contractual

31 December 2008 amount cash flow
RERBITH

ZBZ\F+ZA=t-H REE ReRE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AREFR

Trade, other payables and

JENERRT - A

e BmRmE (&)

42. @I H (&)

(b)

Within 1 year

oron demand
—FR5
RER
RMB’000
AR¥FRT

B B
mBERRASAEEAEDEA B
BITEMBEBNRER - AEBEH
BREBEHMETEARPESTZ
BTRERROOBR - BRERT
ROBRSHBRERTEBTREAH
BRfARMERE  UENEAEEE
HEBREHORBESHK -

TRALNBEERAAKEFRITLES
MEBEBEETANARENTHBER
DBREFNAUBRBRRERE (B
BAENNMER(NBEZE) HEH
EHMEAEORNEMR) RAK
BAgEFENTNREAMSESE
fEH

Within 5 years

Within 2 years but over 2
but over 1 year years  Over5years

MEA REUR
B-FHRE AmESL RENE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETR ARETR

advance receiptsexcluding N EIERTEM
advance receipts from HBETERE
customers ANEEHE 856,352 (858,352) (788,353 (69,999) - -
Secured interest-bearing loans  BIEATEER 1,516,860 (1,695,756) (412,919) (571,558) (481,830) (229,449)
Unsecured interest-bearing &3t & &3
loans 205,000 (212,073) (212,073) - - -
Long-term payable EHERZ 55,013 (84,000) (6,000) (6,000) (18,000) (54,000)
Convertible bonds ABHES 1,020,227 (1,183,235) - - (1,183,23) -
3,664,452 (4,033416)  (1,419,345) (647557)  (1,683,065) (283,449)
[ ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

42. @I H (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) MEEE B (&)
Undiscounted
contractual Within 1year ~ Within2years ~ Within 5 years
31 December 2007 (Restated) Carrying amount cashflow  orondemand  butover1year butover2years Over 5 years
ZETHFTZA=+-A REFEET —FR WERE LN
(5 &5) FREE hHenE REX —ENE BREAE AFUE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARNTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR
Trade, other payables and JEITERTR - EAy
advance receipts excluding  FENZIE R IEUR
advance receipts from SBETERE
customers EWERPHIE 793,284 (793,284) (699,654) (93,630) - -
Secured interest-bearing loans G Azt 2 EF 1,046,210 (1,191,083) (433,886) (492,135) (123,207) (141,855)
Unsecured interest-bearing &3t & &3
loans 5,000 (5,136) (5,136) - - -
Convertible bonds BRES 1,080,189 (1,295,072) - - (1,295,072) -
2,924,683 (3,284,575) (1,138,676) (585,769) (1,418,279) (141,855)
Interest rate risk (c) A== & B

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing loans, convertible bonds, cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash comprise
mainly cash at bank, with an interest rate of 0.36% per
annum as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 0.72% per
annum). Pledged bank deposits and time deposits
maturing after three months are not held for speculative
purposes but are placed to satisfy conditions for
borrowing facilities granted to the Group and for higher
yield returns than cash at bank.

The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk
of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing loans and convertible bonds are disclosed in
notes 33 and 36.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

42. Financial instruments continueq) 42. €T B (&)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FMERE &)
The Group manages the net exposure to interest rate risks AREBRBERFTEHNEEREIN
by maintaining sufficient lines of credit to obtain FEEKANERAEZESKERB
acceptable lending costs and by monitoring the exposure BEEEIEZZRBIREERNERFH
to such risks on an ongoing basis. Management does not [B g o B IR E A0 M 1T A R AL
enter into interest rate hedging transactions since it is 5 REAAEEERALEIAN
considered that the cost of such instruments outweigh the MABRAE LB EERRE -

potential risk of interest rate fluctuation.

(i) Interestrate profile i REBR
The following table details the interest rate profile of TRHFULUNEEBARAERH
the Group's interest-bearing borrowings at the FTREERFEER -

balance sheet date.

2008 2007
—EENF —ETTLHF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
SRS BRRA =
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARBT ARETT
(Restated)
(&e&E5)
|
Fixed rate borrowings EEFfIZ&
Secured interest-bearing A izt
loans IS5 6.81% 250,000 6.65% 263,400
Unsecured interest- IR R
bearing loans =4 7.59% 200,000 6.80% 5,000
Convertible bonds GRS 4.24% 1,029,227 4.24% 1,080,189
1,479,227 1,348,589
Variable rate borrowings #J#fRE&
Secured interest-bearing &t 2
loans B 6.85% 1,266,860 7.45% 782,810
Unsecured interest- Fdiiw i)
bearing loans B3 6.63% 5,000 —
1,271,860 782,810
Total borrowings [E)-Fat 2,751,087 2,131,399
Fixed rate borrowings as [& & fi| &g &
a percentage of total HEEESE
borrowings ERalsd 54% 63%
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REMBRERME(E)

42. Financial instruments (continued) 42. €/ T B (%)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) MEE k(& )
(i)  Sensitivity analysis iy BBEDH
The Group does not account for any fixed rate N & E A ﬁ AR AAREBAE

financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and equity. Therefore, a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect
profit or loss and equity.

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates
applicable to variable rate instruments at the
reporting date would have increased/(decreased)
equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as in
2007.

Profit or loss

B
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
#711001& 2 1001@

31 December2008 —TZ/\fF
+=A=+—8H
Variable rate AIEFE TR
instruments (9,539) 9,539

SRR A 18 o Jo 4 o5 B 12 A (&

ENEEeMEENRAE-

It R E B BB R R &
TeFERat s -

ﬁAi&iEIHHT“ﬁ'JTIEE
7 M| 3 % B)100 {8 £ B A% 3 N
/(ﬁi@)’f&/\&?ﬁﬁﬁ"i\%ﬁ
IIMTR "D BREME
Hipr] BRR(LERINEE
R)RBETLE - _TTLFH
DITIREREELETT -

Equity
Ez
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
3 H01001& 210018
2 HE

(9,539) 9,539

31 December 2007 —ZEZ+F

Variable rate AEMETA
instruments (5,245) 5,245

(5,245) 5,245
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank of China or other
institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange.
The exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the
People’s Bank of China and are determined largely by
supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies in which these
transactions primarily are denominated are Hong Kong
Dollars (HKD), United States Dollars (USD) and Australian
Dollars (AUD).

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that
the net exposures to this risk is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances. The
currencies primarily giving rise to this risk are USD and
HKD. Management does not enter into currency hedging
transactions since it considers that the cost of such
instruments outweighs the potential risk of exchange rate
fluctuations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

42. @I H (&)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥EE#)
()  Exposure to currency risk (i) &B%ERER
The following table details the Group’s exposure at THRAFMAEFBRLEEHE
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from EREERBHERZEZREB N
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a BERBNEEE AN EET
currency other than the functional currency of the EMEEXBENEERAR -
entity based on notional amounts.
31 December 2008 —EENFE+ZA=+—H
HKD’000 USD’000 AUD’000
BT ExTx BrxTr
Trade, other receivables FEUBR R ~ H A
and advance deposits JEUR FRIE BA K
EftiES® 52 4,474 =
Cashand cashequivalents IR& NIRESEEY 91,637 6,589 1
Trade, other payables JERTERER - H A
and advance receipts BT FRIE A K
I8 I 2B (110) (5,881) -
Overall exposure 48 2 fx 91,579 5,182 1
[ |
I
31 December 2007 —EELtHF+=ZA=+—H
HKD’000 USD’000 AUD’000
BT T T ErxFT BT T T
Trade, other receivables JE U BR R - Efth
and advance deposits P& U FRIE DA K
B iRe 104,546 9,345 —
Cashand cashequivalents IR& NIEEZEM 150,223 26,226 1
Trade, other payables JEERFR - HAth
and advance receipts FEA FRIE A K
G el (7,229) — -
Overall exposure 42 & b 247,540 35,571 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRME (&)

42. Financial instruments (continued) 42. TR T B (&)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) E¥R &
()  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥mEb( é%’)
The following significant exchange rates applied LWTAFREANEEREK

during the year:

Average rates Reporting date spot rate
T E=E BRERHREER
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BRENE _—TTLHFE ZBENF _—ZTTLF

HKD1 157
UsD1 17T
AUD1 1RTT
— —

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDN
The following table indicates the approximate TERER WARBEIUT
change in the Group’s profit and other components AEBRLEEBRFERRDHI
of consolidated equity in response to a 5% BT E5% - NEENEF &
strengthening of the RMB against the foreign AR mH A D B i"] &
currencies to which the Group had exposure at the o ANHBRERLEE
balance sheet date. This analysis assumes that the BESIRA AL INEIE K Q
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange B O UEREXASBESESR
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date and REZBFEMNER T AR
had been applied to each for the Group entities’ Bk BB EMAERA %
exposure to currency risk for financial instruments in (LERMNXR)RFETE -
existence at that date, and that all other variables, in TELFEWNHMILERE L?E—
particular interest rates, remain constant. The HEAT o

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

Profit or loss

B
2008 2007
—EZ2NF —TELF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AE#“FE ARBT T

HKD BT
usb ET

(3 029)
(1,328)

(9,318)
(10,446)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
A 5% weakening of the RMB against the above
currencies at 31 December would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the above currency to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent
that the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the
fair values of financial derivatives of the Group. As at the
balance sheet date the Group is exposed to this risk
through the redemption rights attached to the Convertible
Bonds issued by the Company as disclosed in note 36.

Fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
and based on relevant market information and information
about the financial instrument. These estimates are
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters
of significant judgment and therefore cannot be
determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could
significantly affect the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value for each class of financial
instruments:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables
The carrying values approximate fair value because
of the short maturities of these instruments.

(i)  Investments
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

42. Financial instruments (continued)

(f

Fair value (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Interest-bearing loans

The carrying amount of bank loans approximate
their fair value based on the borrowing rate currently
available for bank loans with similar terms and
maturity.

Convertible bonds

The Group selects appropriate valuation methods
and makes assumptions with reference to market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date, to
determine the fair value of the embedded financial
derivative of the convertible bonds that is separated
from the host debt contract. The basis for
determining the fair value is disclosed in note 36.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s-length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders
when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged,
had the guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can be made.
The basis for determining the fair value is disclosed
in note 41.

123

()

SEMER) BRAR /I ZEENFFR

e BmRME (&)

42. @I H (&)

D REE )

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

FEER

R 4% 3R B A] B R R K & B
HHBENRTERNEE
M & - RITE R R (E A
AV ERERER TR

R E S
AEER2REEEENAR
THRk  BEEENMHE
TELEHBR  UEES
YREEHBEHMAERE
FHBMARTEEZR T AN
NAEE - BTEAAEBED
EHERME6HE -

BEER
ERLMBERNAALBAE
Ty2 Bk AR BB E LR
AT R 8 & A T (40 Ak
WMEBLEER)  H2BFE
ZEmMET DBEEAR
BERBERTAKEDGE R
ME . BEEFEEERER
T BT U ER B I R VR S B 8 (2
BREHEBMEREDRTEOME
) - BEARABEMNEER
MsE41 T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmERmE(E)

43. Operating lease commitments

(i)

Leases as lessee
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as
follows:

 EEHEERE

(

)

EABEBANEE
TOHBEEEHEARUATHMX
NRBEELOT

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETIT

| I

Less than one year —F R 8,775 12,438
Between one and five years —FE2RF 550 8,311
Total &5t 9,325 20,749

The leases, in respect of office rental charges, run for a
period within five years.

Leases as lessor

The Group leases out its properties, which include
investment properties and completed properties held for
sale leased out on a temporary basis, under operating
leases. The future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable leases are as follows:

HBRAEHEATEENEELER
FAEM

FHRHBEANEE
AEERBELEEIEANE £
EREWERGH HANDERE
EME - REFTHHEEARA
RATHEXANBERSERER
EMT -

2008 2007

—EENFE —EELF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARET T

Less than one year —FRr 26,074 23,639
Between one and five years —EFERHF 100,168 97,860
More than five years A h F 264,216 246,337
Total &t 390,458 367,836

For the year ended 31 December 2008, RMB26,920,000
(2007: RMB22,914,000) and nil (2007: RMB6,671,000)
were recognised as rental income in respect of investment
properties and completed properties held for sale leased
out on a temporary basis respectively in the income
statement.
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44.

45.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A BB REN ()

Capital commitments 44. B R EYE
2008 2007
—EENE —EELEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AR FIT

Property development activities: MEZRRTE

— Contracted but not provided for — BRTHEREBE 3,281,935 3,872,228
— Authorized but not contracted for — EEREBERTY 4,369,492 3,618,948
Total A5t 7,651,427 7,491,176

Related-party transactions

Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and
certain related parties in which a director or shareholder of the
Company is in a position to exercise significant influence are as

follows:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2008, transactions
with the following parties were considered as related-party

transactions:

Name of party
BRALTEE

5. BEAETRS

AEHEEETHEAL(RARAESH
BRRAHETEEAFEE)NEAR
SHBEWT

(@) RBEZE-TTN\F+-A=+—H
ILEFE - BUATATHATNZ SR
REEALRS :

Relationship
B &

— Mr. Wang Weixian
- IRELRLE

— Starwaly Properties (Group) Pty Ltd. (“SPG”)

— Shanghai ZhongXin
- LERE

— Shanghai Yunjie Real Estate Consultancy
Company Limited (“Shanghai Yunjie”)
— LBEAREHEZAEGRAR (I LE

— Shenzhen Huibo Investment Development
Company Limited (“Huibo”)
—AINTEFREEREGR AR (TEF])

EARD

The founding equity holder and Chairman of

the Company; Controlling shareholder

of the Company’s ultimate holding company
RARBIWMREREARER

QA B PR A R R IE IR AR 3R

Controlled by Mr. Wang Weixian
HEREREZES

An associate of the Company

ZN/NSIE:0): RN

Controlled by a director of various operating subsidiaries

HEREEFRAIN—LEFEH

A minority equity holder of Sipo Education
BEHENLEREREA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

45. Related-party transactions (continued)

(@) (Continued)

Name of party
EBRALEE

45. BE A LXK 5 (#)
@ (&)

Relationship

B &

— Peninsula Waitan

50% indirectly owned by Delta Link

—NEFS FA Delta Link [ # # A 50%
— Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang Co., Ltd Controlled by a close family member of Mr. Wang Weixian
(“Sendao”) B EEE LA AT RIE

— LEREHUMEERQA (RS

— Wuxi Guolian
— #E55 B g

— Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian
— 35 B R K 85 AR B

— Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited (“Prestige Glory”)

— Boom Rich Investment Limited (“Boom Rich”)

— SPG Investment Holdings Limited (“SPG Investment”)

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group increased its capital contribution in Wuxi
Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian, and the equity
interests held by the Group in the two entities
increased from 49% to 88.84% and 92.06%
respectively (see note 8(ii)). Wuxi Guosheng and
Wuxi Shenglian became subsidiaries of the
Company during the year.
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A minority equity holder of
Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian
EHBERNEHRENDBRERAA

Note (i)
Bt 5T ()

Equity holder of the Company and owned by
Mr. Wang Weixian
RAARMRERBEARBTIRELERS

Equity holder of the Company and owned by
Ms. Wang Xuling
RAARRERBEARBTRELZLHS

Equity holder of the Company and owned by
Ms. Wang Xuling
RAARBRERBEARBTRELLHE

HE_ZZNF+=ZA=
T—HILEFE - KEEEM
EHREHBE R REGEBD
ERALE  XEBERAWEE
BEFT #5 BV 1 25 149% 5 7l 18
%£88.84% K% 92.06% ( 7. B 7T
8(i)) - FARNEBEE KEDH
BE AN AR T AR e

—
=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e BmRmE (&)

45. Related-party transactions (continuea) A5, BEATR S (#)
(b) Recurring transactions b) BEXRS
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTTT

Construction cost: BIERAR

Sendao "B 23,602
Sales commission expense: HEMEMX -

Shanghai Yunijie FEENR 9,725
Sales of service: RISHE -

Peninsula Waitan SN E 11,784
Consulting expense: HE N

Shanghai Zhongxin FERE -

Construction cost, sales commission expense and sales EERA CEEMLSE S RIBHBE K AR

of services were charged based on the services rendered EREATHAAEERENRELREB S
by the related parties to the Group and in accordance with &=k W BY o

the terms of the underlying agreements.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the AAFTEERAEFRBEATTZH—HKHE
above related-party transactions were conducted on HIRHET WREHFEBR SRR ERT
normal commercial terms and were priced with reference BEFERE -

to prevailing market prices, and in the ordinary course of

business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

RapBmRmE(8E)

45. Related-party transactions (continued)

(c) Balance with related parties (c)
As at the end of 2008, the Group had the following

45. BE A LXK 5 (#)

ERE AT LR
BE-TT)\FE FAEEHEMHE

balances with related parties:

ATBATEER

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBF T
Trade balances due from related parties fE U E A L RIEE &
(note 29): (KM$5E29) -
Peninsula Waitan INEEE S 982 1,964
Non-trade balances due from related FE UL B8 & A+ E b B Uk ZX
parties (note 29): @Eer (FYsE29) -
Mr. Wang Weixian and his close FTEEXEREAR
family members — 270
Prestige Glory Prestige Glory 8 46
Boom Rich Boom Rich 4 4
SPG Investment SPG Investment 12 —
Wuxi Guosheng 1 15 B B — 3,000
Wuxi Shenglian I 45 B% B = 3,000
Shanghai Yunjie LBENR = 6,974
1,006 15,258
Trade balances due to related parties JEATREE A T RIBE A
(note 34): (MfzE34) -
Sendao HRE 11,920 15,952
Non-trade balances due to related parties & {5 BF 3@ A =+ E fih FE - 5%
(note 34): wEer (MYsE34) -
SPG SPG
— dividends payable — EfRE 9,173 9,173
— other payables — HMENRIE 4,051 4,051
Huibo [E 18 6,550 7,050
Unsecured loans from related parties KEHEALTEERER
(note 33) (H$3E33)
Wuxi Guolian 1 15 B Bt 200,000 —
231,694 36,226
[
I

Trade and non-trade balances due from/to related parties
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The unsecured loans borrowed from Wuxi Guolian are
subject to interest rate of 7.59% per annum and are
repayable within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A BB REN ()

45. Related-party transactions (continued) 45. BEBEALTRZ (a)
(d) Key management personnel remuneration d) BEREIEA S FHM
Remuneration for key management personnel, including FREEBEAEHM  BIEEWE17
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in eI B bl 7 N/NI=] =<8 = A T
note 17 and five of the highest paid to employees as E Matsh BEIN FRELED
disclosed in note 18, was as follows: FMEEFMBMT
2008 2007
—EENF —E2ELF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARKEF T
Salaries and other emoluments T & & H 5 B 22,514
Share-based payments A& A 12,528
35,042
46. Pending litigation 46. R IR FFEA

47.

A subsidiary of the Company is in litigation with a major
contractor. The contractor claims compensation of RMB24.1
million from the Group. The management of the Group has
vigorously defended the case and considers that the claim has
no basis and is unreasonable. The court has not issued any
verdict as at the date of this report. Based on the best available
information and an assessment of the claim by the Group’s
external legal counsel, the directors estimate that the final
settlement amount of the claim will be substantially lower than
the amount claimed. The directors have made sufficient
provision for the litigation in the financial statements.

Subsequent events

() Repurchase of convertible bonds
On 27 February 2009, the Company repurchased 540
units of Convertible Bonds with a total nominal value of
RMB54,000,000. The bonds were repurchased with a
total consideration of USD4,079,508, equivalent to
RMB27,864,000. These bonds were cancelled upon
repurchase.

(i) Dividends

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the Board of Directors
meeting held on 23 April 2009, it was resolved that
dividends of RMB51,185,000 (RMB4.97 cents per
ordinary share) were declared for the year ended 31
December 2008.

47. %

BRE

AAmER—HFARERE —HET

RABHNFR ABEHERAEER
B A K ®24,100,0007T - A& B EIEE
ERRVETEIRE  ARK/EHER
BEREEREBENTAEN - BHEARE
BH - AR I AF A FDR o AR A
ERN&EERRAEEINE L RZER
HREFELOFE EFHGT REDH
RRENEEBARNEREREENS
BM-EBZCRUBRRDPUZEBFAIE
hE B -

n\l:l H 'fﬁ $IE

() BEAUERES
RZZEZENRF_A=-++tH &
AREELRMOMBHEBEARBARKE
54,000,000 7T ) A] 1 (F & o BE [0
ZEEH LR E B4079,508 %
7T HHE RN AR 27,864,000 7T °
ZEBEFNERFETH -

iy BRE
BEAEER_ZZTNLFHA=-T
EEE%H@%%QQ%L@E’J%@
CARRBERBEREEZZEN
¢+ A=+ HLEFENRES
# A R #51,185,000 7T ( & I% & @
A ARE497TS) ©
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

e BERBE

Year ended VYear ended Year ended VYear ended Year ended
31 Dec 2008 31Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2005 31Dec 2004
—BENF “ETE ZTERE ZTTRF —ETEME
+=A +ZA +ZA +ZA TZA
=t+-H =+—H =+—H =t+—A =t+—H
tFE HEE HEE HEE HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFT ARETT ARBEFT ARETT
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (Restated)
REANBEXR (=70)
Revenue Iy 3 1,394,993 1,714,507 1,887,458 1,169,176 748,610
Cost of sales HERA (853,196)  (1072,208)  (1,307,489) (681,655) (444,725)
Gross profit E7 541,797 642,209 579,975 487,621 303,885
Other operating income HEae gl A 9,237 15,858 14,512 1,003
Selling and marketing costs HE QT 5HERK A (65,592) (28,281) (45,042) (31,584)
Administrative expenses THER (151,743) (81,546) (70,497) (74,041)
Other operating expenses Hi SR (9,115) (213) (12,730) (9,445)
Net gain on acquisition of subsidiaries WEFR T B % - - - -
Net gain on disposal of equity HEFLRARENREFE
interest in subsidiaries 193,112 - - -
Net gain on repurchase of convertible bonds B 2] 7] & 44 (& 4 2 Wi 25 5 4 - - - -
Results from operating activities RELETHNRR 618,108 485,793 373,764 189,818
Finance income BLE WA 46,359 23,092 6,786 4,278
Finance expenses B & AR (152,729) (36,640) (6,191) -
Fair value changes on finance derivatives TESBRIENDABERZY 20,725 - - -
Net finance (expenses)/income BE(RE) /WA FE (85,645) (13,548) 595 4,278
Share of (loss)/profit of associates FEEBERNE(BR) /&5H (8,239) (318) 1,047 —
Profit before revaluation gains on A RENEEHNER
investment properties and income tax FERAER 335,030 524,224 471,927 375,406 194,006
Revaluation gains/(losses) on BREMESHEYE/ (BR)
investment properties 25,000 269,626 39,882 41,752 (1,033
Profit before income tax BRETERAIRER 360,030 793,850 511,809 417,158 193,063
Income tax expense FERmAY (172,025) (251,580) (112,799) (155,662) (90,174)
Profit for the year FERAN 188,005 542,270 399,010 261,496 102,889
Attributable to: MTATREM :
Equity holders of the Company ARARERAEA 151,499 517,614 390,818 262,201 96,478
Minority interests DR R 36,506 24,656 8,192 (705) 6,411
Profit for the year FERF 188,005 542,270 399,010 261,496 102,889
Dividends payable to EREAARBRESEA
equity holders of the company FERERE
attributable to the year
Dividends declared during the year FRERRE 149,549 - 90,056 361,043 270,551
Dividends proposed after EERBERRBRRE
the balance street date 51,185 149,549 - — -
Earnings per share BRER
N/A
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREXEZF(ARY) 0.499 0.480 0.350 N@Ef
N/A
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) SREERF (ARY) 0.462 0.479 0.350 A
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

RAMBERBE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENE  ZTTtF ZTTRFE  CZTTRE C—TTMF
=y +=ZA +=ZA +=ZA +=A
=t+-H =+—H =+—d i =! =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT ARETT ARETR ARBTT
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Restated)
REEERER (E3))
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Mg BELRERE 252,756 246,039 226,856 188,279 198,740
Land use rights TR 79,500 64,173 74,280 75,767 78,270
Properties under development BREPNE 2,558,728 2,356,458 758,434 966,068 1,160,425
Investment properties BEME 723,000 698,000 333,700 259,700 39,400
Investment properties under development  HER KR EY E - - 40,907 35,250 79,176
Investments in associates BeRAEs 923,177 982,507 944,134 63,774 -
Financial derivatives fTEemMIA 3,382 46,171 - - -
Deferred tax assets ELHIEBEEE 88,149 73,728 64,148 126,207 170,197
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 4,628,692 4,467,076 2,442,459 1,710,045 1,726,208
Properties under development BREPYE 1,800,902 642,593 505,290 1,319,501 664,917
Completed properties held for sales BERGENE 509,861 253,976 387,533 187,214 33,697
Investments K4 856 730 3,319 6,386 7,159
Trade and other receivables E i B 2 I L b FE Mk 3 1,340,466 1,079,564 650,009 360,444 354,923
Restricted cash TRHAEE 539,771 241,593 841,717 55,083 186,246
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReZEEY 403,531 863,237 818,974 52,734 727 557
Total current assets RBEELE 4595387 | 3081693 3206842 1981362 1,974,499
Total assets EEAE 9,224,079 7,548,769 5,649,301 3,691,407 3,700,707
Equity B
Share capital AR AN 104,818 105,571 105,571 455,474 371,442
Share premium BB 1n B 2,081,584 2,084,437 2,084,437 — -
Reserves i 689,460 685,931 549,831 76,974 50,421
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses) REEH/ (RFER) 447,989 451,772 (65,233) (365,065) (265,315)
Total Equity attributable to ERTRE
equity holders of BEA
the Company EEES4E 3,323,851 3,327,711 2,674,606 167,383 156,548
Minority interests PYRRER 524,409 304,577 15,830 22,638 22,941
Total equity BREH 3,848,260 3,632,288 2,690,436 190,021 179,489
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Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

RAMBENBE

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENE  ZTTtF ZTTRFE CZTTRE C—TTMmF
+=A +=ZA +=ZA +=ZA +=A
=t+-H =+—H =+—d i =! =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®Tr ARETRT AR®ETT AR%Tx
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Restated)
REEERER (E3))
Liabilities =R
Interest bearing loans and borrowings TEERRER 580,000 372,400 1,111,390 727,339 255,127
Trade and other payables JE 5 BR 30 R E o FE R 3R 1,895,128 1,238,662 848,026 2,199,017 2,328,724
Tax payable e B 12 Bt 323,556 332,421 185,934 165,039 205,067
Long-term payable within one year —FRNIHHREENR 6,000 - - - -
Total current liabilities RBEELE 2,804,684 1,943,483 2,145,350 3,091,395 2,788,918
Interest bearing loans and borrowings STEERRER 1,141,860 678,810 789,470 397,000 731,691
Long-term payable REERR 49,013 - - - -
Covertible bonds A ERE A 1,029,227 1,080,189 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 351,035 213,999 24,045 12,991 609
Total non-current liabilities F¥RBEELE 2,571,135 1,972,998 813,515 409,991 732,300
Total liabilities BEAE 5,375,819 3,916,481 2,958,865 3,501,386 3,621,218
Total equity and liabilities BERREELAE 9,224,079 7,548,769 5,649,301 3,691,407 3,700,707

224  SPG Land (Holdings) Limited // Annual Report 2008
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